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Report to:

Board of Directors

Date of meeting:

28 May 2013

Subject:

Trust Annual Report and Accounts 2012/13

Author(s):

Jane Walters, Director of Corporate Affairs

Presented by:

Jane Walters, Director of Corporate Affairs

Status:

For Approval

1. Background/Purpose
The Trust is required to submit its Annual Report and Accounts for the year 2012/13 to Monitor by 30 May
2013. This report outlines the process and timeline for submission of the Annual Report and Accounts
2012/13.

2. Action required
The Board of Directors is asked to approve the report and to note the process and timeline for submission.

3. Key implications
The key implications are outlined on the following slide.
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Key implications
Legal:

It is a requirement under the National Health Service Act 2006 that an annual
report and annual accounts (ARA) should be prepared and laid before
Parliament. The ARA should comply with direction given by the regulator,
Monitor.

Financial:

Contains the annual accounts but there are no direct financial implications

Assurance:

Preparation of the ARA is a constitutional requirement

Clinical:

The annual Quality Account is included in the report

Equality & Diversity:

The Trust’s approach to equality and diversity is covered in the report

Performance:

Core performance information is included in the report

Strategy:

The ARA is one of King’s core strategic/ regulatory requirements

Workforce:

The workforce report is a core element of the ARA

Estates:

N/A

Reputation:

It is a public document outlining Trust performance in relation to regulatory
requirements, governance and quality processes
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Executive Summary
 Approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors

 Submitted to Monitor on 30 May and laid before Parliament
in June
 Formally received by the Council of Governors at their
September meeting
 Full ARA and summary version (Annual Review) available
to members and the general public at the Annual Members
Meeting in September - as required under the Health &
Social Care Act 2012
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Process for submission
• Final draft report submitted to Audit Committee (AC) and
Board of Directors (BoD) for comment and approval
• Comments from AC and BoD incorporated
• Section on independence of the external auditors (text in
red) signed off by Deloitte representatives
• Quality Account inserted

• Outstanding figures added to the sustainability report
• Page references completed and signatures added to the
relevant pages in the annual accounts
• Hard copy submitted by post on 29 May
• Uploaded to Monitor portal by 9am on 30 May
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Key Dates and Milestones
Key Date
28 May
29 May

Milestone
Final draft version of ARA document discussed and
approved by the Audit Committee and Board of
Directors
Hard copy version of final combined ARA document
posted to Monitor

30 May

Soft copy version of final combined ARA document
uploaded to Monitor portal before 9am

26 June

Submitted version laid before Parliament

28 June

Quality Account submitted to the Department of
Health and NHS Choices as a stand alone document

18 September

ARA and Annual Review received by Council of
Governors and made available at Annual Members
Meeting
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Recommendation
Subject to the changes outlined on slide 5, the Board of
Directors is asked to:
Approve the final draft of the Trust Annual Report and
Accounts 2012/13; and

Note the process and timeline for submission
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Annual Report and Accounts

2012/13

Enc. 2.1.1b

Enc. 2.1.1b

King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Report and Accounts 2012/13

Presented to Parliament pursuant to Schedule 7, paragraph 25(4) of the
National Health Service Act 2006
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Introduction

Introduction
Who We Are
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust is one of London’s largest and busiest
teaching hospitals. It has a reputation for
providing excellent local healthcare in the
London boroughs of Lambeth and
Southwark, and a range of specialist
services for patients across south east
England and beyond.
Recognised nationally and internationally for
its work in liver disease and transplantation,
neurosciences, diabetes, cardiac services,
haemato-oncology, and fetal medicine,
King’s is also a Major Trauma Centre and
has a Hyper-acute Stroke Unit, and plays a
key role in the training and education of
medical, nursing and dental students.
King’s College Hospital is part of King's
Health Partners (KHP) Academic Health
Science Centre (AHSC), a pioneering
collaboration between King's College
London, King's College Hospital, Guy's and

St Thomas' and South London and
Maudsley NHS Foundation Trusts. KHP is
one of only five accredited AHSCs in the UK
and brings together an unrivalled range and
depth of clinical and research expertise,
spanning both physical and mental health.
By combining strengths KHP is driving
improvements in care for patients, allowing
them to benefit from breakthroughs in
medical science and making sure they
receive leading edge treatment at the
earliest possible opportunity.
King’s works closely with other healthcare
organisations, commissioners and
neighbouring hospitals to deliver strong
networks of healthcare locally.
In 2013 King’s College Hospital celebrates
100 years on Denmark Hill in Camberwell.
For more information visit www.kch.nhs.uk
or www.kingshealthpartners.org or Follow
us on Twitter @KingsCollegeNHS

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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Introduction

Chair’s Statement
One hundred years ago,
King’s College Hospital
moved from Portugal Street
near the Strand to a new
site on Denmark Hill in the
leafy suburb of
Camberwell. It was built on
donated land and funded
by public subscription to
care for the growing local community there.
Since then, King’s College Hospital has had a
fascinating and eventful first century here,
and seen some dramatic changes – from its
use as a military hospital in the First World
War to its current role as a specialist teaching
hospital with an international reputation.
However, we have never forgotten that link to
our local population, and our services for the
people of Camberwell, Brixton and Peckham
still form the core of what we do. We will be
celebrating our anniversary with a whole
range of events and initiatives across the
next few months and I hope you will be able
to join us for some of them.
One of the most significant changes in recent
history could well take place in the coming
year, as we continue our discussions around
the possibility of acquiring the Princess Royal
University Hospital in Bromley. Since the
Trust Special Administrator- appointed to look
at options for the future of South London
Healthcare Trust - first published his
recommendations, we have been working
hard to put together a business case in a
relatively short period of time. As always, our
staff have risen magnificently to the
challenge, and we look forward to the
opportunity to bring King’s services to the
people of Bromley.
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During the course of the last year, we
welcomed two new non-executive directors to
the Board. Sue Slipman joined us from the
Foundation Trust Network, where she was
Chief Executive, and Professor Ghulam Mufti
was appointed our Medical School
representative. I would also like to take this
opportunity to thank his predecessor,
Professor Alan McGregor who gave us nine
years on the Board and as Chair of the Board
Quality and Governance Committee offering
invaluable advice and insight.
So, a successful hard-working year behind us
and another one in prospect for 2013/14. I
think those far-sighted people who planned
the new hospital in Camberwell around the
turn of the 20th century would be pleased at
the success of their plan.

Professor Sir George Alberti,
Chairman

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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Introduction

Chief Executive’s Statement
A good year for King’s

The real test of the
success of a hospital
has to be how its
patient population
regards it, and I am
delighted to report that
our patients have told
us that they are happier with the quality of
care, and their experience at King's than
ever before. We are the most improved
hospital in our London peer group according
to the National Inpatient Survey. Our staff
survey results have also improved in all
areas. We have had more success in
reducing the incidence of healthcare
acquired infections, and are very close to
our ambition of zero cases of MRSA.
We are also playing a very important role in
the reorganisation and leadership of the
healthcare system in south London - with
King’s Health Partners, the Academic
Health Science Network, and with the
potential acquisition of the Princess Royal
University Hospital in Bromley.
Pressures on King’s continue to increase as
the number of patients we treat grows. As a
result of these pressures, we just failed the
4 hour wait in A&E target in Q4 for the first
time ever, and the financial pressures on us
are enormous. The solution to these
financial challenges can no longer be
resolved by efficiency savings year on year,
so in keeping with our 'Always Aiming
Higher' value, we have been playing our
part in redesigning the whole healthcare
system locally. We see the acquisition of
the PRUH by King’s College Hospital as an
important part of our future sustainability,
provided the business case proves positive.

We are also pleased with progress with
King's Health Partners, and the decision to
consider rigorously the options on how we
could organise ourselves in the future.
Although that process is not driven by cost
pressures, we should be open to all ideas
that improve efficiency in pursuit of better
patient care.
The recent reaffirmation of commitment to
the Integrated Care Programme by all
partners in Southeast London is another
important development. With the right
energy driving change, we will see patients
treated closer to home, in the right setting,
which ought to improve outcomes, and
release hard pressed hospital capacity to
tertiary patients who need specialist care.
So, as I reflect on the past year, I am proud
of what Team King's has achieved, and I am
excited by the opportunities that present
themselves in response to the pressures we
face. I hope you enjoy reading this report,
and I will conclude by returning to two of our
values: 'Inspiring Confidence in our Care'
and 'Making a Difference in our local
community'. One of our proudest
achievements this year has been the
expansion of the King’s Volunteers
Programme. Patients and staff alike have
responded very positively, the volunteers
are making a real difference to patient
experience, and the Government is
supporting us to explore new ways
volunteers can help both within the hospital
and bridging hospital and home. As we
move into our second century on Denmark
Hill, there is never a dull moment at King's!

Timothy Smart, Chief Executive
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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Directors’ Report
Goal 3: Leading change across the
system

Directors’ Report
King’s Vision and Forward Plan
Everything that King’s College Hospital
does is focused on patient need. From local
services to global specialties, the vision of
this hospital is for patients to experience the
highest possible quality of care.
In May each year the Trust submits a
forward plan, known as the Trust Annual
Plan, to the independent regulator, Monitor.
The plan provides a framework for decisionmaking and performance tracking. With
significant structural changes in the NHS in
England, changes to commissioning
arrangements local reorganisation of acute
healthcare in south east London, and the
continuing pressure on public finances, a
robust strategy is required to take the Trust
into the ‘new NHS’ and to ensure the
delivery of high quality care now and in the
future.
Used as a cornerstone of scrutiny and
assessment of organisational fitness and
progress, the plan sets out three goals and
10 supporting objectives, which are:

Goal 1: Quality improvement




Improved patient safety
Enhanced clinical effectiveness
Improved patient experience

Goal 2: Financial sustainability and
efficiency
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Cost improvement plans and income
diversification
Transformation and improved productivity








Developing local integrated care services
Developing regional and national specialist
networks
Strengthening research and education
across the Trust, King’s Health Partners and
south London AHSN
Improving population health
Supporting integration of KHP

The Trust Quality Account sets out the
priority areas for the coming year, as well as
evaluating performance against last year’s
priorities. The Quality Account can be found
on pages xx-xx.
Following the inquiry into Mid Staffordshire
NHS Foundation Trust and the subsequent
report by Robert Francis QC, a series of
work streams is underway to ensure that the
Trust responds appropriately to the report’s
recommendations, supporting work already
in place towards ensuring that the right care
and conditions of care exist at all times in all
places within the Trust.
A Francis Report Working Group has been
established to oversee this work. More
information about the work steams and
membership of the working group can be
found on pages 14 and 67 respectively.
King’s Health Partners Academic Health
Sciences Centre
King’s Health Partners Academic Health
Sciences Centre was set up four years ago.
It brings together a world-leading research
led university (King’s College London) and
three successful NHS Foundation Trusts
(Guy’s and St Thomas’, King’s College
Hospital and South London and Maudsley).

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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This Academic Health Sciences Centre sits
at the heart of a diverse community in south
London and aims to provide the people who
live here with access to the best health
services possible. At the same time, it aims
to develop new treatments that will benefit
people locally, nationally and internationally.
Whilst a great deal has been achieved over
the last four years, KHP believes there may
be a case for changing the way the
organisations are structured so that it can
go further, faster. This could involve
merging the three NHS organisations and
becoming more closely integrated with the
university partner King’s College London.
In July 2012, the Boards of Guy’s and St
Thomas’, King’s College Hospital and South
London and Maudsley NHS foundation
trusts each agreed to continue exploring
plans for an organisational merger and a
strengthened partnership with academic
partner King’s College London. The
proposal was set out in a Strategic Outline
Case which was approved by each of the
Boards and King’s College London,
although the university would not be a legal
partner in any merger.
Following this decision, the King’s Fund
health think-tank was commissioned to
undertake an independent review of the
plans. Their report found support and
enthusiasm for the vision of a new
organisation and identified challenges that
would need to be addressed for a merger to
happen at some point in the future.
Work then began on developing a full
business case to test rigorously whether the
benefits this proposal is based on can be
realised and that the risks can be properly
managed. This full business case will be
completed in autumn 2013.

Finance Review
2012/13 was the third full year of
implementing the Trust’s Medium Term
Financial Strategy, designed to address the
requirement to improve overall efficiency in
light of the restrictions on public
expenditure. For the second year running,
the Trust started the year with an efficiency
target representing nearly 5.8% of turnover.
82% of this target was achieved in-year
and, together with increased income from
the high demand for Trust services, this
allowed the Trust to achieve a surplus for
the year. The surplus was £3.2m before
exceptional items, a small improvement on
the previous year and broadly in line with
the Trust Annual Plan submitted to Monitor
at the start of the year. Impairments on
completed capital projects during the year
generated exceptional items of £9.1m,
leaving a retained deficit of £5.9m
Table 1: Key financial indicators
Full year (£’000)
Income
Expenditure
Operating surplus
Net Financing costs
Public dividends
Share of loss of associate
(GSTS Pathology LLP)
accounted for using the equity
method
Surplus

£679,260
£667,894
£ 11,366
£ 18,021
£ 7,764
£
738

£ 5,917

The overall liquidity position of the Trust
was in line with the plan value. There was
also some slippage in planned capital
schemes; these schemes will progress in
the new financial year. This slippage was
offset by delays in receiving payment due to
activity levels being above contracted
values. The Trust has been able to maintain
a position where there was no requirement

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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Directors’ Report
to access its short term working capital
facility1. The combined effect of the surplus
and liquidity has resulted in the Trust
achieving a year-end financial risk rating of
3 using the Monitor system – a medium
level rating.
Value for money and improved efficiency
Divisions and corporate departments
delivered 82% of the planned efficiency
schemes during 2012/13, a slightly lower
rate compared to 2011/12. For 2013/14, the
Trust will be concentrating on conducting
integrated service reviews, led by clinicians,
to improve patient pathways and
experience. In addition reviews are being
carried out amongst the medical and
nursing workforce to ensure that resources
are concentrated in the areas of highest
need. Performance is peer reviewed as well
as considered regularly by the King’s
Executive and the Board Finance and
Performance Committee, facilitated by the
deployment of the Trust’s new online
performance management system.
Trading environment and financial risks
Despite commissioner attempts to manage
demand and to redirect patients to more
community based healthcare provision,
demand on the Trust’s facilities increased
again during the year.
Designation as both a Major Trauma Centre
and Hyper-acute Stroke Unit has also
increased the number of patients referred to
the hospital. The pressure on facilities
caused by the high level of emergency
activity affected the number of elective
patients treated and caused a knock on
1

The Trust has in place a £35m working capital
facility, to protect it from the effects of any shortterm fluctuations in cash flow.

12

effect to emergency care waiting times
during the final quarter of the year. Future
demand projections indicate that there is a
need to expand capacity on the Denmark
Hill site to manage this demand. Planned
expansion during 2013/14 includes
approximately 90 additional inpatient beds
and the Trust is also exploring the potential
for utilising facilities at South London
Healthcare Trust sites. In addition the Trust
is working with Guy’s and St Thomas’ and
other providers in south east London to
provide the most clinically effective
arrangement of services for the local
population.
The continued economic downturn means
that there will pressure on NHS income
streams for the foreseeable future. It is also
likely that central funding streams will be
squeezed, tariffs will fall even after allowing
for inflation and commissioners will seek to
reduce activity. The combined effects of
these restrictions and associated risks are
dealt with within the Trust’s Medium Term
Financial Strategy, which is currently in its
fourth revision. A full business case is
currently in preparation to ascertain the
potential benefits of closer integration of
King’s Health Partners. This could
potentially be realised by means of service
and back office consolidation. King’s
Commercial Services continues to diversify
income by expanding commercial activities
both in the UK and overseas. The Trust’s
first non-UK operation will open in Abu
Dhabi, UAE in September 2013.
Non-clinical activities
KCH Commercial Services Limited, the
company established to oversee
commercial operations, has now been in
operation for five years. During that time,
the first of the operating companies,

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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Agnentis Limited, has continued to grow. It
has expanded its product range to include a
range of software solutions specially
configured for use in the NHS in conjunction
with strategic partners. The financial
performance of GSTS Pathology, a venture
between King’s, Guy’s and St Thomas’ and
Serco plc, has improved during 2012 and
the venture delivered a small surplus in the
year ended December 2012.

audit information and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information.

During the reporting period, income from the
provision of goods and services for the
purposes of the health service in England
was greater than from the provision of
goods and services for any other purposes.

Borrowing and capital plans
Monitor set a prudential borrowing limit for
the Trust of £141m. Due to the adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards,
the majority of this limit is consumed by past
expenditure on the private finance initiative
schemes for the Golden Jubilee Wing and
Ruskin Wing.

Changes to accounting policies
There were no significant changes to
accounting policies during the year.
Cost allocation requirements
The Trust has complied with the cost
allocation and charging requirements set
out in HM Treasury and Office of Public
Sector Information guidance.
External audit services
Deloitte LLP are the Trust’s external
auditors having been appointed by the
Council of Governors in May 2011 for a
period of three years following a competitive
tendering exercise. The Trust incurred
£81,000 in audit services fees in relation to
the statutory audit for the year to 31 March
2013 and £2,000 in respect of regulatory
reporting.
So far as the Trust’s directors are aware,
there is no relevant audit information of
which the auditors are unaware. The Trust’s
directors have taken all of the steps that
they ought to have taken as directors in
order to make themselves aware of any

After making enquiries, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the NHS
Foundation Trust has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts.

During the year, the Trust has approved
funding of £60m by the Foundation Trust
Financing Facility for the construction of a
new critical care facility. Enabling works for
the scheme have commenced, with full
operation anticipated during 2015.
Fundraising campaigns were instituted to
provide a new helipad facility to augment
the Trust’s position as a Major Trauma
Centre for south east London and the wider
south east and to plan for the construction
of a new building to celebrate the centenary
of the Denmark Hill site to further enhance
the research capabilities of the Trust’s world
renowned liver, haematology, cardiac and
fetal medicine services. These facilities will
complement the facilities available and
those being developed in the partner
organisations within the Academic Health
Sciences Centre.
The policy of maintaining the Trust’s asset
base by committing capital expenditure on

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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existing assets at a level broadly consistent
with their rate of depreciation will continue.

patients and, with the exception of quarter
four, for admitted patients.

Full details of financial performance in
2012/13, the responsibilities of the
Accounting Officer and a statement from the
auditors can be found in the Annual
Accounts 2012/13 on pages xxx-xxx.

Following publication of the Francis Report,
the Trust has considered its response to the
report and its recommendations. A review of
processes has been initiated which has
involved setting up a series of work
streams:

Operating and Performance
Review
Operating and performance review
2012/13 was also a challenging year for the
Trust in terms of performance, a situation
mirrored across London and the NHS.
Key performance highlights in 2012/13
Throughout 2012/13 the Trust has faced
unprecedented growth in emergency
attendances, admissions and patient acuity.
Despite this the Trust succeeded in
delivering key national and local targets for
cancer waits, cases of post 48-hour
Meticillin-resistant Staphylococcus Aureus
(MRSA) bacteraemia and Clostridium
Difficile (C. difficile), standard hospital
mortality rates and venousthromboembolism (VTE) assessment.
The Trust met targets for emergency care in
quarters 1 to 3, but failed them in quarter 4
due to the rise in attendances prompted by
a combination of factors, including the rising
volume and acuity of local medical patients,
an outbreak of norovirus and the temporary
closure of some local hospitals. In line with
the declaration in the Trust Annual Plan, the
Trust failed to meet the 18-week referral to
treatment (RTT) target in quarter 1.
Performance improved in-year, and this
target was met in all remaining quarters for
incomplete pathways and non-admitted

14







Enhancing clinical and nursing
standards;
Listening to staff;
Listening to patients and family;
Reviewing performance & quality
management processes; and
Ensuring consistent communications &
involvement.

Emergency Department ‘4-hour wait’
performance
The Trust has demonstrated a robust
performance in recent years in meeting the
target of 95% of emergency patients seen
within four hours. Significant investment in
preparation for the winter months, when the
target is most at risk, ensured that a rate of
96.4% was achieved in quarter 3. However
in quarter 4, due to the exceptional
circumstances outlined above, the Trust
failed the target for the first time since 2009.
The Trust continues to manage emergency
performance at a senior executive level on a
daily basis and is working with
commissioners to address the issue of
sustained additional demand.
Access targets
High levels of emergency admissions in the
final quarter of 2011/12 resulted in the Trust
failing to meet the 18-week referral to
treatment targets in the first quarter of
2012/13. This was anticipated and declared

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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in the Trust Annual Plan. Throughout the
year the Trust has maintained a strong
focus on improving performance in this area
and plans to make additional capacity
available during the second quarter of
2013/14, to ensure that the referral to
treatment position becomes more robust.
National waiting time targets for cancer
patients were achieved ensuring that cancer
and suspected cancer patients were treated
in a timely manner throughout the year.
Contributing to the overall delivery of targets
was the Trust’s success in continuing to
reduce average length of stay for nonelective patients. This is predominantly due
to improved patient medical and surgical
assessment unit models, including an acute
assessment unit.
Infection control
The number of cases of C.difficile continued
to reduce this year. Following an
improvement of 8% in 2011/12, the Trust
recorded a further 45% improvement in
2012/13, reducing the number of cases from
97 in 2011/12 to 54 cases in 2012/13. This
has put the Trust in a strong position to
meet the 2013/14 quota of 49 cases.
The number of MRSA cases reduced from
five in 2011/12 to two in 2012/13. The quota
set by Monitor for 2012/13 was six cases.
Other
In line with guidance from the Department of
Health the Trust has continued reporting inhospital deaths using the Summary
Hospital-level Mortality Indicator (SHMI).
For 2011/12, the Trust’s SHMI was 71
compared to the expected index of 100,
indicating that outcomes were better than
expected last year. Performance for

2012/13 showed further improvement with a
SHMI index of 66.
Finally, the Trust delivered above the
nationally set target of 90% of patients
being assessed for VTE and in 2013/14 will
focus on appropriate treatments for
assessed patients.
Further details on key quality improvements
and the Trust’s performance against goals
agreed with commissioners can be found in
the Quality Account 2012/13.
Cleaning, catering and transport
services
The Trust has contractual arrangements
with Medirest for the provision of cleaning,
catering, portering and linen services.
During the reporting period, negotiations
with Medirest were concluded and these
contracts were extracted from the existing
agreement. The new agreement gives the
Trust direct management of this service
provider and it encourages sustained
improvement and patient focussed delivery
of these essential services. This links to
patient perception and satisfaction, as
determined by the Trust’s internal patient
survey ‘How are we doing?’
The Trust has a contractual arrangement
with Savoy Ventures Ltd for the provision of
patient transport services. This contract is
currently being tendered. The new contract
will start on the 01 April 2014.

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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Regulatory Ratings
The Trust makes a quarterly submission to
Monitor which includes a financial and
governance risk rating.
As noted in the previous section, when the
Trust submitted its forward plan to Monitor
in May 2012, the performance indicators at
risk of not being achieved in 2012/13 were
declared. These were:




MRSA;
C. difficile; and
18-week Referral to Treatment (RTT)

Accordingly, the Trust planned for a

governance rating of ‘amber-red’ in quarter
1 and this was confirmed by Monitor.
However, this was followed by consecutive
‘green’ ratings in quarters 2 and 3, which
represented an improvement from 2011/12.
Due to the extreme pressure on the Trust
and across south east London in quarter 4
and the subsequent failure of the Trust to
meet the emergency care target, the quarter
4 rating was ‘amber-red’. The financial risk
rating has remained at 3 throughout the
year.
Tables 2 and 3 below outline the financial
and governance ratings for 2011/12 and
2012/13.

Table 2: Monitor Financial and Governance Ratings 2011/12

Financial risk
rating
Governance
risk rating

Annual Plan
2011/12

Q1 2011/12

Q2 2011/12

Q3 2011/12

Q4 2011/12

3

3

3

3

3

Amber-Red

Amber-Green

Amber-Green

Amber-Red

Amber-Red

Table 3: Monitor Financial and Governance Ratings 2012/13

Financial risk
rating
Governance
risk rating
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Annual Plan
2012/13

Q1 2012/13

Q2 2012/13

Q3 2012/13

Q4 2012/13

3

3

3

3

3

Red

Amber-Red

Green

Green

Amber-Red

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13

Enc. 2.1.1b

Directors’ Report

Research and Development
As a world renowned research institution,
the Trust aims to integrate clinical research
into the daily care received by patients and
is committed to improving quality of care
and to making a contribution to wider health
improvement.
Over 400 principal investigators (PIs) across
24 different specialities participated in
research during 2012/13. The PIs were a
mix of scientists, clinical staff (medical,
nursing, physiotherapy, pharmacy, dietetics
and many others) and support staff,
demonstrating the successful integration of
research into all clinical arenas with
associated benefit to patients and staff.
5880 patients who were receiving NHS
services provided or sub-contracted by the
Trust were recruited to 183 National
Institute for Health Research (NIHR)
adopted studies during the period 1 October
2011–31 September 2012. This represents
a 27% increase in recruitment from
2010/11. Additionally, the Trust was
involved in approximately 450 own-account
studies and 200 commercial clinical
research studies during the same time
period, for which further patients cohorts
were recruited.
Two rounds of competitive bids for research
funding, with a total investment of
£2,650,000, have been supported this year.
The 37 projects have been highly
successful with over 50 publications in high
impact journals, three young investigator
awards, five charitable grant awards, and
fellowships from the NIHR and the British
Heart Foundation, which in total have
generated over £4m in further grant income.

Listed below are a few examples of the
research which reflect the high quality,
patient focused research that is being
conducted and supported by the Trust and
how it impacts and benefits the local
community and influences national policy
and standards of care.
Child health
Professor Anil Dhawan has been awarded
£1.46m from a Department of Health and an
NIHR capacity building grant for the
establishment of a cell therapy unit for the
production of clinical grade cells. This
follows his important work in hepatocyte
transplantation in children. NIHR Senior
Investigator Professor Anne Greenough
continues her leading research into the lung
biology of neonates, supported by Asthma
UK, NIHR, MRC and the Charles Wolfson
Charitable Trust.
Accident & Emergency
Among the projects the A&E team are
collaborating on is a study which aims to
develop and evaluate interventions for
adolescents with alcohol use disorders who
present through emergency departments.
They are collaborating with critical care
clinicians in studies examining optimal
management of sepsis, a major cause of
mortality and morbidity.
Gerontology
Julie Whitney, a physiotherapist in the
gerontology department, has been awarded
£248,000 by Research for Patient Benefit to
study a multi-interventional approach to the
prevention of falls in care homes.
Neurosciences
Dr Mike Samuel, Professor Ray Chaudhuri
and Dr Preshanth Reddy have developed a
patient related outcomes tool for adult
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movement disorders. It is expected that the
tool will be adopted for advanced therapies
in the treatment of Parkinson's disease,
initially in London, then the rest of the UK
and beyond.
Liver
Initially supported by an R&D grant from the
Trust and then with further funds from the
European Association for the Study of the
Liver, Dr. Harry Antoniades has continued
the department’s work on the role of
monocytes in liver disease, which has
subsequently led to an MRC Clinician
Scientist Fellowship from the Medical
Research Council.
Pathology
The Trust is the largest of the three national
centres treating patients with biliary atresia.
The causes of this rare but serious condition
are not clear, something the virology team
are attempting to rectify. Work by Dr
Mohamed Ibrahim continues on the genetic
basis of issues in the human immune
system.
Anaesthetics
In collaboration with St Thomas’ and King’s
College London the anaesthetics
department at the Trust has been helping to
develop an innovative new monitor for
continuous blood pressure monitoring by a
non-invasive route, which was commercially
launched this year. Anaesthesia has
developed from a department with very little
research to one that is undertaking several
studies including the examination of
neurocognitive deficit following surgery and
the effect of distant ischaemic pre
conditioning in cardiac surgery.

18

Information Governance
The Information Governance Steering
Group is responsible for reviewing the
effectiveness of the Trust’s information
governance systems and processes.
The Trust’s Senior Information Risk Owner,
Caldicott Guardian and Information Security
Manager, together with other colleagues,
play a key role in ensuring the highest
practical standards and systems for the
confidential handling of patient information
and personal data within the Trust.
During the year 2012/13 there was one
serious incident related to a confidentiality
breach, the details of which are summarised
in table 4 on the next page.
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Table 4: Serious Incidents involving information loss or confidentiality breach
Date of incident

Summary of incident

Number of people affected

05/10/2012

Identifiable patient data was sent
outside of the Trust without consent

359 patients of King’s
College Hospital

Nature of incident
Identifiable patient data was shared with the researchers at the University of Coventry, for
inclusion in a bespoke database designed to collect tracking data of eligible but non-consented
people in addition to collecting study data from consenting participants, which is a breach of data
protection and research ethics and guidelines.
Action taken
 The University of Coventry immediately suspended recruitment to the study and a formal
investigation of the study was undertaken;
 All non-consented data was identified within the database and deleted;
 The Trust’s Caldicott Guardian undertook a review of the project. The Information
Commissioner (IC) was informed of the breach by one of the other trusts involved in the
project;
 The breach was presented to the Committee for research Oversight and Conduct and an
investigation was conducted;
 A full protocol amendment was made to ensure greater involvement of clinical investigators.
This was approved by the Research Ethics Committees and R&D at each site; and
 Additional security protocols were applied to the database.

Workforce Review



Staff development
King’s College Hospital is committed to
ensuring that each and every member of
staff is supported to realise their full
potential at work. The Trust continually
invests in training and development and
encourages staff to take advantage of
continued professional development,
qualifications and training in order to attain
their best and has been recognised as an
‘Investor in People’.



By encouraging people to innovate and to
retain a fresh approach to what they do,
Trust staff continue to deliver better care.
Training and support offered this year
include the following:



Local young people have been recruited
to apprentice positions in a variety of
roles, both clinical and non-clinical,
resulting in an excellent track record of
completions and subsequent permanent
employment;
A new apprenticeship scheme was
launched for six young people to work in
technical roles in the Emergency
Department, Theatres and Renal. This
scheme will be followed by the
opportunity to progress to a foundation
degree;
Staff were seconded to gain first or
second professional qualifications in a
range of occupations. This included
healthcare assistants training to become
nurses and adult nurses training to
become midwives;
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A large number of staff gained specialist
post-graduate qualifications and new
managers and leaders attained Institute
of Leadership and Management
qualifications. A front line leadership
programme, which has been Highly
Commended by both the Healthcare
People Management Association and
the Training Journal, continued to run in
conjunction with Guy’s and St Thomas’;
and
Outpatient staff and managers have
been supported to work differently and
more effectively.

Medical workforce training and
development
Through the work of the Postgraduate
Medical and Dental Education Department
(PGMDE), the Trust continues to make
significant progress in its quest to be at the
forefront of medical workforce training and
development, to the benefit of both patients
and doctors.
The PGMDE received recognition when
awarded the 2012 London Deanery
Elisabeth Paice award for Best PGME
Team and received a citation for ‘excellence
in managing trainees in difficulty’ from the
South Thames Foundation School.
Below are a few examples of the training
offered and supported by the PGMDE in the
past year:
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A post-graduate certificate in Healthcare
Education Management has been
developed for those involved in
healthcare education management
across the country;
Following a programme of appraisal
training and Trust-wide colleague and
patient feedback, consultants are







undergoing successful revalidation. In
addition, a Training Tomorrow’s Trainers
programme has been running, aimed at
senior registrars in preparation for their
first consultant post;
A coaching and mentoring scheme has
been developed for trainees and trainers
alike, focussing on unlocking potential
and maximising performance;
Simulation training, which is integral to
the patient safety agenda, has gone
from strength to strength and has played
a key role in consolidating the Trust’s
position as one of the Lead Providers for
south London, running post-graduate
training programs across a wide range
of specialties; and
Leadership development programmes
have been embedded at all levels of the
medical workforce and clinical
leadership development programmes
have been introduced at foundation
level.

There is a strong link between the Medical
School and the PGMDE team, which
supports a robust transition from phase five
to the first year as a doctor. The Trust was
described as exemplary for faculty
engagement and a positive learning
environment by the General Medical
Council when they visited in October 2012.
For medical students the new phase three
introduction course in September saw a
comprehensive programme delivered for
students on key Trust policies to enable
them make the most of their time at King’s.
Additional clinical skills teaching sessions
are regularly delivered for students in the
run-up to their examinations. Teaching
quality is monitored through regular student
feedback.
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A shadowing week for new doctors has
been established and, as the first Trust to
do so, this practice has influenced the
Department of Health’s directive for this to
be implemented nationally.
Positive about disabled people
The Trust has a Disability Charter which
sets out its ethos and a firm commitment to
disability equality. The Trust also has a
Disability and Deaf Guide which outlines the
responsibilities and behaviours expected of
staff and managers.
The Trust’s recruitment, training and equal
opportunities policies are designed to
support those who declare a disability.
Policies apply from the pre-employment
stage, when applying for vacancies, to
supporting those who become disabled
during the course of their employment and
ensure that all staff have equal access to
promotion and development opportunities.

Occupational Health and Wellbeing
The department has seen a gradual
increase in clinical activity over the last year
particularly in relation to pre-employment
screening and routine immunisation clinics.
Nursing, medical, therapies and counsellors
have all seen a steady growth in activity and
appointment activity in general has risen by
almost 40% over the period 2010 to 2012
with therapists seeing the largest growth.
Occupational Health and Wellbeing staff
numbers have remained the same since
2010 and so the increase in demand
remains a key issue for the service,
particularly at seasonal peaks.
The annual wellbeing event is open to all
staff and in 2012 again proved to be
popular. Seasonal ‘flu vaccines were
successfully delivered throughout the winter
months. Face to face counselling and the
24/7 helpline remain fully utilised services.
Other significant activities include:

All recruiting managers must attend a formal
Trust recruitment and selection training
course to understand the significance of the
Equality Act (2010) and how it works in
practice. Recruiting managers must select
for interview or assessment all candidates
who meet the essential requirements for the
role and have indicated they have a
disability, as defined in the Equality Act
(2010). At the interview, discussions can
also take place on reasonable adjustments
that may be necessary for a candidate to
perform effectively in their new role.
In November 2012 JobCentrePlus
conducted the annual formal assessment
and the Trust was re-accredited as a
nationally recognised Positive About
Disabled People ‘Two-Ticks’ employer.





Trust key performance indicator score
cards and quarterly reports;
Staff Wellbeing Group with key
stakeholder engagement; and
Improvements in the management of
occupational health patient records
through a new filing system and
archiving project.

It is anticipated that the work towards Safe
and Effective Quality Occupational Health
Service accreditation in line with the
national standard will be completed by the
end of 2013.
The Trust annual sickness rate for 2012/13
was 3.3%. This benchmarks well in
comparison to public and private sector
organisations. The most cited reasons for
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storage and transport of chemicals and
spillage procedures.

absence continue to be muscular skeletal
and mental health issues.
Health and Safety
Health and Safety (H&S) in the Trust is
overseen by the Organisational Safety
Committee (OSC), working with the Patient
Safety Committee and Joint Consultative
Council. A number of sub committees and
work streams report bi-annually to the OSC
on aspects of H&S, these committees
include: Blood Borne Virus, Emergency
Preparedness and Business Continuity,
Environment, Facilities Risk Management,
Moving and Handling, Workforce (Education
and Development) and the Safer King’s
Community Panel.
In 2012/13 the Organisational Safety
Committee:
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Continued to support completion of H&S
checklists and risk assessments which
prompt a wide range of safety controls;
Continued to monitor safety training
attendance for clinical and non-clinical
staff including a strategic review of
compliance training by the Education
and Development team which clearly
identified training requirements for all
Trust staff. Clinical divisions have
nominated training leads and focused
action is being driven centrally to
improve access to courses and increase
attendance rates; and
Supported the development of and/or
reviewed and approved a number of
H&S related policies including: Safer
Sharps Policy and Radiation Protection
Policy. Work is currently underway on
policies to address traffic safety and the
control of substances hazardous to
health including assessments, safe

In May 2012 the Environment Agency
performed an inspection of radiation
management in the Trust and no nonconformities were raised. In September
2012 the Health and Safety Executive
confirmed their satisfaction that appropriate
remedial action had been taken to address
the points raised by their March 2012
inspection of dermatitis management.
Overall, the number of H&S incidents in
2012/13 decreased by 10% compared with
the previous year. There were 35 incidents
reported under the Reporting of Injuries,
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations (1995). All incidents have been
investigated and no underlying trend was
found.
King’s Commendation
The commendation awards scheme was set
up to recognise those individuals who make
outstanding contributions to patient care or
hospital services.
During 2012/13 the Trust presented
commendations to 20 individuals and six
teams. Among the recipients were Nurse
Tosan Okubule, Dental Nurse Amie Brown,
Stroke Consultant Nurse Maria Fitzpatrick
and Security Officer Elvis Chiaghanam, the
trauma team and the liver transplant team.
Actions taken in the financial year to
provide employees systematically with
information on matters of concern to
them as employees:


Corporate and local induction training is
mandatory and is given to all new
members of staff, along with a Trust
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email account through which key
messages such as the monthly Chief
Executive’s Brief and King’s Daily
Bulletin are communicated;
The Trust has a clear
management/committee structure and a
culture of regular team meetings to
ensure that key issues are cascaded
throughout the organisation;
Monthly Joint Consultation Committee
(JCC) meetings update staff
representatives on Trust plans, such as
the proposed acquisition of the Princess
Royal University Hospital (PRUH), the
development of King’s Health Partners
and the financial position. A nominated
JCC representative has a seat as a
stakeholder governor on the Council of
Governors;
Representatives of the Trust’s three
staff-led diversity groups sit on the
Equality and Diversity Committee of the
Board of Directors; and
Daily news updates on the staff intranet
and the King’s Health Partners staff ebulletin are published throughout the
year.

Actions taken in the financial year to
encourage the involvement of employees
in the NHS Foundation Trust’s
performance:




Financial and operational challenges
faced by the Trust are regularly
communicated through the Chief
Executive’s Brief to staff and the Chief
Executive’s report to the Board of
Directors;
During the course of the year,
performance appraisals were conducted
for 86.18% of staff with 12 months or
more service;





In the 2012 NHS Staff Survey, King’s
College Hospital was rated in the top
20% of trusts whose staff had wellstructured appraisals.
The Trust was also in the top 20% for
the number of staff who reported good
communication between staff and senior
managers and for staff feeling able to
contribute towards improvements at
work.

Actions taken in the financial year to
achieve a common awareness on the
part of all employees of the financial and
economic factors affecting the
performance of the NHS Foundation
Trust:




There are regular presentations on the
Trust’s financial position at the JCC,
reports and briefs from the Chief
Executive, and staff intranet briefings;
and
Several Chief Executive Briefs
throughout the year focused on the
Trust’s financial position, the importance
of achieving significant cost reductions
and the role of individual staff within
that.

Actions taken in the financial year to
consult employees or their
representatives on a regular basis so
that the views of employees can be taken
into account in making decisions which
are likely to affect their interests:




Meetings of the JCC took place
throughout 2012/13 and were well
attended by representatives of Trust
management and of recognised trade
unions;
The JCC continued its rolling review of
workforce policies and had the
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development of King’s Health Partners
and the proposed acquisition of the
PRUH as a standing item on the
agenda;
The Trust’s staff-led diversity groups
met on a regular basis, and invited



senior members of staff to discuss
issues of interest to the groups;
The Trust has an active Staff
Engagement Group which meets
quarterly to review staff engagement
and share best practice on this topic.
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Equality and Diversity
King’s College Hospital is located in one of
the most diverse areas in London, and the
UK as a whole. For this reason, it is
important that equality and diversity issues
remain front-of-mind and that the Trust
works towards ‘effortless inclusion’.
Changing policies to reflect our equality
commitments
The Trust reviews all existing and planned
policies against equality and diversity
indicators on a three year cycle. This is to
ensure that everything the Trust does takes
into consideration how staff and patients
from different backgrounds might be
impacted. All policies are equality impact
assessed and the assessments are
available via the Trust’s Equality and
Diversity webpage:
www.kch.nhs.uk/about/corporate/equalityand-diversity
Staff have 24/7 access to two support
services: Dignity at Work Helpline, which
supports staff in relation to bullying and
harassment, and Workplace Options, which
offers telephone, online and web-based
advice on a range of matters including legal
matters, financial management, and general
counselling). Kingsflex, the Trust’s flexible
working scheme, helps staff balance family
and work commitments.
National initiatives
In April 2012 the Trust implemented the
Department of Health’s Equality Delivery
System (EDS) and is now working towards
meeting the equality objectives which were
identified from the EDS assessment.
Relevant equality information is published to
ensure compliance with the Public Sector

Equality Duties as set out in the Equality Act
(2010)
We are ‘Positively Diverse’
The Trust’s commitment to promoting
equality and diversity has been recognised
through the award of ‘Positively Diverse’
lead site status.
The equality and diversity training
programme offered by the Trust helps to
ensure that staff have the skills and
knowledge they need to provide all patients
with consistently high standards of care.
Equality and diversity training is mandatory
for all new staff, and steps are being taken
to ensure that the majority of all staff have
received equality and diversity training.
The Trust’s equality agenda features heavily
in recruitment and selection training, which
is mandatory for all those taking part in
recruitment panels. It also informs the
Effective Management training course which
is aimed at ensuring that all line managers
receive training on applying the Trust’s key
workforce policies.
Training is provided to front line staff in deaf
and disability awareness, and to managers
for managing deaf and disabled staff
appropriately. To help improve the
experience of those working in the Trust
with a disability, disability network advisors
are trained to offer support to staff with a
disability and their line managers. Training
is also provided for staff working with people
who may have learning disabilities, and
there are e-learning programmes available
which relate to a range of diversity issues,
plus an introductory British Sign Language
e-learning programme. Self-marketing
courses are provided to help staff improve
their career prospects within the Trust.
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as an opportunity to celebrate the diversity
of staff and patients, and there are plans to
organise similar events in the future.
King’s commitment
The Trust is committed to employing a
workforce that reflects the diverse
communities it serves and King’s
recruitment policy supports this. 48% of staff
at the Trust are from Black and Minority
Ethnic (BME) backgrounds. The proportion
of senior staff from BME backgrounds has
increased by approximately 5% over the
past four years.
The Trust’s Equality & Diversity Committee
(EDC) meets quarterly and reviews
progress made against the Trust’s equality
objectives. The EDC produces an annual
report which highlights this progress. The
EDC also considers the Annual Workforce
Report, which details information regarding
the demographics of Trust staff.
Networks help ensure all voices are
heard
There are three staff-led diversity groups:
Cultural Diversity Network, Disability
Inclusivity Network and the Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual and transgender Forum. All three
groups perform a vital function in providing
support and networking opportunities for
group members, whilst at the same time
holding the Trust to account on its equality
and diversity commitments.
The Trust has worked closely with external
partners such as Stonewall. The Trust’s
submission for the 2012 Stonewall Top 100
Index highlighted significant progress from
2011. Over 1000 staff have been trained on
Stonewall’s Train the Trainer scheme.

Refer to table 5 on the next page for
information about the demographics of Trust
staff.

Staff Survey Report
As part of the NHS National Staff Survey for
2012, questionnaires were sent to 830
randomly selected Trust staff. This year’s
response rate was 49%, which was also the
national average (see table 6 on page 29 for
further information).
The 2012 staff survey results reported on 28
key findings (which had been reduced from
38 in 2011). King’s College Hospital was
ranked in the top 20% nationally for 13 of
the key findings and in the worst 20% for
seven key findings.

The annual diversity event was held in
November 2012. The Trust used this event
26
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Table 5: Workforce statistics
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Areas where the Trust performed well
included:






Support from immediate managers;
Staff agreeing that their role makes a
difference to patients;
Staff able to contribute towards
improvements at work;
Staff recommending the Trust as a place
to work/receive treatment; and
Staff reporting good communication
between senior management and staff.

Greatest improvement was observed in staff
job satisfaction, staff able to contribute
towards improvements at work, support
from immediate managers, fairness and
effectiveness of incident reporting
procedures and staff motivation at work.
A score of 3.95 was recorded for overall
staff engagement and this places the Trust
in the top 20% nationally.
There remain a number of areas requiring
significant improvement, which include:





Staff experiencing bullying, harassment
or abuse from patients, relatives or the
public and/or other staff;
The number of staff reporting
discrimination; and
Staff believing the Trust provides equal
opportunities for career progression or
promotion.

The staff survey results are discussed
widely and presentations are made to the
Board of Directors, the Council of
Governors, the Joint Consultation
Committee and other management groups.

Key findings of the survey
Key findings and scores highlighted in green
indicate that achieving a higher score this
year is a positive outcome. Key findings and
scores highlighted in yellow indicate that
achieving a lower score this year is a
positive outcome.
Due to the change in the number of key
findings it is not possible to correlate all of
the key findings with the 2011 scores and
as such N/A has been entered for 2011 on
table 9 on pages 30 and 31.
Significant statistical changes since
2011 survey
The Trust has statistically improved the
most since the 2011 survey in the following
key findings:



Staff experiencing physical violence
from other staff within the past 12
months; and
Impact of health and well-being on
ability to perform work or daily duties.

Partnership working with staff side
representatives
The monthly Joint Consultation Committee
(JCC) meetings enable Trust managers and
staff representatives to review employment
policies and practices. The local British
Medical Association representative has a
seat at the JCC table but, in practice,
specific matters relating to medical and
dental staff are discussed at the Local
Negotiating Committee.
Trust managers and consultants attend
monthly Consultants’ Committee meetings
to ensure that close working relationships
are maintained.

Details about top and bottom ranking scores
can be found in tables 7 and 8 on page 29.
28
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Table 6: Response Rates
2011/12
Trust
50%

Improvement/
Deterioration

2012/13

Nat. Average
54%

Trust
49%

Nat. Average
49%

1% Deterioration

Table 7: Top Ranking Scores
2011/12
Trust
Support from immediate
managers
Recommending King’s as a
place to work or receive
treatment
Good communication
between senior
management and staff
Staff agreeing their job
makes a difference to
patients
Staff able to contribute
towards improvements at
work

2012/13
Trust

3.58

Nat.
Average
3.61

3.79

Nat.
Average
3.61

Improvement/
Deterioration
0.03
improvement
0.23
improvement

3.82

3.50

4.05

3.57

N/A

N/A

40%

27%

N/A

90%

90%

94%

89%

4% improvement

65%

61%

75%

68%

10%
improvement

Improvement/
Deterioration
1% improvement

Table 8: Bottom Ranking Scores
2011/12
Trust
Staff experiencing
discrimination at work
Staff experiencing
harassment, bullying or
abuse from patients,
relatives or the public
Staff experiencing
harassment, bullying or
abuse from other staff
Believing the Trust provides
equal opportunities for
career progression or
promotion
Hand washing materials
available

2012/13
Trust

20%

Nat.
Average
13%

19%

Nat.
Average
11%

N/A

N/A

35%

30%

N/A

N/A

N/A

29%

24%

N/A

80%

90%

81%

88%
1% improvement

53%

66%

48%

60%

5% deterioration
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Table 9: Key findings of 2011/12 Survey
Best 20% scores

2011

2012

KF 1. Feeling satisfied with quality of work and patient care able to
deliver
KF2. Agreeing that their role makes a difference to patients

82%

85%

2012
Nat. Av
78%

90%

94%

89%

KF3. Work pressure felt by staff

N/A

2.92

3.08

KF6. Receiving job-relevant training, learning or development in the
last 12 months
KF8. Having well-structured appraisals in last 12 months

N/A

84%

81%

41%

42%

36%

KF9. Support from immediate managers

3.58

3.79

3.61

KF15. Fairness and effectiveness of incident reporting procedures

3.48

3.66

3.50

KF20. Feeling pressure in last 3 months to attend work when
feeling unwell
KF21. Reporting good communication between senior management
and staff
KF22. Able to contribute towards improvements at work

25%

25%

29%

N/A

40%

27%

65%

75%

68%

KF23. Staff job satisfaction

3.45

3.66

3.58

KF24. Staff recommendation of the Trust as a place to work /
receive treatment
KF25. Staff motivation at work

3.82

4.05

3.57

3.85

3.97

3.84

KF4. Effective Team Working

3.72

3.74

3.72

KF11. Suffering work related stress in last 12 months

30%

35%

37%

KF17. Experiencing physical violence from staff in last 12 months

N/A

2%

3%

Average
KF7. Appraised in last 12 months

83%

82%

84%

KF5. Working extra hours

63%

71%

70%

KF13. Witnessing potentially harmful errors, near misses or
incidents in the last month

36%

36%

34%

KF14. Reporting errors, near misses or incidents witnessed in the
last month

96%

89%

90%

KF16. Experiencing physical violence from patients, relatives or the
public in last 12 months

N/A

17%

15%

Above average scores

Worse than average
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Worst 20%
KF10. Receiving health and safety training in last 12 months

65%

66%

74%

KF12. Saying hand washing materials are always available

53%

48%

60%

KF18. Experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse from patients,
relatives or public in last 12 months

N/A

35%

30%

KF19. Experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse from staff in last
12 months

N/A

29%

24%

KF26. Having equality and diversity training in last 12 months

44%

44%

55%

KF27. Believing the Trust provides equal opportunities for career
progression or promotion

80%

81%

88%

KF28. Experiencing discrimination at work in last 12 months

20%

19%

11%

The Trust’s Staff Engagement Group meets
on a quarterly basis and includes members
of the executive team, staff side
representatives and the leads of the Trust’s
staff-led diversity groups.
Alongside the annual staff survey, the
Trust’s junior doctors respond to the annual
General Medical Council survey. In addition,
the Trust has undertaken an exit
questionnaire survey to address issues of
recruitment and retention within the Trust.
King’s Values
The Trust is committed to embedding the
King’s Values, which were defined by staff
and stakeholders of the Trust. Establishing
these values within the organisational
culture begins at recruitment and continues
throughout the induction of new staff. The
King’s Values are further incorporated into
training and development throughout
employment.
There are five King’s Values and more
information about them can be found on the
Trust website.

The King’s Values are:






Understanding you
Inspiring confidence in our care
Working together
Always aiming higher
Making a difference in our community

Action plan for 2013/14
Key priorities for 2013/14 are continued
focus on addressing discrimination and
harassment and bullying at work.
The Trust will continue to ensure that staff
are encouraged to voice their views and
opinions. This feedback will be monitored
through the annual surveys and on-going
discussions with staff side representatives
and the other staff forums outlined earlier in
this section.
Following analysis of staff feedback, both
Trust-wide and local action plans will be
developed to ensure that issues raised by
staff are addressed and these plans will be
objectively reviewed and monitored.
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Sustainability Report
King’s College Hospital undertakes
sustainability reporting in line with the HM
Treasury 2012/13 guidance Public Sector
Annual Reports: Sustainability Reporting in
the Public Sector. Sustainability reporting is
an important element of Trust performance
and the need to minimise impact on the
environment and to operate as a
sustainable and efficient organisation is
recognised.
Summary of performance

Carbon emissions were reduced by x% this
year meaning that the carbon reduction
target set for 2012 /13 of x % or x tonnes
was exceeded by x tonnes. Overall the total
waste generated has increased by 210
tonnes in 2012/13 which is a 7% increase
on the previous year. Recycling has
increased by 269 tonnes, which is a 7%
improvement on the previous year. Water
consumption has also decreased with a
further x % or x x x x x x cubic meters
reduction compared with water consumption
in 2011/12 (see table 10 below).

Table 10: Summary of performance
Area
Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Scope 1, 2, 3
Business Travel (excluding air and rail travel)
Estate Energy

Performance 2012 - 13
Actual

Target

3,205 tonnes

n/a

£978,164

n/a

Consumption
Expenditure

Estate Waste

Amount
Expenditure

Estate Water

Consumption
Expenditure

Summary of future strategy
A Trust-wide environmental strategy was
developed and ratified in 2012. The Trust
Environmental Strategy came into effect on
01 April 2012. This strategy, which is due to
be reviewed in 2014, details objectives and
targets for the following environmental
themes:
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Improving the patient experience;
Designing and maintaining the built
environment;
Waste management and minimisation;
Pollution prevention;
Energy and CO2 management;








Water;
Sustainable procurement;
Low carbon transport and travel;
Staff engagement and ownership;
Working with our stakeholders; and
Governance and finance

A copy of the Trust Environmental Strategy
document is available from:
kch-tr.foi@nhs.net .
Greenhouse gas emissions
This year, and for the first time, the Trust
has reported the carbon emissions
associated with fleet transport and business

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13

Enc. 2.1.1b

Directors’ Report
travel. These amounted to x and x tonnes
respectively.
As noted above, carbon emissions were
reduced by x % this year. This builds on the
very successful achievement in 2011/12
and means that emissions have been
reduced by x x % in two years (see table 11
on page 34). The x x % reduction was
achieved through a £17 million investment
in an energy centre which includes two
combined heat and power (CHP) engines
that generate 70% of the electricity used by
the Trust. The CHP also provides heating
and cooling for the main hospital site and
will provide heating and cooling for new
construction projects.
Waste management
Overall the total waste generated by the
Trust has increased by 210 tonnes in
2012/13. In November 2012, general nonhazardous waste and furniture items, such
as broken and beyond repair tables and
chairs, were diverted to materials recycling
facilities (MRF) and this has improved the
recovery of materials for recycling. This offsite change of process and treatment has
recovered an estimated 859 tonnes for
recycling, which represents an increase of
7% on the previous year.

appropriate waste segregation to maximise
recycling materials. Plans have been
finalised for a new centralised waste
management compound which is a key
strategy target to be achieved by 2014.
This is due for completion and to be
operational by July 2013.
Environmental management system
In December 2012 the Capital Estates and
Facilities department achieved ISO 14001
accreditation for the environmental
management system. Continued
commitment to the maintenance of this
accreditation provides a system of
assurance that the department is compliant
with all waste and environmental legislation.
The first surveillance visit was successfully
completed by the British Standards
Institution (BSI) in February 2013. The next
BSI surveillance will be in August 2013.
Energy and CO2 management
The Trust Environmental Strategy has
superseded the Carbon Management Plan.
The Trust continues to work towards a
target to reduce CO2 emissions by 25% by
2015.

The provision of waste management
services is a fixed annual cost to the Trust.
Any increases in costs associated with
waste quantities, HM taxes, or gate fees,
are at risk with the contractor. The cost of
waste disposed was £305 per tonne in
2012/13 compared to £317 per tonne in
2011/12, which is a decrease of 3.8% (see
table 12 on page 35).
The current arrangements for waste
management facilities do not allow
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Related Energy
Consumption
(million kWh)

Non-Financial
Indicators (1,000
tCO2e)

Table 11: Greenhouse gas emissions
20092010

20102011

20112012

Total Gross Emissions

24.5

25.3

25.3

Total Net Emissions

24

21.1

20.7

Gross Emissions (Scope 1)

8.9

19.7

19.7

Gross Emissions (Scope 2
and 3)

15.6

5.6

5.6

Electricity (non-renewable)

28.5

10.2

10.1

48

107

106

LPG

0

0

Other

0

0

3.2

3.8

Electricity (renewable)
Gas

Expenditure on energy
Financial Indicators
(£s million)

20122013

3.5

CRC License Expenditure
(2010 Onwards)
Expenditure Accredited
Offsets
Expenditure on Official
Business Travel
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Table 12: Waste
20082009
2516

20092010
2592

20102011
3198

20112012
2995

20122013
3205

1238

1192

1459

1335

1327

Landfill

909

1032

1158

1070

736

Reused/
Recycled

369

368

581

590

1142

Composted

0

0

0

0

0

Incinerated
with energy
recovery

0

0

0

0

283

Incinerated
without
energy
recovery

0

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

904,309

950,338

978,164

Financial Indicators (£s)

Non - Financial Indicators (tonnes)

Total Waste
Hazardou
s Waste

Non
Hazardous
Waste

Total
Waste
(£s)

Total

In 2009/10 revised PFI contract to include total waste management. This is for
all waste streams including hazardous chemical waste.
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Water minimisation
The Trust is committed to looking at its use
of finite resources and how it can become
more sustainable and efficient as an
organisation.

three weeks to complete, with workmen
working at weekends to minimise disruption
to staff and disturbance to patients. A one
minute time-lapse video of the installation is
available on the Trust’s You Tube channel.

The x x % decrease in water consumption
achieved in 2011/12 was improved on in
2012/13 by reducing consumption by a
further x % or x x x x cubic meters.
Financially, this means that £xxx,xxx was
spent on water in 2012/13, which was a
reduction of £x x x compared with the
previous year (see table 13 below).

Energy performance contract
In March 2013, the Trust signed an energy
performance contract with Schneider
Electric to deliver £7.8 million of energy
efficiency and heating infrastructure
improvements to the main site.
Schneider Electric have now moved from
the energy audit phase to the design phase
and hope to deliver a large number of
improvements to the heating system during
summer 2013. The scheme will be
delivered over 18 months and will improve
the heating infrastructure, reduce continuity
risk to the hospital and reduce energy
consumption and carbon emissions. This is
an energy reduction project whereby
Schneider Electric has guaranteed a
reduction of 1,900 tonnes of carbon and
approximately a 5% reduction in the Trust’s

A proposal for a water reduction project
across the hospital estate is in
development.
Day Surgery Unit solar panels
As part of an on-going campaign to reduce
carbon emissions, an array of solar panels
has been installed on the roof of the Day
Surgery Unit. Measuring 150 m2, 93 panels
will generate more than 18,000 kilowatts of
electrical power. The installation
commenced in February 2013 and took

Water Consumption (Office Estate)

20092010

20102011

20112012

251

209

206

371

330

320

Supplied
Abstracted
Per FTE

Water Consumption (non-office Estate)

Supplied
Abstracted

Financial
Indicators
(,000 £)

Non-Financial
Indicators (,000
m3)

Table 13: Finite Resource (Water) Consumption

Water Supply Costs (Office Estate)
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energy consumption - equating to annual
energy savings of approximately £379,051
per year.



Computer power-down software
PC management software was successfully
installed by the ICT department in 2011. It
detects when computers have been left idle
or left on out of hours and it powers the PC
down in order to save energy.



Over the course of the year this software
has saved the Trust:




£67,000. in electricity costs;
636 tons CO2 ; and
1.8 GWh in electricity consumption.

Designing and maintaining the built
environment
The Trust has targets in place to attain
‘Excellent’ under the Building Research
Establishment Environmental Assessment
method (BREEAM) on all new build projects
and ‘Very Good’ on all major
refurbishments. Some of these projects are
outlined below.
Infill Block 4
The Infill Block 4 project commenced in
November 2013 and is due to be completed
in summer 2013. It utilises a modular
system of construction whereby individual
modules are assembled at an off-site
factory location with many of the internal
services already installed. There are several
advantages associated with the modular
construction system:


Energy efficiency due to high levels of
efficient insulating materials integrated
into the modular system assemble in a
controlled off-site factory environment;



Reduced disruption and noise on site for
patient and staff;
Reduction in construction and building
related waste; and
Reduced vehicle movements involved in
the actual construction process including
construction materials and waste
removal.

Critical Care Unit over Theatre Block
The new Critical Care Unit over the existing
Theatre Block (CCUTB) has been designed
to achieve optimum energy performance by
designing a high performance building
fabric, low air leakage rates, high efficiency
lighting solutions and energy efficient
building services. Energy for space heating,
domestic hot water and cooling will be
provided by connecting to the combined
heat and power plant heating and cooling
network.
The south facing aspect of the CCUTB
building has been designed to maximise the
use of natural daylight. A fully glazed curtain
wall is proposed for the south facing rooms
which will maximise natural daylight in these
spaces. A good level of natural daylight
reduces the demand for electric lighting,
saving carbon and energy but also creates
and enhances the environment for patients,
visitors and Staff. Construction of the
CCUTB is due to commence in 2013.
Centralised endoscopy facility
Large areas of the basement within the
Hambleden Wing were altered and
refurbished to provide centralised
endoscopy and decontamination facilities.
As part of the refurbishment works the
energy efficiency of the existing buildings
was improved with the introduction of
double glazed windows to retain a
controlled clinical environment and to
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increase the efficiency of the heating and
cooling system and energy efficient lighting.
Where possible the materials used in the
refurbishment and new build extensions
were sourced from manufacturers who are
committed to reducing the environmental
impact of their manufacturing and delivery
processes and who are, or whose suppliers
are, accredited to ISO 14001.
Supply chain procurement
As outlined in the procurement section of
the environment strategy, the Trust is
committed to a variety of targets around
sustainable procurement.
The greenhouse gas emissions and other
environmental impacts in the supply chain
of major organisations, referred to as
‘Scope 2’ and ‘Scope 3’ emissions,
generally far exceed environmental impact
for which they are directly responsible,
referred to as ‘Scope 1’ emissions.
The 393 companies which make up the
Trust supply chain, representing 90% of
total procurement expenditure, were
analysed to identify which suppliers
contributed the most to the Trust supply
chain carbon footprint. The aim is to identify
the top 20 suppliers in terms of CO2 impact
and to develop plans to work with them to
reduce environmental impact.
Low carbon transport and travel
Work has continued on the Active King’s
project to promote activity and wellbeing to
staff. A staff bicycle user group remains
established and continues to support and
promote cycling to work as an alternative
low carbon means of transport.
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In November 2013 the Trust was fully
registered for the Transport for London
Cycle Superhighway Workplace Offering
and was awarded credits to exchange for
cycle parking, training or cycle safety
checks.
The Transport Feeder Group was formed in
2012 to work with the local stakeholder
community to influence relevant decision
makers and contribute to improving the local
transport infrastructure. The objectives of
the group are to address transport, access
and sustainability issues affecting all
relevant stakeholder groups including
patients, disabled service users, visitors and
staff. More information about the group can
be found on page 60.
Climate change adaption and mitigation
The Trust has a target in place to assess
how climate change may impact the site
and to devise an action plan outlining
adaption measures.
Biodiversity and the natural environment
There is a target in place to assess how the
implementation of promoting biodiversity on
site can assist the healing process. A draft
biodiversity action plan has been developed
and issued to Southwark Council and the
Friends of Ruskin Park for consultation.
Governance
The Trust Environmental Strategy places an
emphasis on the improvement of staff
engagement and ownership, working with
our stakeholders and governance systems
to ensure that the Trust continues to evolve
to become a more sustainable and efficient
organisation. The Board of Directors
receives reports on sustainability twice a
year.
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Code of Governance
Statutory framework
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust received authorisation as a public
benefit corporation on 01 December 2006.
The Trust’s principal purpose is the
provision of goods and services for the
purposes of the health service in England.
Governance framework
The Trust has eight membership
constituencies, a Council of Governors and
a Board of Directors. The responsibilities of
the Board of Directors and the Council of
Governors are set out in the Trust
Constitution and in approved standing
orders.
The members of the Council of Governors
are elected by the membership or appointed
by various bodies or organisations in
accordance with the Trust Constitution.
The Council of Governors is responsible for
representing the interests of the Trust’s
members and stakeholders in the
governance of the Trust. They exercise
statutory powers, such as the appointment
of non-executive directors and the external
auditor.
The Council of Governors comprises twelve
elected public governors, six elected patient
governors, six elected staff governors and
nine appointed stakeholder representatives
(see table 19 on page 56 for details).
Management framework
The Board of Directors is responsible for the
management and governance of the Trust.
It is responsible for ensuring compliance

with the Trust’s terms of authorisation,
constitution, mandatory guidance issued by
the independent regulator, Monitor, and with
relevant statutory requirements and
contractual obligations.
Led by the Chairman, the Board of Directors
sets the Trust’s strategy, determines
objectives and regularly monitors
performance. It decides on matters of risk
and assurance and is responsible for
delivering high quality and safe services. It
provides leadership within a framework of
prudent and effective controls that enables
risk to be assessed and managed.
The Board meets regularly and has a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved for
its decision. The Board delegates other
matters to the executive directors and other
senior managers.
Commercial opportunities and activities are
subject to scrutiny by the Trust Board,
through the Strategy Committee and the
minutes of KCH Commercial Services Ltd
Board of Directors, to ensure that benefits
derived from non-NHS income are
channelled into supporting the Trust’s core
NHS activities without incurring significant
financial or reputational risk.

Compliance statement
The Trust is committed to high standards of
corporate governance as set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Code of Governance. The
Trust meets all the main principles of the
code especially those relating to the
development and management of patient
services, information provision and
accountability for the use of public
resources.
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The Board considers that all its nonexecutive directors (NEDs) are independent
in character and judgement, including
Professors Alan McGregor and Ghulam
Mufti, who were the representatives from
the Medical School at King’s College
London during the reporting period. Both
professors brought breadth of expertise to
the Board and were able to provide
objective and balanced opinions on matters
relating to the Trust’s business. The
independence of NEDs is tested at interview
and at their annual performance review.
Information, development and evaluation
Directors and governors are supplied with
information in a timely manner an
appropriate form and quality to enable them
to discharge their duties. The information
needs of the Board of Directors and Council
of Governors are subject to periodic review.
The performance of the Board of Directors,
its committees and individual directors are
subject to regular review, as outlined on
page 46.
Accountability and audit
As detailed on page 13, the Council of
Governors appointed Deloitte LLP as the
Trust’s external auditor. In addition, the
Board of Directors maintains a sound
system of internal control and has reappointed KPMG to undertake a
comprehensive internal audit.
The Board of Directors ensures effective
scrutiny of financial and operational matters
through its designated committees and
regular reporting to the Board by presenting
a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Trust’s position and forward plans.
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Divergence from the NHS Foundation
Trust Code of Governance
There are two areas where the Trust
diverges from the NHS Foundation Trust
Code of Governance:
C.2.1 – The Chief Executive and other
executive directors should be subject to reappointment at intervals of no more than
five years.
Declaration – With the exception of the
Medical Director, who is appointed on a
fixed term contract, executive directors are
employed on substantive contracts not
subject to re-appointment.
C.2.1 – Non-executive directors, including
the Chairman, should be appointed by the
Council of Governors for specified terms
subject to re-appointment thereafter at
intervals of no more than three years.
Declaration – The Council of Governors
have approved four year terms of office for
non-executive appointments, subject to a
maximum of two four year terms (except in
exceptional circumstances).

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors comprises the Chair
and six non-executive directors and eight
executive directors all of whom are
collectively responsible for the success of
the Trust. Executive directors are full time
employees of the Trust and non-executive
directors are appointed by the Council of
Governors on a fixed term basis. The
Council of Governors also has the power to
remove non-executive directors.
Executive directors manage the day-to-day
running of the Trust whilst the Chair and the
non-executive directors provide strategic
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and board level guidance, support and
steer. The members of the Board boast a
wide range of skills and bring experience
gained from NHS organisations, other public
bodies and private sector organisations.

During the reporting period, the Board has
experienced a number of changes and the
Chair called upon Vice Chairman, Graham
Meek, to act-up to the post of Chair during a
short period of absence due to ill health.

The skills portfolio of the directors, both
executive and non-executive, is wideranging and includes accountancy, audit,
education, management consultancy, law,
engineering and medicine. This broad
coverage of knowledge and skills
strengthens the effectiveness of the Board
of Directors giving the Trust confidence that
the Board of Directors is balanced,
complete and appropriate to supporting the
Trust in meeting its objectives.

The Board said goodbye to one of its
longest serving non-executive directors
Professor Alan McGregor in December
2012. Professor McGregor also served as
Chair of the Quality and Governance
Committee. This role was taken over by
Professor Ghulam Mufti, who has a long
association with the Trust.
At the start of the year Maxine James
reached the end of her term; and the Board
welcomed Sue Slipman in July 2012.

Table 14: Directors of the Trust during 2012/13
Non-Executive Directors
Professor Sir George Alberti (Chair)
Faith Boardman
Maxine James (until April 2012)
Professor Alan McGregor (until December 2012)
Graham Meek (Vice Chair & Acting Chair May-October 2012)
Mr Marc Meryon (Senior Independent Director)
Professor Ghulam Mufti (appointed December 2012)
Sue Slipman (appointed July 2012)
Christopher Stooke

Executive Directors
Timothy Smart, Chief Executive
Angela Huxham, Director of Workforce Development
Mr Michael Marrinan, Medical Director
Roland Sinker, Chief Operating Officer
Simon Taylor, Chief Financial Officer
Dr Geraldine Walters, Director of Nursing and Midwifery
Jane Walters, Director Corporate Affairs
Jacob West, Director of Strategy
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Board of Directors

Non-executive directors’ biographies
Professor Sir George Alberti (Chair)
Internationally renowned for his work in the
field of diabetes, George has also been
instrumental in shaping recent healthcare
policy towards the management of urgent
care and major emergencies. He served as
a non-executive director of the Trust before
being appointed as Trust Chair in December
2011.
George was knighted in 2000 for services to
diabetic medicine, and is a member of the
World Health Organisation’s expert advisory
panel on diabetes. He is a past Dean of
Medicine at the University of Newcastle
upon Tyne and a former President of the
Royal College of Physicians.
He was the Government’s National Clinical
Director for Emergency Access from 2002
to 2009, and was the author of the
influential Emergency Access – Clinical
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Case for Change. George’s term of office
will end in November 2015.
Faith Boardman
Faith lives in Lambeth, and brings 40 years
of public service at both the local and the
national levels. She has a proven track
record of delivering service improvements in
large public sector organisations that are
dealing with substantial change, and with
financial, performance and customer
challenges.
She has been Chief Executive of the Child
Support Agency (1997-2000) and more
recently of Lambeth Council (2000-05).
She is Chair of Trustees for Vauxhall City
Farm and London Ecumenical Aids Trust,
and was formerly a non-executive member
of the Metropolitan Police Authority. Faith
joined the Trust Board in March 2012; her
term will end in March 2016.
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Professor Alan McGregor
Professor of Medicine at King’s College
London and Campus Dean for the Denmark
Hill site, in addition, Professor McGregor is
an Honorary Consultant Physician and
Endocrinologist at King’s College Hospital.
Nationally he has chaired numerous Boards
and Committees for bodies including the
Medical Research Council and the
Department of Health.
Alan has been a Non-Executive Director of
King’s since 2003. He was re-appointed in
2007 and subsequently re-appointed for a
further one year term of office, which ended
in November 2012.
Graham Meek (Vice Chair)
Graham is a trustee of the British
Cardiovascular Society and a non-executive
director of Filtronic plc and Capital Gearing
Trust plc.
He was previously chairman of two other
listed companies, ICM Computer Group plc
and SPI Lasers plc.
During his career as an investment banker
with Wood Mackenzie, Smith New Court
and Merrill Lynch, he advised a broad range
of UK companies on capital raising, mergers
and acquisitions and corporate strategy.
Graham joined the Trust Board in
December 2011 and his current term of
office will end in November 2015.
Graham also served as Acting Chair of the
Trust between May and October 2012.
Marc Meryon
Marc Meryon is a partner and Head of
Industrial Relations of international law firm
Eversheds LLP. Marc specialises in
employment law and is recognised in the

legal directories as an expert in industrial
relations. He frequently comments on this
area in both broadcast and print media.
Marc acts for a large number of household
names in a wide range of sectors including
manufacturing, transport/logistics and
healthcare, advising on effective
organisational change in a unionised
environment, as well as managing and
resolving industrial disputes.
In the healthcare sector he has advised
Trusts on equal opportunities law, the
application of the working time directive and
pay protection for junior doctors. Marc has
been a non-executive director of the Trust
since August 2010.
Professor Ghulam J Mufti
Professor Mufti has worked at the Trust
since 1985 when he was appointed as a
senior lecturer/consultant haematologist.
His current appointment is Professor of
Haemato-oncology,Clinical Director of
Pathology and Head of the Department of
Haematology, one of the largest in Europe.
Ghulam is internationally renowned for
research and treatment of myelodysplastic
syndromes (MDS) and other pre-leukaemic
diseases, and has published over 400
original papers in medical journals.
He is founding member of the International
MDS foundation Board, Chair of the UK
MDS Forum and Member of GSTS
Members Board. He was formerly a
member of the scientific committee of
Leukaemia & Lymphoma Research.
He has been a non-executive director of the
Trust since December 2012; his term will
end in December 2016.
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Christopher M Stooke
Christopher graduated in economics from
Durham University and started his
accountancy career at PwC. He was made
partner in 1990 and was responsible for the
audit of a number of blue chip companies in
the UK and Europe, mainly in the financial
services sector.

Executive directors’ biographies

From 2003 to 2009 he was Chief Financial
Officer of Catlin Group, the FTSE 350
insurer.

Before joining the NHS, Tim had a 30-year
career in the commercial sector, first with
Shell and latterly with BT. He brings with
him a wealth of experience in customer
service and satisfaction, developing
commercial partnerships, and team and
people development.

He is now a non-executive director at three
companies and one charity, in addition to
King's. He has lived in south London almost
all his life and is now based in Dulwich.
Chris joined the Trust Board in November
2011 and his current term of office will end
in October 2015.
Sue Slipman
Sue was the founding Chief Executive of the
Foundation Trust Network, the national
trade association for authorised and
aspirant foundation trusts in the NHS. She
was also director of the campaigning
charity, The National Council for One Parent
Families and ran the Gas Consumer
Council.
She was an executive director at Camelot
where she held the role of Director of
Corporate Responsibility before becoming
Director of Communications. She has been
Chair of the Financial Ombudsman Service,
has held a number of non-executive
positions in public life and is currently a
trustee of NEST Corporation, the pension
scheme set up by government to support
auto-enrolment.
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Timothy Smart (Chief Executive)
Since 2008, when he joined the Trust, Tim
has brought a renewed focus on
improvements in patient experience, service
quality, and partner and stakeholder
relationships.

He has worked in the Middle East, the
Netherlands and the US. He also has
experience as a non-executive director of a
US-listed financial services company and as
a Trustee of two national charities. He is an
elected member of the Foundation Trust
Network Board. Tim is also on the KHP
Partners' Board, and the members' boards
of GSTS and the London Cancer Alliance.
Tim has a passion for equality and
inclusiveness. He is proud of the fact that
the Trust is now a safer hospital and that it
is increasingly reflective of and integrated
with the local communities it serves. He is
also proud that the focus on closing the
local health inequality gap and involvement
in King’s Health Partners, is attracting more
talent to the area, and has also resulted in
the growth of employment and career
opportunities for the local population.
Angela Huxham (Executive Director of
Workforce Development)
Angela has been a Director of HR with NHS
experience across tertiary, secondary and
primary care. Her national roles include
management side chair in negotiations to
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reform national terms, conditions and
pensions. She chairs the UK University
Hospitals HR Directors’ Network and serves
as a judicial Member of the Employment
Tribunals Service. Angela is a Chartered
Fellow of her professional organisation and
holds an MSc in Human Resource
Leadership. Angela’s career in people
management spans manufacturing,
insurance, retailing and local government.
Angela joined the Trust in 2009.
Mr Michael Marrinan (Medical Director)
Michael trained as a Cardiothoracic
Surgeon in Ireland, the UK and the US. He
was appointed as the Trust’s Executive
Medical Director in February 2010 having
been Deputy Medical Director since 2008.
Michael has been a Consultant at King’s for
over 20 years, and has been heavily
involved in clinical, educational and
managerial improvements through the
Trust.
Having studied business management prior
to his medical degree he has taken
particular interest in medical productivity
and improving staff engagement in the
strategic development and patient care
objectives of the Trust. To further these
aims he has instituted the Consultant
Development Mornings, reinvigorated the
Consultant’s Committee, formed the Trust
Research Committee, Education
Committee, Mortality Monitoring Committee,
and Women in Medicine Group. He is
currently a leader in the integration of the
Princess Royal University Hospital within
King’s College Hospital and the
development of a 21st century system of
high-quality networked care.

Roland Sinker (Chief Operating Officer)
Roland joined the Trust in 2005 as Director
of Strategy for King’s and worked latterly as
Joint Director of Strategy for King’s and
Guy’s and St Thomas’. He was appointed
Director of Operations in July 2009 and
Chief Operating Officer in April 2012. Prior
to joining the NHS, Roland worked as a
lawyer and management consultant. Roland
is a Director and Company Secretary of
KCH Commercial Services and is on the
Board of GSTS, the pathology joint venture.
Simon Taylor (Chief Financial Officer)
Simon has worked at the Trust for over 20
years holding positions as Financial
Controller and Director of Finance before
becoming Chief Financial Officer in 2002.
He is also responsible for Information
Services, Capital Estates & Facilities and
overseeing the Trust’s commercial
developments.
Simon is a director of KCH Commercial
Services and its subsidiaries, Agnentis Ltd
and KCH Management Ltd.
Dr Geraldine Walters (Director of Nursing
and Midwifery and Director of Infection
Prevention and Control)
A cardiac nurse by background, Geraldine
has held a number of executive nurse
director posts in acute NHS Trusts in
London. Geraldine is Visiting Professor at
both Buckinghamshire New University and
the Florence Nightingale School at King’s
College London. Geraldine is an advisor to
the Florence Nightingale Foundation, a
member of the Royal College of Nursing
Audit Committee, the National Advisory
Group on Clinical Audit and Enquiries and a
trustee of Trinity Hospice. Geraldine worked
in a variety of hospitals in her early career,
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including King’s, and subsequently gained a
PhD and an MBA.

public service reform issues and was a
senior policy adviser in the UK government.

Non-voting directors’ biographies

Evaluation and development of the
Board
There were a number of changes to the
non-executive membership of the Board
during 2011/12. In November 2012 the
Board welcomed back the Chairman
following a period of absence, and in
December 2012 welcomed the new nonexecutive director representative from
King’s College London.

Jane Walters (Director of Corporate
Affairs and Trust Secretary)
Jane has worked at the Trust since 1992,
holding positions as Business Manager and
Head of Corporate Services before being
appointed as Director of Corporate Affairs in
2004.
Her earlier career was in local government,
where she worked in a variety of senior
roles in the fields of corporate governance
and quality assurance.
Jane holds a Masters in Social Policy from
the University of Cranfield, and leads the
Trust’s Patient Experience programme. She
is also responsible for corporate and clinical
governance and communications and
marketing.
Outside of the Trust, she is a trustee of St
Christopher’s Hospice, Sydenham.
Jacob West (Director of Strategy)
Jacob joined King's in 2010. Prior to his
arrival, Jacob was Deputy Director and
Acting Director at the Prime Minister's
strategy unit. His role was to advise Number
10 and the Prime Minister on a range of
public service reform issues, and was lead
adviser on health policy from 2007. In 2006
Jacob was seconded to the Premier's Office
in Queensland, Australia where he helped
develop a public health strategy for the
State. Prior to this he worked as a
consultant to a number of government
agencies in the United States on a range of
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Now that the Board has its full complement
of non-executive directors the Trust has
engaged KPMG to conduct an evaluation of
the Board in the summer 2013 which will
inform Board development activities, which
are scheduled to take place in autumn
2013.
All executive and non-executive directors
have an annual performance appraisal and
personal development plan, which forms the
basis of their individual development.
Executive directors’ performance is
reviewed by the Chief Executive and
considered by the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee in relation to
remuneration.
Annual performance appraisals were
completed in June 2012 and are next due in
June 2013
The process for evaluating the performance
of the Chair and non-executive directors has
been agreed in consultation with the Council
of Governors.
Members of the Board undertake personal
development on an on-going basis and
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Company directorships and other
significant interests and commitments
The Trust maintains a Register of Interests
for its directors. Arrangements to view the
Register can be made by contacting the
Board Secretary on 020 3299 4004.

each director at Board of Directors’
meetings during 2012/13 is recorded in
table 15 on the next page. The Trust has
seven Board committees which also meet
regularly and are each chaired by a nonexecutive director. Some of the work of the
Board is delegated to these committees, as
illustrated in the diagram below table 18 on
page 50.

Board meetings and committees
The Board of Directors met regularly
throughout the year. The attendance of

The Board of Directors approve the terms of
reference which detail the remit and the
delegated authority of each committee.

collectively, the Board holds periodic
development sessions during the year.

Table 15: Directors’ attendance at Board meetings
Attendance at meeting
(attended/possible)
Non-Executive Directors
Professor Sir George Alberti, Chair *1
Faith Boardman
Alan McGregor*2
Graham Meek, Vice Chair
Marc Meryon
Professor Ghulam Mufti*3
Sue Slipman*4
Christopher Stooke*5

7/12
12/12
7/9
12/12
12/12
4/4
7/7
7/12

Executive Directors
Timothy Smart , CEO
Angela Huxham
Mr Michael Marrinan
Roland Sinker
Simon Taylor
Dr Geraldine Walters

12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12
12/12

Executive Directors – Non Voting
Jane Walters
Jacob West
*1
Includes leave of absence due to ill health
*2
End of office December 2012
*3
Started office December 2012
*4
Started office July 2012
*5
Includes leave of absence due to personal reasons

12/12
11/12
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Each committee is required to complete
an annual review and self-assessment
which is then presented to the Board of
Directors.
In addition to regularly reporting to the
Board of Directors, committee minutes
are a standing item on each Board
agenda.
Table 18 on page 51 records the
membership of each Board committee.
In addition, tables 16 and 17 on page
50 record attendance at the Audit
Committee and Remuneration and
Appointments Committee respectively.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is responsible for
monitoring the externally reported
performance of the Trust and for
providing independent assurance to the
Board of Directors in a range of areas
including internal control, risk
management, external assurance of the
Trust risk management processes,
internal and external audit and financial
reporting. The Trust also has a zerotolerance policy towards fraud and this
committee is responsible for overseeing
the work of the counter fraud team.
It continues to closely monitor the
effectiveness of internal control and
audit processes on behalf of the Trust.
The committee is chaired by
Christopher Stooke who brings a
wealth of financial expertise to the
Committee. The internal and external
auditors regularly attend committee
meetings in addition to the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive, the
Director of Corporate Affairs although
they are not members of the
committee. The Chair of the Board of
Directors and other members of the
48

executive team attend meetings of the
committee by invitation. The broad
knowledge and skills of the members
and attendees strengthens the
effectiveness of the committee. The
Trust is satisfied that the committee is
sufficiently independent.
During the reporting period the
committee reviewed and discussed the
risk management strategy and board
assurance framework documents which
cover risk to the delivery of the Trust’s
objectives. It considered reports from
internal and external auditors focusing
on those with ‘limited assurance’ and
the implementation of agreed
recommendations. It also received
reports on counter fraud work at the
Trust.
It fulfilled its oversight responsibilities
with regard to the monitoring of the
integrity of financial statements and the
annual accounts, including the annual
statement of internal control, before
submission to the Board.
In September 2012 the Chair provided
a report to the Council of Governors on
the performance of the Trust’s external
auditors Deloitte and advised that the
Audit Committee was satisfied with
their performance.
The committee met four times during
the reporting period.
Independence of external auditor
The Trust’s external auditors, Deloitte,
have communicated the following
matters to the Audit Committee:
 The principal threats, if any, to
objectivity and independence
identified by the auditor, including
consideration of all relationships
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between the Trust, Directors and
the auditor;
Any safeguards adopted and the
reasons why they are considered to
be effective;
Any independent partner review;
The overall assessment of threats
and safeguards;
Information about the general
policies and processes for
maintaining objectivity and
independence.

Deloitte is not aware of any
relationships that may affect the
independence and objectivity of the
team, and which are required to be
disclosed under auditing and ethical
standards.
Board Integration Committee
During 2012 the Trust, on behalf of
KHP, worked with the Department of
Health to seek to address the
challenges facing South London
Healthcare Trust. The final report by
the Trust Special Administrator was
published in January 2013. It
recommended that King’s College
Hospital acquired the Princess Royal
University Hospital (PRUH) and this
recommendation was accepted by the
Secretary of State for Health.
The Board Integration Committee was
established to support the work around
the proposed acquisition and, should
the Trust acquire the PRUH,
development of an integration process.
The committee is chaired by
Christopher Stooke and its membership
includes a sub-section of the Board of
Directors.
This committee met nine times during
the reporting period

Equality and Diversity Committee
This committee monitors equality and
diversity issues related to the provision
of services to patients, employees and
procurement practices.
It is also responsible for monitoring the
Trust’s progress in achieving the
Equality Delivery System objectives
and compliance with the Equality Act
(2010).
This committee met four times during
the reporting period.
Finance and Performance
Committee
This committee is responsible for
reviewing and monitoring the Trust’s
operational and financial performance
against core targets and indicators and
for ensuring that the Trust remains
compliant with Monitor’s financial and
governance risk ratings.
This committee met 11 times during the
reporting period.
Quality and Governance Committee
This committee is responsible for
overseeing the three dimensions of
quality: patient safety, patient
experience and patient outcomes as
well as organisational safety, risk
management and compliance and
information governance.
The committee met six times during the
reporting period.
Strategy Committee
This committee is responsible for
overseeing the development of the
Trust’s strategy and vision. It also
reviews progress against the Trust’s
strategic objectives and discusses
major strategic issues.
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This committee met four times during
the reporting period.
Remuneration and Appointments
Committee
On behalf of the Board of Directors, this
committee agrees executive directors’
remuneration and terms of service.

Together with the Chief Executive,
committee members form a panel for
the appointment of executive directors.
The committee met twice during the
reporting period.

Table 16: Audit Committee attendance
Attendance at meeting
(attended/possible)
Christopher Stooke (Chair)
Faith Boardman
Graham Meek
Marc Meryon

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

Table 17: Remuneration and Appointments Committee attendance
Attendance at meeting
(attended/possible)
Prof George Alberti (Chair from Nov 2011)

0/1

Graham Meek (Acting Chair May-October 2012)

1/1

Faith Boardman

1/1

Prof Alan McGregor

0/1

Marc Meryon

1/1

Prof Ghulam Mufti

0/0

Sue Slipman

1/1

Christopher Stooke

1/1
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Strategy Committee

Quality &
Governance
Committee

Finance &
Performance
Committee

Equality & Diversity
Committee

Board Integration
Committee

Table 18: Membership of Board Committees

Non-Executive Directors
Professor Sir George Alberti


Faith Boardman
Professor Alan McGregor






















Chair*1









Chair*2





Graham Meek



Marc Meryon
Professor Ghulam Mufti


Chair



Chair




Sue Slipman
Christopher Stooke


Chair




Chair




Executive Directors


Timothy Smart





















































Angela Huxham
Mr Michael Marrinan
Roland Sinker
Simon Taylor
Dr Geraldine Walters
Jane Walters



Jacob West
*1





until December 2012

*2  from December 2012
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Remuneration Report
The remuneration and terms of service of
the Chair and non-executive directors
(NEDs) are determined by the Council of
Governors, taking account of relevant
market data, including the Foundation Trust
Network’s NED remuneration survey.
Remuneration for the Trust’s most senior
managers (directors accountable to the
Chief Executive) is determined by the
Trust’s Remuneration and Appointments
Committee, which comprises the Chair and
the non-executive directors. See table 17 on
page 50 for committee membership and
meeting attendance.
The work of the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee is informed by
executive salary surveys, periodic
assessments conducted by independent
remuneration consultants and salary awards
and terms and conditions applying to other
NHS staff groups. The work of the
committee is supported by the Director of
Workforce Development who is not a
member of the committee. In the previous
year, the Remuneration and Appointments
Committee had reflected on the three-year
pay freeze for directors, which was in part
due to the withdrawal of the bonus scheme
in 2009, and on the two-year pay freeze for
all Trust employees as part of the public
sector-wide restriction on pay increases.
The committee had agreed to commission
an independent review to compare director
salaries within the Trust and externally, and
to undertake job evaluation to establish
internal differentials using national job
evaluation tools. The report prepared by
the Hay Group on behalf of the Trust was
considered by the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee during the
reporting period. The committee accepted
52

the recommendations that where
appropriate director salaries should be
adjusted from 01 April 2012 to reflect
comparable roles in benchmark trusts of
similar size and complexities.
The Trust’s strategy and annual planning
processes set key business objectives
which, in turn, inform individual and
collective objectives for senior managers.
Trust and individual performance are closely
monitored and discussed throughout the
year and form part of the annual appraisal.
Accounting policies for pensions and other
retirement benefits are set out on note 1.6
(ii) on page xxx of the annual accounts and
details of senior employees’ remuneration
can be found on page xxx. The only noncash element of the most senior managers’
remuneration packages is pension related
benefits accrued during membership of the
NHS Pension Scheme. Contributions into
the scheme are made by both the employer
and employee in accordance with the
statutory regulations.
The Executive Medical Director is a medical
consultant within the Trust, whose role is
undertaken on a fixed term, three-year
contract which may be renewed by
agreement. This contract was reviewed on
02 February 2013 and was extended for a
further three years. Additional paid
programmed activities are provided in the
Executive Medical Director’s job plan to
enable the performance of these additional
responsibilities. The Executive Medical
Director also receives a pay supplement.
All other directors are substantive
employees of the Trust employed on openended employment contracts which can be
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terminated by the Trust with up to twelve
months’ notice.
Compensation in the event of early
termination would be in accordance with
contractual entitlements as set out in the
Agenda for Change national terms and
conditions of service.







Signed:



Timothy Smart
Chief Executive





Council of Governors
The Council of Governors comprises 24
elected governors and nine appointed
stakeholder governors as detailed on page
56. The normal term of office for governors
is three years. As guardians of the
community interest, the Council of
Governors ensures that the needs of
members are considered in the planning of
future services. The Council of Governors
is also responsible for the appointment,
remuneration and removal of the Chair and
other non-executive directors.
Governors are active within the community,
helping to facilitate communication between
the Trust, members and the local
community. Governors are pivotal to sharing
the Trust vision and performance with key
stakeholders.

Appointed Professor Ghulam Mufti as a
non-executive director on the
recommendation of the Nominations
Committee;
Received and considered the Trust
Annual Report and Accounts and the
auditor’s report on the accounts;
Received regular updates on the Trust’s
business planning process and provided
comments which were duly incorporated
into the Trust Annual Plan and
submitted to Monitor in May 2012;
Received guidance and discussed the
changes in the governor role arising
from the Health and Social Care Act
2012;
Approved changes to the Trust
constitution to reflect these changes;
and
Received regular information on and
discussed the Trust’s proposed
acquisition of the Princess Royal
University Hospital, Bromley.

Governor sub-committees
The Council also delegated some of its work
to sub-committees which provide the
opportunity for governors to delve deeper
into issues that are of interest to members,
the local community and the Trust.
The sub-committee structure is illustrated in
the diagram on the next page.
All governors are eligible to sit on governor
sub-committees, with the exception of the
Nominations Committee for which
governors are nominated and elected.

During the reporting period, the Council of
Governors:
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13

53

Enc. 2.1.1b

Governance Report

Membership and Community
Engagement Committee
This committee reviews the membership
development strategy ensuring that
membership continues to be representative
and identifies ways in which the
membership can be more actively involved,
facilitating communication between
governors and the membership.

Sub-committees have been very active
during the reporting period. Some of their
activities included: involvement in nutritional
and quality ward rounds; gathering
feedback in outpatient clinics and surveying
patients visiting the Emergency Department;
and providing feedback on the Trust’s
strategic priorities, contributing to the
development of its annual plan.

Local transport issues are addressed by a
feeder group which reports to this
committee. Information about the Transport
Feeder Group can be found on page 60.

Governor development and engagement
The Trust organised a number of
opportunities for governors to hear more
about the Trust and to influence how the
Trust operates. In addition, as King’s Health
Partners develops as an Academic Health
Sciences Centre, the Trust is engaging
governors in discussions arising from
publication of the strategic outline case for
closer integration between the partner
organisations.

Patient Experience and Safety
Committee
This committee acts as a reference group
for the Trust’s planned activity around
patient experience and safety.
Committee members are involved with a
range of initiatives to improve patient
experience and safety and monitor the
Trust’s progress against its quality priorities.
Strategy Committee
This committee reviews the Trust’s strategy
and annual plan, and feeds back to the
Council of Governors.
54

As part of on-going support and
development, governors are invited to
participate in workshops at which topical
issues selected by governors are presented
by directors and other senior members of
staff. Two development days were
organised in-year with external speakers
invited to give different perspectives on
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relevant issues. Governors attended
community events which are opportunities
for governors, members and directors to
come together and share ideas about the
Trust’s vision and future plans. Governors
also participated in ward-based initiatives
such as collecting patient stories. To
facilitate further engagement with the local
community, a communications pack was
developed to aid governors when attending
community groups to talk about the Trust’s
services and to promote membership. There
was also an annual joint meeting of the
Board of Directors and Council of
Governors and all governors are invited to
attend Board of Directors meetings.
Governors are provided with a secure
remote resources centre through which they
can access information relevant to their role.
Many governors have also attended
external events hosted by the Foundation
Trust Governors’ Association and the
Foundation Trust Network during the
reporting period.
Company directorships and other
significant interests and commitments
The Trust maintains a Register of Interests
for its governors, which is open to the
public. Arrangements to view the register
can be made by contacting the Board
Secretary on 020 3299 4004.

governors. The names of individual
governors, their constituencies and terms of
office between 01 April 2012 and 31 March
2013 are detailed in table 19.
The Council of Governors met four times in
the reporting period. The attendance of
individual governors at these meetings,
which were held in public, is detailed in
table 20.
Nominations Committee
This committee is responsible for
determining and administering the selection
process for the appointment and
remuneration of the Chair and nonexecutive directors of the Trust, and
recommending the preferred candidates to
the Council of Governors for appointment. It
also monitors their performance and makes
recommendations to the Council of
Governors on reappointment or removal.
The members of the committee are detailed
in table 21 on page 58 and the committee
met twice, including one occasion where
they conducted candidate interviews.
During the reporting period the committee
made recommendations to the Council of
Governors to appoint Professor Ghulam
Mufti as non-executive director.

Composition of Council of Governors
This year the Trust has focused on the ongoing training of governors who started their
term at the end of 2011.
There were no elections during the year
2012/13. Wherever vacancies have arisen
during the year, the Trust has followed the
appropriate processes as set out in its
constitution to identify replacement
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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Table 19: Composition of Council of Governors – 01 April 2012 - 31 March 2013
Elected

Constituency

Term of Office
Began

Term of
Office Ends

Patient
Thomas Duffy
Derek Cookson
Patti Kachidza
Jan Thomas
Christine Klaassen
David Sullivan

Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient

01/12/2011 Re-elected
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011 Re-elected
01/12/2011
01/12/2011

30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014

Barbara Pattinson

Southwark Central

30/11/2014

Andy Alatise

Southwark Central

Michelle Pearce
Stuart Owen

Southwark South
Southwark South

01/12/2011
01/12/2011
Re-elected
01/12/2011 Re-elected
01/12/2011

John Henley

Southwark North

01/12/2011

Andrew McCall
Olorunjuwonlo Onabaworin
Michael Robinson
Godwin Ubiaro
Nandakumar Ratnavel
Alam Zabit
Fiona Clark
Christopher North

Southwark North
Southwark North
Lambeth Central
Lambeth Central
Lambeth South
Lambeth South
Lambeth North
Lambeth North

01/12/2011
17/02/2013
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011

30/11/2014
30/11/2014
Resigned
01/02/2013
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014

Medical & Dentistry
Nursing and Midwifery
Nursing and Midwifery
Support Staff
Allied Health Professionals
Admin, Clerical & Management

01/12/2011
01/12/2011
22/07/2010 Re-elected
01/12/2011
01/12/2011
01/12/2011 Re-elected

30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014
30/11/2014

Constituency

Term of Office
Began

Public
30/11/2014

Staff
Rachel Burman
Carolyn Campbell-Cole
Nicky Hayes
Ahmad Toumadj
Phyllis Barnett
Brady Pohle

Appointed
Richard Gibbs

Southwark PCT

09/05/2011

Caroline Hewitt

Lambeth PCT

01/01/2010

Sue Gallagher
Cllr Jim Dickson

Lambeth PCT
Lambeth Council

01/01/2013
01/03/2012

Anne Garvey

London South Bank University

22/06/2009

Dr Warren Turner

London South Bank University

Chris Mottershead

King's College London

Diane Summers

Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHSFT
South London & Maudsley
NHSFT
Joint Staff Committee
Southwark Council

29/01/2013
01/07/2012
Reappointed
06/10/2010

Madeliene Long
Carol Bell
Cllr Catherine McDonald
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Term of
Office Ends
08/05/2014
Resigned
31/12/2012
31/12/2016
28/02/2015
Resigned
28/01/2013
28/01/2016
30/06/2015
05/10/2013

01/12/2011

30/11/2014

01/12/2011
27/07/2012

30/11/2014
26/07/2015
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Table 20: Governor Attendance at meetings – 01 April 2012 - 31 March 2013
Governor

Constituency

Attendance at meetings
(Actual/Possible)

Patient
Thomas Duffy*
Derek Cookson*
Patti Kachidza*
Jan Thomas*
Christine Klaassen*
David Sullivan*

Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient
Patient

2/4
3/4
1/4
3/4
3/4
1/4

Southwark Central
Southwark Central
Southwark South
Southwark South
Southwark North
Southwark North
Lambeth Central
Lambeth Central
Lambeth South
Lambeth South
Lambeth North
Lambeth North

3/4
2/4
4/4
4/4
1/3
4/4
3/4
3/4
4/4
2/4
4/4
4/4

Medical & Dentistry
Nursing and Midwifery
Nursing and Midwifery
Support Staff
Allied Health Professionals
Admin, Clerical & Management

4/4
3/4
4/4
3/4
2/4
3/4

Public
Barbara Pattinson*
Andy Alatise*
Michelle Pearce
Stuart Owen
John Henley*
Andrew McCall
Michael Robinson*
Godwin Ubiaro
Nanda Ratnavel
Alam Zabit*
Fiona Clark
Christopher North

Staff
Rachel Burman
Carolyn Campbell-Cole*
Nicky Hayes
Ahmad Toumadj*
Phyllis Barnett*
Brady Pohle*

Appointed
Richard Gibbs
Southwark Primary Care Trust
4/4
Caroline Hewitt*
Lambeth PCT
1/2
Cllr Jim Dickson*
Lambeth Council
3/4
Cllr Catherine McDonald
Southwark Council
3/3
Anne Garvey*
London South Bank University
1/3
Dr Warren Turner*
London South Bank University
1/1
Chris Mottershead
King's College London
4/4
Diane Summers*
Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS FT
3/4
Madeliene Long*
South London & Maudsley NHS FT
2/4
Carol Bell*
Joint Staff Committee
2/4
*
A register of attendance is presented at each meeting of the Council of Governors. The reasons for
individual governors’ non-attendance is considered and accepted or not accepted accordingly

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13

57

Enc. 2.1.1b

Governance Report
Table 21: Membership of the Nominations Committee
Members
Prof Sir George Alberti, Committee Chair
Graham Meek (Acting Committee Chair May 2012 - Oct 2012)
Nanda Ratnavel , Vice Chair
Fiona Clark
Tom Duffy

Public Governor
Public Governor
Patient Governor

Brady Pohle

Staff Governor

Rachel Burman

Staff Governor

Council C
Council of Governors*

Front row (from left to right): Patti Kachidza, Sue Gallagher, Carolyn Campbell-Cole, George
Alberti (Chairman), Christine Klaassen, Fiona Clark, Barbara Pattinson
Back row (from left to right): Ahmad Toumadj, Brady Pohle, Andrew McCall, Stuart Owen,
Jim Dickson, Nicky Hayes, Nanda Ratnavel, Michael Robinson, Chris Mottershead, Chris North,
Olorunjuwonlo Onabaworin
*Photograph does not show all of the members of the Council of Governors
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Patient and Public
Focus: Listening
and Responding
Improving Patient Care
During the year 2012/13, members of the
Trust and the governors elected by them
have continued to play an active role in
helping to improve services and ensuring
that services meet the health needs of the
diverse community served by the hospital.
Council of Governors
Governors have taken up roles on a range
of Trust committees and working groups,
including the Patient Experience
Committee, the End of Life Care Group and
the Older People’s Steering Committee.
Governors also have their own committees,
which focus on strategy, patient experience
and safety, membership and community
engagement.
More information about governors and their
sub-committees can be found on pages 5354.
Patient experience
Governors and members continue to
volunteer to help with a range of projects to
improve the experience of patients. Some of
these projects are outlined below.
Transforming outpatient services
Governors and members have contributed
to the outpatient transformation programme
the aim of which is to improve the
experience of patients using outpatient
services. Two governors joined the
Outpatient Experience Working Group to

ensure that a lay voice informed proposed
changes to outpatient services. Governors
and members were also actively involved in
gathering patient feedback by supporting
patients to complete the Trust’s ‘How are
we doing?’ survey using iPads and by
conducting observations in outpatient
clinics.
Emergency Department
Governors, volunteers and staff provided
invaluable support to help gather feedback
from patients attending the Emergency
Department. For four Mondays in July and
August 2012 during the peak times of 8am12pm and 4pm-5pm attendees were
surveyed to try to better understand the
reasons why people attend the Emergency
Department.
Improving patient food
Governors and members assist with daily
ward food audits, a programme which has
proved very popular with staff. The
recruiting and training of a new group of
members has begun in order to continue
with this valuable programme of work.
Dignity visits
February 2013 was Dignity Month at the
Trust. Once again, governors played an
active role in this important annual event.
During the month they accompanied staff on
a series of ward visits to hear from staff
about initiatives that they had developed to
improve dignity for patients. Dignity Month
culminated in a Dignity Award 2013
ceremony where TEAM nurses, led by
Matron Denise Andrews, Sister Yumella
Chetty and Specialist Nurse Paula Harvey
were presented with the award. During the
event, staff and stakeholders heard about
the innovative dignity focus groups that
senior nurses have set up on the medical
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wards. These groups provide a regular
forum for nurses across general medical
wards to share and learn from patient
stories. Participants reflect on patient
experience, learn together and share action
plans to consolidate good practice, address
issues of concern and to improve patient
care.
Annual Public Meeting
On 13 September 2012 governors and
members gathered for the Trust’s Annual
Public Meeting. Once again, members
were offered the chance to have health
checks including blood pressure, blood
sugar and body mass index. A review of
the past year was presented by the Chief
Executive, Timothy Smart, and Chief
Financial Officer, Simon Taylor presented a
financial review. There was also a look at
the Trust’s forward plans. Break-out
sessions followed on two topical issues:




Heart Care – The challenges facing the
treatment and prevention of heart
related illness in the local community;
and
Emergency Care – What is an
emergency department for? What kinds
of cases should we be treating and
when should patients go elsewhere for
treatment?

Campaigning for better transport links
and the environment
The King’s College Hospital Transport
Feeder Group was launched in its current
iteration in February 2012. The overarching
remit of the group is to work with the local
stakeholder community to influence relevant
decision makers and contribute to improving
the local transport infrastructure. Prior to
this the Trust had a formal governor-led
Transport Committee established in 2005
60

whose role was to informally scrutinise and
campaign on transport issues that impacted
on the Trust in terms of its patients, visitors
and staff.
The current group was established in order
to allow external stakeholder representation
to be involved and influence the Trust’s
work according to the constitution, and is
the only committee-style function that has
external stakeholder representation.
Members of the group have made some
significant achievements over the past year
to improve transport infrastructure and links
into the hospital. These achievements have
ranged from small scale improvements such
as the extension of the pedestrian crossing
times outside the main hospital entrance to
larger scale activities such as a Trust
response to statutory Department for
Transport re-franchise consultations for
Southeastern and Thameslink services.
The group, in conjunction with local partners
will continue to focus their efforts over the
coming year on future campaigning activity
around the Bakerloo line feasibility study
and extension of the Barclays Bike scheme
into Camberwell. The group will also
continue to campaign for more regular
seven day a week stopping rail services to
be available from Denmark Hill Station.
Service improvements following staff or
patient surveys or comments and Care
Quality Commission reports
Care Quality Commission
The Care Quality Commission visited the
Trust as part of their programme of
scheduled but unannounced reviews on 29
August 2012. The Trust was found to be
compliant with each of the five outcomes
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against which it was assessed and no
service improvements were required.
The inspectors visited Annie Zunz, Byron,
Marjorie Warren, and Donne wards and the
Friends’ Stroke Unit. They spoke with more
than 40 patients as well a number of people
who were visiting on the day. A written
report was published at the end of October
is available on the CQC’s website.
On the 14 January 2013 the Trust
successfully registered renal dialysis
satellite units in Dulwich, Bromley,
Woolwich, Dartford and Sydenham and the
Frank Cooksey neuro-rehabilitation unit
located in Lewisham Hospital. During the
registration process the CQC assessed the
declarations and evidence supplied to them
by the Trust and found that all required
standards had been met. These units will be
inspected in due course as part of the
CQC’s ongoing review programme.
2012 CQC national patient surveys
In 2012 the CQC commissioned two
national surveys: one for inpatients (an
annual survey) and one for emergency
patients.
Inpatient survey
The annual national survey was sent to a
random sample of 850 adults who were
inpatients in July 2012. The results show
that the Trust has improved in 41 out of 55
comparable indicators, remained the same
in three and scored less well for 11.
Patients rated King’s College Hospital as
‘better’ than other trusts for their overall care
and experience, with significant
improvement in other areas including:
 Providing emotional support to patients
and ensuring that they have someone to
talk to if they are worried;




Giving patients good information about
their condition and treatment; and
The support and information given to
patients when they are discharged.

Whilst overall the results were very
encouraging, an action plan has been
developed to improve areas where the Trust
has performed less well.
Emergency Department (ED) survey
The last national emergency department
survey was conducted in 2008. Since then,
there have been a number of developments
within the Trust’s ED including:









Designation as both a Major Trauma
Centre and Hyper-acute Stroke Unit ;
Continued growth in emergency activity,
particularly patients with mental health
problems and children (approximately
41 extra patients per day);
Re-development of the ED including a
larger resuscitation area (opened in
December 2011);
Development of short stay medical
assessment wards – Mary Ray and
Oliver; and
Red Cross service to support patients
going home.

The CQC gave the Trust an ‘amber’ rating
for all sections of the survey. Patients rated
the Trust more highly than in the 2008
survey with particular improvement noted in
the answers to questions about care and
treatment; the environment and facilities;
and information and communication on
leaving the department. The Trust was also
rated top amongst major trauma centres in
London.
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A number of actions have been put in place
to address areas where improvement is still
required including:









Introduction of the national Friends and
Family Test and development of an ED
‘How are we doing survey?’;
Placement of King’s volunteers in the
ED to support patients; and
New partnership with a primary care
provider from March 2013 to improve
the streaming of patients in the ED,
better communication between the
hospital and GPs, and an integrated IT
system.

‘How are we doing?’ survey
The Trust has continued to develop its ‘How
are we doing?’ (HRWD) patient feedback
programme to monitor performance and
drive improvement. For 10 months of the
year the Trust achieved the overall target
score of 86 and scored 85 in the remaining
two months.
This year, the HRWD survey was rolled out
to all main outpatient areas. The roll-out of
the survey and subsequent success in
making improvements to outpatient
experience formed our local Patient
Experience Commissioning for Quality and
Innovation (CQUIN) target. All of the Trust’s
CQUIN targets were met with significant
improvement in two outpatient clinics. Five
key areas of patient experience were
improved:
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If you had to wait for your appointment,
were you told how long you would have
to wait?
How clean was the outpatient
department you visited (including
toilets)?



Did a member of staff explain the results
of your test(s) in a way you could
understand?
Were you involved as much as you
wanted in decisions about your care and
treatment?
Overall, how would you rate the care
you received in the outpatient
department?

There is always room for improvement and
a number of work streams, ward initiatives
and the volunteer programme are aimed at
improving patient experience. In 2012/13, a
further six wards were tasked with making
improvements as part of the national patient
experience CQUIN.
Transformation Programme
This programme is a set of focused
projects, separate from ‘business as usual’,
designed to help the Trust achieve its
strategic goals. Mixed teams from across
the Trust run initiatives to improve the
experience of patients. These include:






Real-time patient feedback on Byron
Ward, which is part of the Health and
Aging Unit, gathered by volunteers and
shared with staff;
Recording patient video stories and
using them as a way of improving
patient experience as part of the NHS
Patient Feedback Challenge; and
Working with teams on Mary Ray and
Oliver wards to improving patient
experience in the Medical Assessment
Unit through focus groups with patients
and collected video stories.

More detailed information about the work
undertaken this year around two patient
experience quality priorities: improving
inpatient care and improving outpatient
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experience can be found in the Quality
Account on pages xxx-xxx.
Patient experience reports continue to
provide integrated monthly data on
complaints, contacts with the Patient Advice
and Liaison Service (PALS) and patient
comments.
King’s Volunteers
Volunteers continue to demonstrate real
benefits to patients, staff and the
communities they are part of. The Trust has
now recruited over 750 volunteers and
recent inpatient survey scores highlight just
how helpful and valuable patients find their
interactions with volunteers.
“To give up time to improve somebody
else’s life is a wonderful thing to do”
(Patient)
“The volunteers have been really positive
for the wards… Overall feedback is very
good – they’re making a difference to
patient care.”
(Matron)
Following a briefing delivered to policy
advisors at No 10 Downing Street in
September, the Trust’s volunteering model
has attracted significant interest from
Whitehall – in particular the Cabinet Office.
Recent highlights include a visit to the Trust
by Nick Hurd, MP and Minister for civil
society, in January to see the volunteering
scheme in action and to officially open the
new volunteer reception area. In March,
two significant twelve-month grants were
secured to fund the expansion of the
programme within King’s and, in an exciting
new development, to devise and roll out a
pilot scheme through which volunteers
would support patients leaving hospital and

promote health and wellness in their local
community. Funding has also been
allocated to conduct an evaluation study of
volunteering at the Trust and to codify the
volunteering model, with a view to rolling it
out across other hospitals
Responding to complaints
The Trust received 643 formal complaints
during 2012/13 which is an increase of
approximately 10% on the number of
complaints received in 2011/12 (590).
However, the ratio of complaints to patient
attendance has remained consistent for the
past two years.
The profile of complaints has also remained
consistent with previous years, in that half of
all complaints relate to some aspect of
clinical treatment. Alongside this are
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concerns about how the Trust has
communicated with patients about their care
and treatment, staff attitude and behaviour,
and procedures for discharge. Just over
50% of complaints responded to were
considered to be well founded.
The NHS Constitution pledges that the NHS
will work in partnership with patients, families
and carers and will encourage and welcome
feedback on health and care experiences,
using it to improve services. During the year,
3,500 enquiries were made with PALS. Of
course not all of these represent a concern,
but every contact is assessed and a proactive approach is agreed, to ensure that the
Trust responds appropriately and quickly to
put things right.
Through its formal complaints and feedback,
the Trust continues to value the opportunity
to respond to patient experience. Many
Trust-wide initiatives, for example, a review
of patient discharge procedures and the ongoing outpatient redesign project, have
incorporated complaints to encapsulate
experience. Working together with patients,
service improvements are made and staff
are provided with training and support to
enable them to maintain the highest
standards of care and service for patients.
Over the coming months, a number of key
actions and initiatives will be developed to
ensure that the Trust responds effectively to
the recommendations of the recently
published Francis Report. The review of
the NHS complaints system is welcomed
and the Trust awaits the Department of
Health’s conclusions.
Service improvements
Below are some examples of service
improvements that have been implemented
64

during the reporting period as a result of
complaints:
A delay in informing the patient that the
lump from their lip, which was biopsied, was
cancerous and a delay in referral to the
oncology team at GSTT.
King’s and GST have worked closely to
establish a new care pathway for all patients
with rubbery lumps in and around the
mouth. It is designed to ensure that, until
proven otherwise, they are considered
salivary tumours and biopsied by fine
needle aspiration prior to any treatment
plans being put in place.
The incorrect interpretation of a limb x-ray
which led to a child being discharged from
the Emergency Department (ED). When
later reviewed by the consultant a double
fracture was diagnosed. The parents were
contacted and the child was brought back to
ED.
There is a joint ED/radiology project
underway to review the x-ray reporting
process. All ED doctors have been
reminded to seek specialist opinion from a
radiologist before the patient leaves the ED
if they are unsure about the findings.
Complaints from patients waiting in the
transport lounge about the lack of
assistance in using the facilities in the
waiting area.
As a result we have recruited volunteers to
this area to help patients whilst they wait for
their transport home.
One patient’s poor experience when
discharged home on oxygen.
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As a result we have put in place a nurse-led
oxygen outpatient clinic which is open 7
days a week, to ensure that these patients
are supported and followed-up after
discharge and we have also improved the
patient information leaflet.
Details of any consultations completed
in the previous year and forthcoming
consultations
In the current climate of change within the
NHS, the Trust understands the need to
engage and consult with patients, Local
Involvement Networks (LINks) and Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committees
(HOSCs) to ensure that any changes in
services are informed by the views of
patients, the public and key stakeholders.
The Trust continues to have regular contact
with local HOSCs and has involved LINks,
HOSCs and other key stakeholders in the
development of the Quality Account. During
the reporting period Trust representatives
have attended both Lambeth and
Southwark HOSC and, more recently, the
Bromley HOSC. Elected HOSC members
scrutinised the Trust on a range of issues
during their 2012-13 municipal year
including:







Patient Complaints and compliance;
Pressure Ulcer rates;
Liver transplantation at King’s College
Hospital;
Proposed acquisition of the Princess
Royal University Hospital;
Safeguarding protocol, and
Quality Account priorities.

The Trust has also been participating
actively in the on-going joint scrutiny of the
King’s Health Partners integration plans and
discussions.

Stakeholder relations
The Board of Directors recognises the
importance of effective communication with
a wide range of stakeholders, including
members of the Trust.
The annual public meeting is used as an
opportunity to communicate with members,
in addition to regular written communication
and member events. A series of community
events are held annually to enable
members to feed into the Trust’s annual
planning process and other initiatives.
The Board of Directors and Council of
Governors are developing a close working
relationship. Members of the Board of
Directors regularly attend Council of
Governors meetings and governors are
actively encouraged to attend Board of
Directors meetings. The Trust Annual Plan,
submitted to Monitor in May, is developed
with regard for the views of the Council of
Governors and members.
Examples of on-going projects which
involve working alongside key stakeholders
are outlined below:
Shifting care outside of hospital
Throughout the reporting period the Trust
continued to work with commissioners to
move care, where appropriate, from a
hospital to a primary care or community
setting. There are a number of clinical
pathway-specific redesign groups whose
membership includes representatives from
the Trust, Guy’s and St Thomas’,
community services and clinical
commissioners. Jointly these groups have
produced jointly agreed referral guidelines.
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This work now continues with clinical
commissioning groups which came into
effect on 01 April 2013.
Trust clinicians have been involved in
training and education in primary care to
enable better management of patients
within GP surgeries, for example, virtual
clinics in diabetes through which hospital
specialists spend dedicated time in GP
practices to guide and support GPs in the
management of diabetes.
Southwark and Lambeth Integrated Care
This integrated care programme is an
initiative in which the Trust is a leading
partner. Working with six other partner
organisations and 95 GP practices the
programme aims to radically transform how
healthcare professionals, citizens and
communities work together to provide
integrated care. The results will empower
individuals to better look after themselves
through supported self-care, while providers
deliver better quality and cost effectiveness.
Community services
Community services are integrated into
King’s Health Partners and this is helping
patients to transition more seamlessly from
an acute hospital setting into the community
or their homes. This year there has been a
focus on preventing hospital admission and
early supported discharge provided by an
enhanced rapid response team. Homeward
are a dedicated community team that will
provide ‘hospital at home’ care to enable
earlier discharge from hospital, for example,
by administering intravenous antibiotics and
managing more complex cases.
Patient information
During the reporting period the Trust has
undertaken a review of the procedure for
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producing and archiving patient information
to reflect changes to practice and to align it
more closely with the consent procedure as
required by the new NHS Litigation
Authority standards. All new patient
information produced to support consent will
follow a set template to ensure that all
necessary information is included and will
be written in jargon-free English to ensure it
is accessible to a broad range of users.
Braille versions are available on request, as
are translations for those patients whose
first language is not English. Brochures are
available in printed formats, on the hospital
intranet for use by staff and on the external
website for download by patients and
carers.
The Trust external website, launched in
2011, has gone from strength to strength,
offering an increasing range of patient
information including an ‘in depth’ section
which offers more detailed information on
specific services such as assisted
conception and cancer. The intention is to
extend the ‘in depth’ section to include a
larger range of services including trauma,
liver and sexual health.
All web content is reviewed and updated on
an on-going basis to reflect service
changes, and patients and other web users
are involved in checking the site and
feeding back on any issues.
The Trust is committed to providing a
website that is accessible to the widest
possible audience, regardless of technology
or ability, including disabled people, people
with visual impairments and those with
motor deficiencies and cognitive
disabilities. Therefore the Trust website
conforms to the World Wide Web
Consortium (W3C) Web Content
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Accessibility Guidelines 2.0 at the AA
standard, making it more user friendly for
everyone.

quality governance processes can be found
in the Annual Governance Statement within
the annual accounts on pages xx-xx.

Enhanced quality governance reporting
The Quality Account on pages xx-xx
outlines the Trust’s quality priorities and
processes for monitoring progress in
achieving them. In addition the Trust’s
Board of Directors has regard for Monitor’s
Quality Governance Framework, principally
through the work of the Quality and
Governance Committee and its reporting
committees which focus on the three
dimensions of quality: patient outcomes,
patient safety and patient experience. The
committee also reviews a self-assessment
against the Monitor Quality Governance
Framework. This self-assessment is then
reported to the Board and submitted as part
of the quarterly return to Monitor.

A Representative Membership

In response to the report published by
Robert Francis QC following the public
inquiry into the Mid Staffordshire NHS
Foundation Trust, the Trust has set up a
working group to oversee implementation of
the report’s recommendations and to drive
any necessary cultural and organisational
changes. Membership of the group includes
executive and non-executive members of
the Board of Directors, a patient governor
and senior nursing and medical staff. A
series of key project themes have been
identified although the main priority in the
short term will be to improve and support
the listening culture at the Trust. Progress
will be reported to the Quality and
Governance Committee, Board of Directors
and Council of Governors.
More information about the Quality and
Governance Committee can be found on
page 49; further detail about the Trust’s

The Trust’s Engagement and Experience
Strategy incorporates a strategy for
membership development and outlines the
Trust’s approach to ensuring that we have a
membership that is reflective of the local
community. It also focuses on methods of
involving the membership in the work of the
Trust and on how members can have a
positive role in improving the local
community.
The Engagement and Experience Strategy
is monitored by the Governors’ Membership
and Community Engagement Committee
and the Trust Patient Experience
Committee.
A representative membership
The Trust’s membership is split into three
constituencies: public, patient and staff.
Public membership - anyone who is 16
years old or over and lives within the
Boroughs of Lambeth or Southwark is
entitled to become a public member.
Patient membership - anyone who is 16
years old or over and lives outside of
Lambeth and Southwark but has been a
patient of the Trust in the last six years, or
has been the carer of a patient of the Trust
in the last six years, is entitled to become a
patient member.
Staff membership - all staff of the Trust
who have contracts of at least 12 months
are automatically members unless they
choose to opt out. Employees of other
companies who provide services for the
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Trust and are based onsite e.g. Medirest
staff, are also entitled to become staff
members.
The total number of members at year end
was 15,658. This total includes 4,276 from
the public constituency and 4,157 from the
patient constituency.
The Trust continues to work hard to ensure
that its membership is representative of the
local community, and takes steps to ensure
that membership is accessible to all who are
eligible, irrespective of age, gender, race or
social background. Demographics of the
membership are monitored via the
membership database and any gaps can be
addressed with targeted recruitment. For
example, the Trust has proportionally fewer
members in the 16-35 age category and so
new Trust volunteers, a large proportion of
whom are under 25, are being encouraged
to sign up for membership.
Membership recruitment
The financial climate for the Trust and the
NHS as a whole continues to be
challenging. Therefore cost-neutral
recruitment methods continue to be used to
build the membership. In spite of this,
recruitment has been steady with 134 new
public members and 431 new patient
members being recruited. The attrition rate
this year was 3%, compared to 10% last
year, with 281 members leaving.
We have used the following methods to
recruit members:


68

Promoting membership through local
stakeholder groups, schools, Local
Involvement Networks and promoting
membership via Lambeth and
Southwark’s Patient and Public









Involvement email alerts and
newsletters;
Promoting membership as part of King’s
“How are we doing?” patient feedback
programme;
Linking with King’s Corporate Social
Responsibility Programme to promote
membership in local schools and
colleges;
Working with King’s Volunteers to
promote membership at external
community events, careers fairs, at local
schools; and
The Trust website where people can
sign up for membership.

Over the coming year, and in accordance
with the Engagement and Experience
Strategy, a target of maintaining a patient
and public membership of between 8,000
and 10,000 members is set out.
An involved membership
A number of initiatives are undertaken to
involve members with Trust activities. Some
of these are outlined on pages 59 and 60.
Others include:







Regular newsletters to update members
on events at the Trust and which
highlights opportunities to get more
involved, plus notification of all Council
of Governor meetings;
Programme of talks on public health and
how services are structured and
delivered;
A digest of the Trust Annual Report,
called the Annual Review; and
Members’ section on Trust website useful up-to-date information and news
is provided in the section of the website
dedicated to members. It includes more
information on how they can get
involved in the work of the Trust.
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Contacting the membership team
If you have any queries regarding
membership, please contact the
membership team:
Membership Office
King’s College Hospital
FREEPOST NAT 7343
London SE5 9BR
Email: kch-tr.members@nhs.net
Telephone: 020 3299 8785.
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Quality Report
Statement of Quality from the Chief Executive

The Quality Account is to be inserted here
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Review of Priorities and Objectives for 2012/13
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Developing Priorities and Objectives for 2013/13
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Part 1. Statement on Quality from the Chief Executive
‘Quality’, ‘safety’, ‘care and compassion’ are on everyone’s mind in light of the Francis Report into
the horrifying events at Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust. Looking back at my statement in
the introduction to last year’s Quality Account, I am pleased to see that those words and phrases
were on my mind then too.
We are still on a journey, and the entire leadership of King’s College Hospital is seized of the
importance of kind and compassionate care. It imbues all our values, and is a key plank in the
support we give to the nursing workforce in particular. They face huge challenges. Regulation
becomes even more onerous and yet our patient cohort continues to be more acutely unwell and
more frail, and requires more one on one care, So we try to be innovative. We are leading the way
in becoming paperless, which is in part about releasing time to care. We have centralised some of
the processes so that direct patient care can be more efficiently delivered, and again releases the
nursing workforce to spend more time by the patient’s bed-side. Having an electronic patient
records system allows all the documents relating to each individual patient’s clinical pathway and
care plan to be easily accessed by all members of the multidisciplinary team. The unfolding of the
patient’s clinical condition is captured in a timely and contemporaneous manner and this allows for
earlier changes in the patient’s condition to be detected.
in 2012/13 we have made significant progress in reducing MRSA bactermias and are in a much
better place on other healthcare acquired infections, but we can never be complacent. The results
of our own patient satisfaction surveys are positive, but the maintaining the right atmosphere and
environment for acutely unwell frail elderly people remains challenging. This is an incredibly busy
hospital, not always, the most ideal environment, for patients and carers with difficult long term
conditions. But they are our mainstay, and I am delighted that they are reflected in this year’s
quality priorities.
One of our values is ‘making a difference in our local community’, so the process of deciding on
our quality priorities is completely in keeping with that. Stakeholder engagement has been evident
in the way those priorities have been set. And our volunteers continue to make a difference.
Feeding frail elderly patients is just one of the areas where they can support the nursing workforce;
they have more time, and because they are volunteers they identify closely with the patients and
the public and therefore add to the compassionate care delivered by our professional workforce
The feedback from our stakeholder and patients is pivotal to our continuing focus on service
improvement. Our nurses and other healthcare professionals live in close proximity to the
populations we serve. Our governors and non-executive directors give of themselves unstintingly
to make sure we stay true to our core purpose. Our commissioners, and healthcare system
partners, work tirelessly with us to help us deal with the pressures we face.
The coming 12 months will probably see us change in many ways. We may well increase in size by
30% by acquiring the Princess Royal University Hospital in Bromley. We may well also decide to
merge with Guy’s and St Thomas’, and SLAM. None of that is certain. But what is certain is that
our local patients will always be at the heart of everything we do. And I hope that in 12 months’
time I will again be able to be proud about the kind and compassionate care we provide to them.
We will have paid particular attention to six priorities, determined by our stakeholder consultation.
Dementia and COPD are significant for our local patients, but we will also focus on particular
aspects of the outpatient and patient discharge processes. We will also be safer and pay particular
attention to the identification and escalation of deteriorating patients.
I hope you enjoy reading this report. Is has been a collaborative effort, and it reflects much of the
progress we have made, and it doesn’t hide any of the issues we still face on our journey to deliver
first class care to our local population.
3

To the best of my knowledge, the information contained in the following Quality Account is
accurate.
Timothy Smart
Chief Executive
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A guide to the structure of this report
The following report summarises our performance and improvements against the quality priorities
and objectives we set ourselves for 2012-2013. It also outlines those we have agreed for the
coming year (2013-2014).
Firstly, we have detailed how we performed in 2012-2013 against the priorities and objectives we
set ourselves for patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience. Secondly, we have
outlined our quality priorities and objectives for 2013-2014 under the same headings: patient
safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience. We have detailed how we decided upon the
priorities and objectives and how we will achieve and measure our performance against these. The
regulated Statements of Assurance are included in this part of the report.
Finally, we have provided other information to review our overall quality performance against key
national priorities and national key standards. This includes the 2012-2013 requirement to report
against a core set of indicators relevant to the services we provide; using a standardised statement
set out in the NHS (Quality Accounts) Amendment Regulations 2012. We have also published the
Statements from Clinical Commissioning Groups, NHS England, Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committees, and Local Involvement Networks that outline their response to this Quality Account.

Quality Accounts and CQUINs
This document is one way we report on the quality of care we provide. One other important
mechanism for this reporting is the Commissioning for Quality and Improvement (CQUIN)
framework. As CQUINs, and data gathered for CQUINs, are referred to a number of times in our
Quality Account, an explanation is given below of what they are, and how they relate to our Quality
Account.
The CQUIN framework was introduced in April 2009 as a national framework for locally agreed
quality improvement schemes. CQUINs are designed to make a proportion of provider income
conditional on the achievement of ambitious quality improvement goals and innovations.
CQUINs are intended to reward excellence and encourage providers to drive a portfolio of quality
improvements on a continuous basis. Each year providers and commissioners come together to
agree the detail of how national (e.g. VTE risk assessments) and local priorities (e.g. screening for
harmful and hazardous alcohol use) will be achieved and measured. A series of milestones and
targets are agreed in advance and each provider is required to submit evidence to commissioners
at regular intervals in order to secure the funding associated with the quality improvement.
It is recognised that the CQUIN framework is important for implementing the National Institute of
Clinical Excellence (NICE) Quality Standards and Department of Health led innovations as well as
for improving patient experience and outcomes. As a result, there is a natural overlap between the
objectives associated with Quality Account priorities and those contained in the Trust’s CQUIN
agreement. Where relevant, CQUIN evidence has been used throughout this document to support
the achievement of Quality Account priorities.
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Part 2. Priorities for Improvement and Statements
Assurance
Our Quality Priorities and Objectives for 2012/13

of

Summary

Patient Safety

Patient Experience

Clinical
Effectiveness

The table below summarises the specific priorities and objectives we set ourselves for patient
safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience in 2012/13.

Priority

Key Objectives (Outline)

Measure

Rating

1. Improve end of
life care

To build on the work in 2011/12 to improve
the co-ordination of care we give to
patients as they approach end of life and
achieve the locally agreed CQUIN target

Process/
Outcome

Fully
Met

2. Improve
diabetes care

To build on the work in 2011/12 to meet
the NICE Quality Standard for diabetes
inpatient care (Standards 11 – 13).

Process/
Outcome

Mostly
Met

3. Improve our
responsiveness to
personal needs for
inpatients

To use similar framework of 2011/12 to
achieve the locally agreed CQUIN target
for the “responsiveness to personal needs”
composite indicator.

Outcome

Fully
Met

4. Improve
outpatient
experience

To roll-out the in-house outpatient
experience feedback survey to key clinics.

Process

Fully
Met

To make focused clinical improvement in
specific aspects of outpatient experience

Outcome

Fully
Met:
further
need
identifi
ed

5. Improve
identification and
escalation of
acutely ill patients

To establish a consistent performance
framework for identification and escalation
of acutely ill patients.

Process

Fully
Met:
further
need
identifi
ed

6. Minimise harm
acquired in the
hospital

To reduce injurious falls and pressure
sores, as well as reduce catheterisation
and ensure greater compliance with
appropriate VTE risk assessment, as set
out in our locally agreed CQUIN target.

Process/
Outcome

Fully
Met

6

Clinical Effectiveness Priorities: 2012/13 Performance
Our Quality Priorities and
why we chose them

What we aimed to do

What we achieved

1. Improve end of life care

Improve the timeliness and quality of the
EOLC care discharge summary to
improve communications between
primary and secondary care; patients
identified as approaching the end of life
should have evidence of end of life care
planning and have their preferences
documented. With the patient’s
permission close relatives are kept
informed of developments and are able to
discuss any concerns.

To date, 96.8% (550/568) of specialist EOLC care
discharges have had a discharge letter sent within 2
working days against a stretch target of 92%. In
addition, we conducted two quality audits with clinical
commissioners, which confirmed that the content of
discharge information met the needs of primary care.

We are committed to ensuring
the organisation remains
focused on enabling effective
and responsive coordination of
care for our patients as they
approach the end of life
(EOLC). We recognise that to
achieve the EOLC excellence
we aspire to, the improvement
success in the past year can
be built on by sustaining our
systemic focus and capacitybuilding across the whole
organisation.

Increase the number of staff that have
nationally agreed competencies
associated with end of life care training.
This aim was to ensure that staff have
the knowledge, skills and attitudes to
deliver high quality care when treating
EOLC care patients.
Improve the coordination of care and
advanced care planning via
implementation of the Amber care
bundle.

We developed online and face-to-face training
consistent with national guidelines. From November
to March 2013, we focused on clinical staff in liver,
renal and haematology and at the end of quarter 4
160 staff in these areas received specialist EOLC
training.
The Trust maintained the Amber Care Bundle on five
wards throughout the year; a sixth ward (Friend’s
Stroke Unit) was added in quarter four.
The programme was supported by quarterly quality
audits where data was collected at an average of 3
patients on each ward per month. As a result of this
quality monitoring, the team were able to improve the
usage of the amber care discharge summary from
37% in Q3 to 73% in Q4.
The development of the functionality of the eLCP is
80% complete and plans are in place to pilot the
software by the end of April 2013.

Have the Liverpool Care Pathway (eLCP)
recorded as part of the Electronic Patient
Record.
2. Improve diabetes care
Approximately one in five
King’s adult inpatients has
diabetes, and the majority are
admitted to King’s for reasons
other than their diabetes. If
diabetes is identified early and
treated effectively, clinical
outcomes for patients improve
and they may experience
shorter duration of stay.
Key to being able to influence
the experience and care of
patients with diabetes across
the Trust is the development of
performance system tools.
This aids our ability to be
responsive to patient needs
and to see where changes are
making a difference
In order to address this need,
the NICE Quality Standard for
diabetes inpatient care (11-13)
formed the basis of this quality
priority since 2011.

To improve insulin safety by reducing the
incidence of insulin prescriptions and
management errors for those currently on
insulin therapy.
To develop systems and processes to
support ‘technology enabled care’ and
implement a performance management
system framework to monitor change.
To improve the quality of care by:
- ensuring ward staff are appropriately
trained;
- giving patients a choice of selfmonitoring and managing their own
insulin; and
- ensuring patients have access to the
specialist diabetes team if needed.
Overall we aim to positively influence the
culture of diabetes care across the Trust;
educating and empowering staff to act
proactively and responsively to patient
need.

We piloted an additional Diabetes Specialist Nurse in
the Liver, Renal and Surgical wards to improve insulin
safety. This resulted in a 27% improvement (from
73% to 93%) in insulin management safety,
expressed as the percentage of patients who had
“error-free” care. Insulin prescription safety has also
been further enhanced from 90% to 93%.
The electronic diabetes referral form and insulin
monitoring reports were available from autumn 2012.
These systems track referrals and record outcomes
for patients seen by the specialist team. This
information has been incorporated into a visual
performance management system (eVision) and is
now used to review trends in diabetic prevalence,
referrals, insulin management and re-attendance at a
ward and speciality level. In addition, the business
case for an electronic blood glucose monitoring
system has been approved. Once implemented in
2013/14, results will available to view in electronic
systems, enabling more prompt medical management
decisions by local and specialist teams.
Although the Insulin safety group was re-launched to
bring new opportunity to share best practice across
teams, the realisation of a measureable cultural shift
and increased empowerment of front line staff to
manage patients with diabetes is on-going. In
2013/14 we will continue to aim to produce an in
house eLearning module and to develop the Diabetic
LINK practitioner network.
In order to better understand diabetic patient
experience a ‘How Are We Doing?’ question on
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diabetes care was added in January 2013. Results
are now being analysed and actions will be carried
forward in 2013/14.

Patient Experience Priorities: 2012/13 Performance
Our Quality Priorities and
why we chose them

What we aimed to do

What we achieved

3. Improve our
responsiveness to inpatients’
personal needs

To improve and/or maintain top quartile
performance on the National Inpatient
Survey. (individual survey question
performance is included in Part 3 under
national performance data)

The 2012/13 National Inpatient Experience CQUIN
was achieved with an improved score of 68.5 on the
five questions that relate to responsiveness to
personal needs (64.5% in 2011/12).

Upon reflection of internal and
national survey results, we
recognised that while most
patients have a very positive
experience and report high
levels of satisfaction, this is not
always consistent across all
areas.
For 2012/13 National CQUIN
targets for patient experience
remain the same: a basket of
five questions that relate to
“responsiveness to personal
needs”. These questions have
been found to be important to
patients, and in 2011/12 had still
not achieved the level of
consistency and high standards,
as measured in our National
Inpatient Survey, to which we
would aspire. We know that
when we tailor and focus our
support to specific ward areas,
we are able to achieved
significant and sustained
improvement to patient
experience. We are therefore
continuing this approach in
spreading the improvement
wider in the hospital.
4. Improve Outpatient
Experience
With over 700,000 outpatient
attendances each year, there is
strong evidence through national
surveys, PALS and complaints
data that outpatient services
need to improve. In order to
improve satisfaction we need
data to tell us what we are doing
wrong so that we can put
actions in place to improve
services and continually
measure performance.
The introduction of outpatient
feedback will ensure we know
what patients are saying and
enable us to respond quickly to
the issues raised.

Using the internal ‘How are We Doing?’
(HRWD) survey, we will twice a year
select the three poorest performing wards
and work with them to implement local
improvement plans for the five
“responsiveness to patients’ needs”
questions. As a result, we will aim to
demonstrate a minimum of 3%
improvement in performance.

Over the year, six wards participated in the local
CQUIN inpatient experience improvement scheme.
The selection process is based on the three lowest
performing wards at the end of March 2012 and
December 2012. Each ward is asked to develop a
plan to identify issues and define actions which will
positively influence performance. Improvement is
monitored over the subsequent three months in order
to make a minimum improvement of 3%.
The wards selected to participate during Q1 and Q2
were Matthew Whiting, which made a 5%
improvement; Lister, which made a 6% improvement;
and Annie Zunz, which made a 4% improvement with
an overall achievement of 5% against a target of 3%.
The wards selected to participate during Q3 and Q4
are David Marsden, Kinnier Wilson and Dawson
Wards. The Trust achieved a 4% improvement in
overall performance.
This basket of five questions, used as the National
CQUIN Patient Experience measure since 2010, is
being replaced by the Friends and Family Test in
2013/14. Further information is available at
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nhsfriends-and-family-test-guidance-on-scoring-andpresenting-results-published

Roll out the outpatient experience survey
to all outpatient areas and train delivery
and service managers to access results;
deliver a customer service training
programme for front line staff.
Achieve commissioner agreed uptake
targets for Q3 and a minimum of 200
returned surveys in Q4.
Develop specific improvement plans for
Suites 3 and 7 against the following 5 key
questions and achieve a 3%
improvement on pilot results. The 5
questions we will be measured on are:
If you had to wait for an appointment, were you
told how long you would have to wait?
How clean was the Outpatient Department you
visited (including toilets)?
Did a member of staff explain the results of
any test(s) in a way you could understand?
Were you involved as much as you wanted in
decisions about your care and treatment?
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The Outpatients HRWD survey has been available to
all areas since January 2013. Information on how to
access the online survey is given in clinic or sent by
text. Patients with limited access to the internet can
complete the survey onsite at one of the HRWD
kiosks or with the support of one of our volunteers in
clinic with an iPad. All service and delivery managers
have been trained to view results through the
Meridian online reporting system. This system
provides near time results where patient feedback can
be received as soon as it is entered by patients.
Returned surveys for January were 670, 739 for
February, and 693 for March.
Suite specific plans were developed with input from
clinical and non clinical front line teams. By quarter 4
a composite score of 77.2 was achieved across the
two suites.
th

An outpatient ‘In Your Shoes’ event was held on 26
March 2013. Staff listened to the patients’
experiences and together discussed areas that could

Overall, how would you rate the care you
received in the outpatient department?

Hold a follow up ‘In Your Shoes’ event
focusing on outpatient experience.

have been improved or that have been positive. The
group then looked at changes made to the electronic
check in system that had been changed in the light of
past events and fedback.
We have proposed to take this work forward as a
quality priority and CQUIN in 2013/14 with a focus on
Trauma and Orthopaedics in Suite 1.

Safety Priorities: 2012/13 Performance
Our Quality Priorities and
why we chose them

What we aimed to do

What we achieved

5. Improve identification and
escalation of acutely ill
patients

Launch scorecard for divisional
monitoring & management.

Scorecards were successfully developed to provide
summary and divisional baseline reports.

Consolidate oversight committees and
reporting and standardise investigation of
deteriorating patient incidents.

To strengthen governance we streamlined the
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome
and Death (NCEPOD) review and embedded a Root
Cause Analysis proforma, the results of which are
reviewed by the Core Deteriorating Patients Group
and inpatient divisions now report in to the
Deteriorating Patient Group every 6 month

Prompt identification of those
patients who become acutely ill
is important to appropriate care
and treatment. Timely
intervention can prevent:
 prolonged delay to recovery;
 deterioration that leads to
permanent disability; or
deterioration that leads to death

Promote the ‘SBAR’ communication tool
(Situation, Background, Assessment,
Recommendation).
Implement Wardware electronic
observations software.

Kwiki resource established to improve access to
communication tools (including ‘SBAR’). These tools
were further promoted by a Board Room event in
February 2013 that over 400+ staff attended.
Electronic observations software (Wardware) was
implemented on 12 wards.
We have proposed to take this work forward as a
quality account in 13/14 and will be discussed in
further detail on page X of this report

6. Minimise harm acquired in
hospital
In our discussion with
stakeholders, they highlighted
that these were important
headline measures that could
act as proxy indicators to reflect
wider improvements in safety
and reliability of clinical care.
As well as ensuring that we “do
no harm” in the care we provide,
we also believe that these four
measures will minimise the
duration of hospital stay for our
patients, enabling a better
recovery experience.

90% of all adult inpatients to have a
venous thrombosis (VTE) risk
assessment on admission in each month
of 2012/13 and at least 90% of patients
audited receive appropriate prophylaxis.
At least 75% of patients audited receive
appropriate information regarding VTE
assessment. All patients identified
following VTE risk assessment as ‘at risk
of VTE’ and requiring prophylaxis are
offered, with their carers, written
information on VTE prevention in line with
the NICE VTE Prevention Quality
Standards as part of the admission and
discharge processes.
To increase the recorded numbers of
VTE trained staff across the Trust.
Improve collection of data in relation to
pressure ulcers, falls, urinary tract
infection in those with a catheter, and
VTE with 100% achievement against 8
wards submitting monthly safety
thermometer data for each month in the
quarter 4.
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The 2012/13 annual performance for the number of
adult inpatients who had a VTE risk assessment was
96.5%

Monthly audits, with a sample of 150 patients across
10 randomly selected wards, were completed in
2012/13. Targets were met for each quarter as per
our CQUIN agreement, and the final quarter 4
performance for appropriate prophylaxis and
information was 95.36% and 73% respectively

The Trust reviewed the clinical staff that would be
eligible for VTE training and against a target of 70%,
81% of clinical staff were trained by the end of March
2013.
At the end of the year the Trust exceeded its CQUIN
trajectory of 8 wards and started Trust wide collection
of National Safety Thermometer survey data from
February 2013.

To continue the rollout of Safety Express
to high risk wards.
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The Safety Express programme is now running on 12
wards. These wards were considered high risk as
they admit a large number of elderly and /or highly
acute patients which are prone to develop pressure
sores or experience a fall.

Our Quality Priorities and Objectives for 2013/14
This section of the Quality Report summarises our patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient
experience objectives for 2013/14, how these were developed, and how these will be achieved and
measured.

Summary

Patient Safety

Patient Experience

Clinical Effectiveness

Our safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience objectives and priorities are summarised
below:

Priority

Key Objectives (Outline)

CQ*

Measure

1. Dementia

To improve the care of patients with
dementia by focusing on the detection of
undiagnosed patients admitted to acute
care, support for carers of patients with
dementia and level of staff with
specialised dementia training.

CQ

Process/

2. Chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease
(COPD)

To improve the self-management of
symptoms for patients with the long term
condition COPD and improve community
support in a way that reduces acute
COPD related readmissions.

CQ

Process/
Outcome

3. Improve outpatient
experience

To make focused speciality specific
improvements, based on and measured
by, direct patient feedback on the
Outpatient ‘How Are We Doing?’ survey.

CQ

Process/
Outcome

4. Improve patient
experience of
discharge

To implement key elements of the
Discharge Policy and deliver
improvements to patient satisfaction in
relation to discharge information.

-

Process/
Outcome

5. Management of the
acutely unwell patient

To build on the work in 2012/13 to
establish a consistent performance
framework for the identification and
escalation of acutely ill patients.

-

Process/
Outcome

6. Surgical Safety
Checklist

To develop and implement a strategy to
ensure the Surgical Safety Checklist
(SSC) is integrated into the working
practices of all theatre/interventional
teams.

-

Process/
Outcome

Outcome

*CQ=Part of our CQUIN framework of national and locally agreed targets

Developing our forward looking quality priorities 2013/14
In a busy acute hospital like King’s, there are always many quality improvements going on at any
given time. The wider range of improvements to patient care happening across the Trust will not
stop or slow down, but we have honed a clear set of priority objectives. These act like a set of
promises that everyone at King’s commits to meet or exceed this year. From our various
consultations, we know they are clear and meaningful to you as our key stakeholders. We would
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like you to support our agenda for continuously improving our high quality patient care, and to hold
us to account.

Learning from the past
We have also learnt that organisation-wide quality improvements may warrant the profile and
attention over a period longer than 12 months. We have therefore reflected on how we build on
our success to sustain and grow improvements. The diagram below summarises our quality
objectives and priorities over the last five years:

How the priorities for quality improvement have been developed:
1. Reflected on our progress with the current year’s quality priorities (Apr-Nov 2012).
For example, we reviewed this at the Board Quality and Governance Committee, as well as
the Stakeholder Engagement Event on 20 December 2012.
2. A long-list of priorities was identified with the executive chairs and leads of each of the
committees which focus on the three dimensions of quality:
 Patient Safety
 Patient Outcomes
 Patient Experience.
3. External stakeholders’ perspectives were collected in prioritising the long list of
potential areas for improving patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience
(one event on 20 December 2012 and an additional mail out to individual stakeholder for
further comment on 5 March 2013. We also attended the parallel discussions at our
Academic Health Science Centre partners: Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust).
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This has involved discussions with the patients and public who highlighted and helped
select the Trust’s priorities.
4. Frontline teams/subject matter experts were consulted about the work planned to meet
these quality improvements, to shape feasible improvement objectives. The Performance
Directorate were closely involved to ensure alignment with the emergent CQUIN
framework. This has been through the key committees and forums outlined below:

Groups

Engagement Events

Commissioners,
governors,
LINks, OSCs

External Stakeholder Event 1 – Review of last 6 months
progress, and early discussion about 2012/13 priorities (20
Dec)
Guy’s and St Thomas’ External Stakeholder Events (10 Dec,
8 Mar)
External Stakeholder Mail out – 2013/14 priorities (5 March)

Commissioners

NHS SEL Clinical Quality Meeting – This group will meet
monthly to discuss key quality issues related to the Trust.

Governors

Patient Experience & Safety Committee (15 Jan)
Council of Governors (6 Feb)

Staff

Nov 2012 – March 2013:
 Frontline teams and subject matter experts
 Quality & Governance Committee
 Patient Safety Committee
 Patient Outcomes Committee
 Patient Experience Committee
 Performance Directorate
 King’s Executive
 Quality Account Editorial Panel

5. The Board of Directors provided final ratification on the recommended six priorities for
quality improvement over 2013/14 at their meeting on 26 February 2013.
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Clinical Effectiveness Priorities: plans for 2013/14
1. Care of patients with dementia
Why have we chosen this is as a priority?
Dementia is a significant challenge for the NHS - 25% of beds are occupied by people with dementia, their
length of stay is longer than people without dementia and there is often a sense they are 'in the wrong place'.
Whilst work is underway to improve the nature of outcome data the process measures of dementia risk
assessment will set an effective foundation for appropriate management of patients allowing significant
improvements in the quality of care.
The Trust is dedicated to increasing the identification of patients with dementia and other causes of cognitive
impairment alongside their other medical conditions. This will enable us to prompt appropriate referral and
follow up after they leave hospital and to ensure that hospitals deliver high quality care to people with
dementia and support their carers.
In order to demonstrate our plans for quality improvement we will:
 Improve the detection of dementia for elderly people admitted to acute care.
 Implement NICE guidance for the support and interventions for the carers of people with dementia.
 Develop and deliver an annual dementia training plan under the guidance of the Trust nominated
Clinical Lead for dementia.
How will we monitor progress?
Progress will be monitored through the 2013/14 National Dementia CQUIN framework. Monthly data will be
collated and reported directly to the Department of Health as follows:




Report on the total number of patients aged 75 and over, who were admitted as emergencies and
stayed for more than 72 hours; of these how man were screened for dementia using a combination
of the assessment below:
a) were asked if they have been more forgetful in the past 12 months to the extent that it has
significantly affected their daily life, or b) had a clinical diagnosis of delirium on initial assessment, or
c) had a known diagnosis of dementia;
This report will also state how many of these patients had appropriate investigation & follow up.

The Trust will also provide our local commissioners with quarterly reports on the number of staff who have
completed dementia training against an agreed plan and report to the Trust Board directly on the issues
raised through a regular audit of carer of patients with dementia.
Local monitoring of progress will occur monthly through the Dementia Steering Group which is attended by
service and clinical leads.
At the end of 2013/14, what will success look like?
 We will have ensured that:
o 90% of the emergency admissions aged 75 and older were screened for dementia
o 90% of patients with a positive dementia screen, who were not previously known to have
dementia will have an appropriate follow up. in place before discharge. This outcome will be
communicated with their GP.
 We will have completed the proposed dementia training programme.
 We will have completed a monthly audit of carers of people with dementia to test whether they feel
supported. These results will have be reported to the Trust Board.
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2. Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD)
Why have we chosen this is as a priority?
The aim of the priority is to improve the care of patients admitted to hospital with an exacerbation of COPD,
improve their understanding of the disease, reduce future reliance on secondary care, and reduce the
chance of further admissions. Its use should ensure that key evidence-based interventions that are known to
improve the management of patients with COPD have been implemented or at least considered during a
patient's admission. This should be for patients admitted to both respiratory wards and also, importantly, for
people admitted with a COPD exacerbation to non-respiratory wards. The bundle includes:
 referral to smoking cessation service if a current smoker;
 assessment of suitability and/or enrolment into a pulmonary rehabilitation programme;
 appropriate education, written information, self-management plans and rescue packs for future
exacerbations;
 ensure the patient understands their medications and have demonstrated good inhaler technique
whilst on the wards;
 ensure that they have appropriate follow up once discharged from hospital.
The bundle will be personalised to the individual as not all components are needed for everyone. In this way
it has the power to change clinical behaviour and achieve sustainable change. Only patient who have a
CONFIRMED DIAGNOSIS will be given the COPD Bundle
In order to demonstrate our plans for quality improvement we will:
 Ensure that patients admitted with a COPD exacerbation are given a COPD bundle during, or
immediately following their admission.
How will we monitor progress?
Progress will be monitored through the 2013/14 Local COPD CQUIN Agreement.
Regular internal meetings will be held with the respiratory team and lead consultant to review monthly data
and ensure that appropriate patients have been seen.
Patients with frequent readmissions will be flagged so that more appropriate onward care plans can be
discussed and put in place.
At the end of 2013/14, what will success look like?
 We will have rolled out the COPD bundle Trust wide to include all patients with a confirmed
diagnosis who are admitted with an acute exasperation of COPD.
 We will have reported figures for quarter 1 to our local commissioners and set improvement targets
for quarters 3 and 4.
 We will have achieved the quarter 3 and year end improvement targets for the percentage of
patients who have received the COPD bundle.
 We will be able to measure the impact if bundle through a comparison of 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14
attendance and readmissions data for this group of patients.

15

Patient Experience Priorities: plans for 2013/14
3. Improve outpatient experience
Why have we chosen this is as a priority?
Over 500,000 patients attend outpatients each year. A large proportion of our outpatients will also become
our inpatients so it is essential that their first experience of King’s is a positive one. Gathering feedback from
outpatients and improving services in clinic is essential to drive up patient satisfaction across the board and
should have a positive impact on King’s inpatient satisfaction scores both in the How are we doing? survey
and the National Inpatient Survey.
For 2013/14, we hope to build on the success of the Outpatient quality account priority which started
2012/13. We successfully launched the outpatient How are we doing? survey across all the main outpatient
areas in the Trust. This has provided vital baseline data and identified areas that need improving. This
evidence, along with data from complaints, PALs and patient listening events allows targeted service
improvement to improve the patient experience.
In addition, KCH is still in the process of redesigning the outpatient setting. Given the benchmark created in
the 2012/13, this is an opportunity to ensure that Quality Improvements made as part of the Outpatient
redesign are meeting the needs of patients. The redesign will involve looking into areas of concern
highlighted by patient surveys, around both general processing in outpatients; including bookings, delays
and experience of clinics as well as focus on poor performing clinics or areas within the outpatient unit.
In order to demonstrate our plans for quality improvement we will:
 Based on the Q4 2012/13 results, identify a key speciality and agree which 5 questions most in
need of improvement within their area.
 Develop action plans on how to deliver improvements in the 5 identified questions.
 Agree improvement target % for Q2, 3 and 4.
How will we monitor progress?
Progress will be monitored through the 2013/14 Local CQUIN Agreement. There will also be regular patient
experience surveys throughout the year which will focus on the quality improvement in outpatients, and
assess the direct impact on patient experience of any improvements made.
Regular internal meetings will be held with the outpatients operational and patient experience team and lead
consultant to review monthly data and progress against the agreed action plan.
We will also use qualitative methods to monitor progress and ensure that we are meeting the needs of our
patients. This will include clinic observations, listening events and video stories to ensure improvement work
is targeted correctly and that the changes being made are having a direct impact on the patient experience.
At the end of 2013/14, what will success look like?
 We will have improved response rates to provide robust feedback on patient experience.
 We will have improved scores on the local How Are We Doing outpatient survey on questions
targeted for improvement in specific areas.
 There will be a decrease in patient complaints relating to the Outpatient department.
 Ultimately, patients will have a better experience of outpatients.
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4. Improve patient experience of discharge
Why have we chosen this is as a priority?
Patients tell us that the quality of information and communication about discharge is variable. We know this
from our patient surveys and from the many comments that patients make about the discharge process. In
the 2011 National Inpatient survey there was a significant fall in patient satisfaction in questions about
‘Leaving Hospital’ which include questions on a range of communication and information.
The Trust has introduced a number of initiatives over the last few year including a nursing discharge
checklist. These initiatives have had some impact in some areas but the improvement has not been
universal and this is still an area where we think we can make a significant difference to patient experience.
Both staff and our stakeholders agreed that improving patient information on discharge should be an
improvement priority for patient experience for the 2013/2014 Quality Account.
A new Trust Discharge Policy will be implemented in 2013. The Policy includes clear guidance on
information that should be given to patients to prepare them for discharge and support them once they are
discharged. It is proposed that implementation of key elements of the Discharge Policy and improvements in
patient satisfaction with specific discharge information form the basis for this quality priority.
In order to demonstrate our plans for quality improvement we will:
 Implement the new Trust Wide Discharge Policy.
 Roll-out the ‘Home for Lunch’ information sheet Trust wide to improve the standard of:
o discharge planning
o Information given to patients
 Improve trust-wide patient satisfaction in two key areas:
o providing information about medication after discharge;
o providing patients with information on what to do and who to contact if they have a concern
after discharge.
How will we monitor progress?
An audit tool will be developed and built into local audit programmes to measure how elements of the policy
are being implemented in practice.
Patient survey will be used to gather patient views on the adequacy and quality of patient information
provided on discharge pre and post implementation.
Additional on-going monitoring via the How are we doing inpatient survey and National Survey results. These
are routinely reviewed though the Trust Patient Experience Committee.
At the end of 2013/14, what will success look like?
 The Discharge Policy will be ratified by the Trust Executive and rolled out trust wide.
 An audit against the requirement of the policy will have been developed and imbedded into local audit
programmes.
 Results of audits will have been reviewed by Trust leads and recommended improvements will be in
place.
 Improved scores in the local How Are We Doing inpatient survey and 2013 National Inpatient Survey on
questions that relate to patient discharge.
 Patients will have been given more detailed information about what they should and should not do after
leaving hospital; including explanations about their medications and what to do if they are worried.
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Safety Priorities: plans for 2013/14
5. Management of the acutely unwell patient
Why have we chosen this is as a priority?
Improving the identification and escalation of acutely ill patients was a quality improvement priority for
2012/13. A number of new systems have been introduced (deteriorating patient scorecard, Wardware,
divisional reports, consolidation of national reports) but these will take time to bed in and deliver substantive
improvement. Analysis of the incidents reported indicate some improvement but these incidents have multifactorial root causes and it is certain that more focus and effort is required to lock in the improvements
achieved. Furthermore, the expertise generated throughout 2012/13 has identified further opportunities
which should be pursued through 2013/14.
To quantify the significance, results show that deteriorating patient incidents are less than 1% of all incidents
reported at King’s in 2012, yet they constitute 12% of the most serious (amber or red) incidents investigated.
In order to demonstrate our plans for quality improvement we will:
 Improve the identification, escalation and response to patient deterioration.
 Complete the roll out of Wardware and develop the reporting functionality to aid monitoring and
management of our observations and escalation.
 Continue to develop the use of the new monthly patient-level divisional reports to ensure effective
action plans are devised and implemented locally.
 Build on the successful staff event of February 2013 to support penetration of key messages and
actions to all staff.
 Improve the support from intensive care for our wards.
 Reference relevant national guidelines and standards and identify gaps and associated action plans.
How will we monitor progress?
Each month, divisions will receive relevant patient level information specific for them. This monthly process
will ensure that investigations into adverse events are completed. This information is:
 Cardiac arrest data
 Unplanned ITU admissions
 Deteriorating patient Incidents
Every six months the divisions already report to the Mortality Monitoring Committee and this report now
includes a specific cross-reference between mortality and deteriorating patients.
Every six months the divisions report to the Deteriorating Patient Group summarising:
 Their basic structure (wards, staffing, acuity)
 A review of their deteriorating patient information
 A summary of actions and status
 Local escalation policy
 Compliance with priority NCEPOD/NICE actions
The report is presented and discussed to reinforce the monitoring and assist in identifying potential additional
actions
A separate review process is undertaken by a Core Group each month to review all investigations into
deteriorating patient incidents.
Once developed, Wardware reports and audits will support operational monitoring of how effectively the local
unit is identifying and escalating patient deterioration. This will replace the more traditional annual POTTS
audit.

At the end of 2013/14, what will success look like?
Better identification of the deteriorating patient through the use of the Wardware electronic observations
system and improved knowledge of key pathways such as sepsis.
 More effective escalation of patient deterioration using formal communication protocols (eg SBAR).
 Swifter escalation to the right person through clear local escalation policies with clear alternatives
when initial escalation isn’t successful.
 More effective support from intensive care for the wards in managing acutely unwell patients.
 All areas will be able to demonstrate how they are using the data to identify improvement
opportunities and corrective actions to improve patient safety.
 improved penetration and alignment with relevant national recommendations (NCEPOD, NICE).
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An accessible central store of relevant information and data (on Kwiki) for all staff to access.

6. Surgical Safety Checklist
Why have we chosen this is as a priority?
In 2008 the World Health Organisation (WHO) developed a core set of safety checks for use in any operating
theatre environment. The checks were designed to improve anaesthetic safety, avoid wrong site surgery and
surgical site infections and generally improve communication within surgical teams. A multi-site international
study of almost 8000 surgical patients showed that use of a checklist containing these core safety checks
significantly reduced death and complications. The WHO checklist was adapted and endorsed by the NPSA
in England in 2009.
King’s implemented the checklist in April 2009. However in 2012-13 three retained swab incidents were
reported at King’s, and although the SSC was completed in each of these cases the robustness of its
implementation has been questioned.
In order to demonstrate our plans for quality improvement we will:
 Develop a strategy to ensure the Surgical Safety Checklist (SSC) is integrated into the working
practices of all theatre/interventional teams.
 Develop speciality specific SSCs where appropriate, ensuring these comply with NPSA guidance.
 Develop audit tool/s to assess the use and effectiveness of the SSC, and build these into audit
programmes.
 Conduct audits of SSC and take remedial action to improve safety.
 Develop measure/s to assess SSC impact on defined surgical outcomes.
 Establish a Surgical Safety Checklist Improvement Group to help achieve the above.
How will we monitor progress?
An audit tool will be developed and built into local audit programmes. Regular audits will be conducted to
assess SSC use and performance will be reported in divisional patient safety scorecards.
In addition measure/s will be developed to assess the impact that SSC use has on surgical outcome/s.
Outcome performance will also be reported in divisional patient safety scorecards.
Every six months divisions present their patient safety scorecards to the Patient Safety Committee where
performance against the audit and outcome measures are monitored.
At the end of 2013/14, what will success look like?
 All surgical procedures on an inpatient or day case basis which involve general or local anaesthesia
or sedation use an approved version of the SSC.
 Audit of SSC use indicates improvement in compliance from baseline.
 Defined surgical outcome/s shows improvement from baseline.
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Statements of Assurance from the Board:
2a: Information on the review of services:
During the 2012/13 reporting period, King’s College Hospital NH Foundation Trust provided and/or subcontracted seven NHS services. They were:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Acute services
Hospice services
Rehabilitation services
Community healthcare services
Diagnostic & screening services
Long-term conditions services
Blood and transplant services

King’s has reviewed all the data available on the quality of care in all of the above seven types of services.
The income generated by the NHS services reviewed in 2012/13 represents 100 per cent of the total income
generated from the provision of NHS services by King’s for 2012/13.
Indicators covering the three quality dimensions – patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient
experience – were identified and built into King’s monthly performance scorecards at Trust, divisional and
team levels since June 2009. These are actively used to drive overall quality improvement.

2b: Participation in Clinical Audits and National Confidential Enquiries:
During 2012/13, 46 national clinical audits and 2 National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and
Death (NCEPOD) enquires covered relevant health services that King’s provides.
During that period, King’s participated in 93% (43/46) of national clinical audits and 100% (2/2) of NCEPOD
enquires in which it was eligible to participate.
The national clinical audits and NCEPOD studies in which King’s was eligible to participate during 2012/13
and those in which we actually participated (with data collection completed during 2012/13), are listed below
alongside the number or registered cases required by the terms of that audit or enquiry.
The following list is based on that produced by the Department of Health and Healthcare Quality
Improvement Partnership (HQIP):
National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry

King’s
participation

Audit period

Participation rates

01/12/12 - 31/01/13

Data submission in
progress - deadline
31/05/13.

01/12/11 - 31/01/12
01/04/12 - 31/03/13

100% (21 patients).
100%

15/08/12 - 01/11/12

100% (62 patients).

Acute
Adult Community Acquired Pneumonia (British
Thoracic Society)
Adult Critical Care (Case Mix Programme –
ICNARC CMP)
Emergency Use of Oxygen (British Thoracic
Society)

Yes

Yes
Yes

20

National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry

King’s
participation

National Joint Registry (NJR)

Audit period

Participation rates

01/01/12 - 31/12/12
01/04/12 - 31/03/13

Data submission
deadline 31/03/13.
Awaiting publication
Oct 13 to confirm
participation rate.

01/01/11 –3
1/12/11
01/02/13 - 31/03/13

54% (231 patients).

100% (28 patients).

Yes

Non-invasive Ventilation - Adults (British
Thoracic Society)

Yes

Data submission in
progress - deadline
31/05/13.

Renal Colic (College of Emergency Medicine)

Yes

Severe Trauma (Trauma Audit & Research
Network- TARN)

Yes

01/02/12 –
31/03/12
01/08/12 - 30/11/12
01/10/12 –
31/12/12

Intra-thoracic Transplantation (NHSBT UK
Transplant Registry)

N/A

Procedure not undertaken at King’s

National Comparative Audit of Blood
Transfusion: Audit of Blood Sampling and
Labelling

Agreed
nonparticipatio
n

100% (50 patients).
94% (129 patients)

Blood and Transplant

National Comparative Audit of Blood
Transfusion: Audit of the Use of Anti-D

Yes

Potential Donor Audit (NHS Blood & Transplant)

Yes

King’s undertakes a robust routine audit of
blood sampling and labelling. No benefit
added through participation in national
audit.
Data collection to
Spring 13 - Dec 13
start Jun 13.
01/04/12 - 31/03/13 Awaiting publication
Jun 13 to confirm
participation rate.
01/04/11 –
31/03/12

100%.

01/04/11 –
31/03/12

95.7% (112
patients).

Cancer
Bowel Cancer (NBOCAP)

Yes

Head and Neck Oncology (DAHNO)

N/A

Lung Cancer (NLCA)

Yes

01/04/10 - 31/03/11 104% (118 patients).
Not undertaken at King’s.
01/01/12 - 31/12/12 Data submission in
progress - deadline
30/06/13.
01/01/11 –
31/12/11
01/04/11 –
31/03/12

Oesophago-gastric Cancer (NAOGC)

(109 patients).
Awaiting publication
Jun 13 to confirm
participation rate.

Yes
8 patients.
01/10/07 –
31/06/09

Heart
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National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry

Acute Coronary Syndrome or Acute Myocardial
Infarction (MINAP)

Adult Cardiac Surgery Audit (ACS)

Cardiac Arrhythmia (HRM)

King’s
participation

Audit period

Participation rates

01/04/12 - 31/03/13

Data submission in
progress - deadline
31/05/13.

01/04/11 –
31/03/12
01/04/12 - 31/03/13

658 patients.

01/04/10 –
31/03/11
01/01/12 –
31/12/12

100% (751 patients)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Data submission in
progress - deadline
30/06/13.

Data submission
deadline 01/04/13.
Awaiting publication
to confirm
participation rate.
395 patients

01/01/11 –
31/12/11
01/04/11 - 31/03/12

Congenital Heart Disease (including Paediatric
Cardiac Surgery) (CHD)

Yes

01/04/10 –
31/03/11

01/01/12 - 31/12/12

Coronary Angioplasty

Heart Failure (HF)

National Cardiac Arrest Audit (NCAA)

Yes

Carotid Interventions (CIA)

Yes

VSGBI Vascular Surgery Database (NVD)

Yes

Pulmonary hypertension (Pulmonary
Hypertension Audit)

N/A
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51 patients.
Paediatric cardiac
surgery is not
undertaken at King's,
therefore data
provided on adult
patients only.
Data submission
deadline 01/04/13.
Awaiting publication
to confirm
participation rate.

01/01/11 –
31/12/11
01/04/12 - 31/03/13

1363 patients

01/04/11 –
31/03/12
01/04/12 - 31/03/13

61.7% (245
patients)
Data validation in
process. Awaiting
publication to
confirm participation
rate.

Yes

Yes

Data validation in
progress 01/04/13 –
31/03/14.

Data submission in
progress - deadline
31/05/13.

01/04/11 –
31/03/12
100% (150 patients)
01/10/11 - 30/09/12 129 patients.
01/04/12 –
100%
31/03/12
Audit is relevant to the eight UK pulmonary
hypertension centers only.

National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Long Term Conditions
Adult Asthma (British Thoracic Society)

King’s
participation
Yes

Bronchiectasis (British Thoracic Society)

Agreed
nonparticipatio
n

National Diabetes Audit (Adult) (NDA)

Yes

National Diabetes Inpatient Audit (NADIA)
Diabetes (Paediatric) (NPDA)

Yes
Yes

Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD)( including
Paediatric Inflammatory Bowel Disease
Services)

Yes

National Review of Asthma Deaths (NRAD)

Yes

Pain Database

No

Renal Replacement Therapy (Renal Registry)

Yes

Audit period

01/09/12 - 31/10/12 100% (30 patients).
King’s decided to use 2012/13 to
implement measures addressing the areas
of non-compliance identified by the
2011/12 audit, in order to improve patient
care and outcomes. Data were collected in
2011/12, but will not be in 2012/13. This
decision was reviewed and supported by
the King’s Clinical Effectiveness
Committee.
5063 patients.
(Submission has
improved from
01/01/11 - 31/03/12
2011/12 when 1927
patient details were
submitted).
17/09/12 - 23/09/12 100% (145 patients).
01/04/11 - 31/03/12 100% (159 patients).
01/01/13 - 31/12/13 Data collection in
progress.
01/09/10 –
100% (40 patients)
31/08/11
01/02/12 - 31/01/13 100% (1/1 patients).
King’s non-participation was reported in the
2011/12 Quality Account. A local audit is in
progress using the national audit
methodology to ensure that King’s can
compare its Pain Service to other Trusts
nationally.
01/01/12 - 31/12/12 Data submission in
progress - deadline
Jun 13.
01/01/10 –
31/12/10

Renal Transplantation (NHSBT UK Transplant
Registry)
Mental Health
Mental Health programme: National Confidential
Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide for People
with Mental Illness (NCISH)
National audit of psychological therapies
(NAPT)
Prescribing Observatory for Mental Health
(POMH)
Older People
Fractured Neck of Femur (College of
Emergency Medicine)

Participation rates

100% (148 patients)

N/A

Not undertaken at King’s.

N/A

King’s does not participate in the study.
The recommendations produced by the
study are, however, reviewed for relevance
to the Trust.

N/A

Not relevant

N/A

Not relevant

Yes

01/08/12 - 30/11/12
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100% (50 patients).

National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry

Hip Fracture Database (NHFD)

King’s
participation

Audit period

Participation rates

01/04/12 - 31/03/13

Data submission
deadline 15/04/13.
Awaiting publication
Sep 13 to confirm
participation rate.

01/04/11 –
31/03/12

124.8% (126
patients)
Organisational audit:
100% (1).
Clinical Audit: 100%
(40 patients).
Neurology 100% (50
patients).
SSNAP
Organisational audit
100% (1).

Yes

National Audit of Dementia (NAD)

Yes

01/09/11 - 29/02/12

Parkinson's Disease (National Parkinson's
Audit)

Yes

01/08/12 - 11/01/13

Yes

SSNAP
Organisational
Audit
02/07/12

Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme
(SSNAP)

Other
Elective Surgery (National PROMs Programme)

Yes

SINAP:
01/04/12 - 31/12/12

SINAP: 100% (737
patients).

01/04/12 - 31/03/13

40.4%.

01/06/12 - 31/03/13

Awaiting publication
to confirm
participation rate.
Data submission in
progress - deadline
30/04/14.
Data collection
started Apr 13.

Women’s & Children’s Health
Child Health Programme (CHR-UK)

Yes

Epilepsy 12 Audit (Childhood Epilepsy)

Yes

Maternal, Infant and Newborn Programme
(MBRRACE-UK)

Yes

Neonatal Intensive and Special Care (NNAP)

Yes

Paediatric Asthma (British Thoracic Society)
Paediatric Fever (College of Emergency
Medicine)
Paediatric Intensive Care (PICANet)
Paediatric Pneumonia (British Thoracic Society)

Yes

01/01/12 –
31/12/12
01/11/12 - 30/11/12

Yes

01/08/12 - 30/11/12

100% (50 children).

Yes
Yes

01/01/10 - 31/12/12
01/11/12 - 31/01/13

100%.
100% (25 children).

01/01/13 - 06/14

Continuous

100% (691 babies).
100% (23 children).

In addition, King’s participated in the following NCEPOD studies:
King’s
participation

Reporting period

Alcohol Related Liver Disease

Yes

01/01/11 - 30/06/11

Subarachnoid Haemorrhage

Yes

01/07/11 - 30/09/11

National Confidential Enquiry into Patient
Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) studies

Participation rates

Acute Care
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100% (clinician
questionnaires)
100% (patient notes)
Data collection still in
progress. Participation
rates to date:
 60% (clinician
questionnaires)
 64% (patient
notes)

The reports of 9 national clinical audits listed in the Quality Account for 2012/13 were reviewed by King’s in
2012/13. The actions King’s intends to take to improve the quality of healthcare are provided below:
National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Acute
Adult Critical Care (Case Mix Programme –
ICNARC CMP)

Headline results and/ or actions taken

Published: Quarterly reports available
Audit Period: 01/04/12 – 30/06/12
Sample Size: 100% (200 - 250 patients)
Emergency Use of Oxygen (British Thoracic
Society)

The ICNARC confidential comparison of LITUs shows
that mortality at King’s is below expected and is
comparable to Trusts with a similar casemix.
In line with the national picture, King’s had mixed results
for the audit. A detailed action plan to improve practice
is in place, including development of local guidelines,
electronic flagging, a Trust-wide review of oxygen
prescribing and a staff training programme.

Published: November 2012
Audit Period: 15/08/12 - 01/11/12
Sample Size: 100% (62 patients)
Renal Colic (College of Emergency Medicine)
Published: January 2013
Audit Period: 01/08/12 - 30/11/12
Sample Size: 100% (50 patients)
Trauma Audit & Research Network (TARN)
Published: November 2012
Audit Period: 01/07/12 - 30/09/12
Sample Size: 94.5% (172 patients)
Long Term Conditions
Adult Asthma (British Thoracic Society)
Published: January 2013
Audit Period: 15/08/12 - 01/11/12
Sample Size: 100% (30 patients)

Older People
Fractured Neck of Femur (College of Emergency
Medicine)
Published: January 2013
Audit Period: 01/08/12 – 30/11/12
Sample Size: 100% (50 patients)
Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme
(SSNAP) – Organisational Audit
Published: November 2012
Audit Period: 02/07/12
Sample Size: 100% (1)
Stroke Improvement National Audit Programme
(SINAP)

King’s Liver Intensive Care Unit (LITU) admits between
800 and 1000 patients per year.

King’s performed above the national average for the
majority of standards audited.

The TARN data demonstrates that King’s is the leading
Major Trauma Centre in the UK. More trauma patients
admitted to King’s are surviving compared to the
number expected based on the severity of their injury
and King’s performed above the national average for
10/13 standards of best practice measured by TARN.
King’s performed in line with or above the national
average for 10/12 standards of best practice audited.
Four areas have been improved since the 2011/12
audit, including recording of blood gases, discharge of
newly diagnosed patients on inhaled corticosteroids,
documentation and advice to patients to see their GP
within 1 week of discharge. Work is in progress to
improve documentation of smoking status and to ensure
follow up review has been booked.
King’s had mixed results for the audit. King’s performed
above the national average for analgesia provided within
60 minutes of arrival, analgesia provided in accordance
with need and time to imaging. Areas identified for
improvement include re-evaluation of analgesia, time to
admission and time from arrival to surgery.
King’s Stroke Service continues to excel both nationally
and in comparison to peer, identified as the second
highest performer nationally in the recent SSNAP audit.

King’s Stroke Service is performing in the upper quartile
nd
nationally and ranks 2 in the country (Feb 2013)
across all 12 indicators of best practice.

Published: November 2012
Audit Period: 01/07/12 – 30/09/12
Sample Size: 325 patients
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National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Women’s & Children’s Health
Paediatric Fever (College of Emergency
Medicine)
Published: January 2013
Audit Period: 01/08/12 – 30/11/12
Sample Size: 100% (50 patients)

Headline results and/ or actions taken

Following the 2011/12 round of the audit a number of
actions were implemented and as a result King’s
performance in the audit has improved, with the
Emergency Department performing above the national
average for the majority of standards audited.

The reports of 35 national clinical audits listed in the Quality Account for 2011/12, published in 2012/13, were
reviewed by King’s in 2012/13. The actions King’s intends to take to improve the quality of healthcare are
provided below:
National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Acute
Adult Community Acquired Pneumonia (British
Thoracic Society)
Published: June 2012
Audit Period: 01/12/11 - 31/01/12
Sample Size: 100% (21 patients)
Adult Critical Care (Case Mix Programme –
ICNARC CMP)
Published: Quarterly reports available
Audit Period: 01/01/12 - 31/03/12
Sample Size: 100% (775 - 825 patients)
Pleural Procedures (British Thoracic Society)
Published: November 2011
Audit Period: 01/06/14 – 31/07/11
Sample Size: 100% (24 patients)
National Joint Registry (NJR)
Published: September 2012
Audit Period: 01/01/2011 – 31/12/2011.
Sample Size: 54% (231 patients)
Non-invasive Ventilation - Adults (British Thoracic
Society)
Published: June 2012
Audit Period: 01/02/12 – 31/03/12
Sample Size: 100% (28 patients)
National Audit of Seizure Management (NASH)
Published: May 2012
Audit Period: 14/03/11 – 14/07/11
Sample Size: 70% (21 patients)
Severe Sepsis and Septic Shock
Published: May 2012
Audit Period: 01/08/11 – 31/01/12
Sample Size: 100% (30 patients)

Headline results and/ or actions taken

King’s performed in line with or above peer for the
majority of standards audited and was identified as a
performing better than average for mortality.

King’s performed within national average range for
mortality.

King’s performance is comparable to the national picture
and actions taken to improve include introduction of a
new Pleural Intervention Service and Rapid Access
Pleural Clinic, improved training and the introduction of
additional procedures.
The audit showed that there are no clinical concerns at
King’s in relation to mortality and hip or knee revision
rate. Incomplete data submission, however, led to poor
results for compliance rate, consent rate and linkability.
Remedial actions have been implemented and as a
result King’s compliance rate has improved from 54% to
83.21% (NJR letter of notification, September 2012).
King’s performed in line with or above the national
average for 13/18 standards. An action plan to improve
is in place and includes development of a flow chart a
review of the prescription of oxygen across the Trust by
the Integrated Respiratory Team.
King’s performed in line with or above the national
average for the majority of standards relating to both the
facilities and the clinical care received by patients with
epilepsy.
King’s performed above the national average for 8/10
standards audited. Improvements are being made to
patient documentation in the Emergency Department
including the use of IT systems, new training is being
implemented and a move to electronic prescribing is
being investigated.
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National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Severe Trauma (Trauma Audit & Research
Network, TARN)

Headline results and/ or actions taken
The TARN data demonstrates that more trauma patients
treated at King’s are surviving compared to the number
expected based on the severity of their injury.

Published: Publically available data taken from
TARN website August 2012
Audit Period: 01/01/08 – 31/12/11
Sample Size: 1337 patients

Blood and Transplant
Liver Transplantation (NHSBT UK Transplant
Registry)
Published: May 2011 (interim report)
Audit Period: 01/10/10 – 30/09/11
Sample Size: 160 patients (adult and paediatric)
Potential Donor Audit (NHS Blood & Transplant)

Published: May 2012
Audit Period: 01/04/11 – 31/03/12
Sample Size: 100% (all relevant patients are
reported in the potential donor audit and to the
UK Transplant Registry)
Cancer
Bowel Cancer (NBOCAP)
Published: December 2012
Audit Period: 01/08/10 – 31/07/11
Sample Size: 104% (118 patients)

Lung Cancer (NLCA)
Published: December 2012
Audit Period: 01/01/11 – 31/12/11
Sample Size: 96% (109 patients)
Oesophago-gastric Cancer (NAOGC)
Published: July 2012
Audit Period: 01/10/07 – 31/06/09
Sample Size: 8 patients
End of Life
Care of Dying in Hospital (NCDAH)
Published: December 2011
Audit Period: 01/04/11 - 31/06/11
Sample Size: 97% (67 patients)

The mortality rate at King’s for liver transplantation is
within the expected range for mortality following first
liver transplants.

The number of organ donations at King’s after brain
death and after cardiac death are both above the
national average.
King’s is fully compliant with the NICE guidelines.

King’s was identified as a positive outlier for mortality at
30 and 60 days post operatively and performed above
the national average for patients seen by a Clinical
Nurse Specialist, seen by a multi-disciplinary team and
major surgery being undertaken as an elective
procedure. An issue in the data returns has led to poor
audit results for patients having CT and MRI scans,
however in practice this is 100%. Data issues are being
addressed.
King’s performed in line with or above the national
average for 10/15 standards. An action plan is in place
for ensuring improvements in active treatment, CT
before bronchoscopy, chemotherapy and pre-treatment
histology.
The 2012 report builds on data previously published in
the 2010 Annual Report. No new data reported for
King’s.

King’s performance was above the national average for
access to specialist support and the on-going routine
assessment of patients, relatives and carers. King’s
performed in line with or above peer for 5/8 standards.
An action plan is in place to improve locally and across
the health area, including patient information on end of
life care and the bereavement process, education and
training to support care of the dying and the
development of policies and guidelines to support the
end of life care across King’s Health Partners.

Heart
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Acute Coronary Syndrome or Acute Myocardial
Infarction (MINAP)
Published: November 2012
Audit Period: 01/04/11 – 31/03/12
Sample Size: 658 patients.

Adult Cardiac Surgery Audit (ACS)
Published: June 2012
Audit Period: 01/04/10 – 31/03/11
Sample Size: 100% (751 patients)
Coronary Angioplasty
Published: January 2013
Audit Period: 01/01/11 – 31/12/11
Sample Size: 1363 patients

Heart Failure (HF)
Published: December 2012
Audit Period: 01/04/11 – 31/03/12
Sample Size: 61.7% (245 patients)
National Cardiac Arrest Audit (NCAA)
Published: June 2012
Audit Period: 01/04/11 – 31/03/12
Sample Size: 100% (150 patients)
Long Term Conditions
Adult Asthma (British Thoracic Society)
Published: April 2012
Audit Period: 01/09/11 – 31/10/11
Sample Size: 100% (23 patients)
Bronchiectasis (British Thoracic Society)
Published: March 2012
Audit Period: 01/10/11 – 30/11/11
Sample Size: 100% (50 patients)

King’s performed in line with or above the national
average for the majority of standards, with
improvements seen since the 2010-11 audit for the
number of patients seen by a cardiologist or a member
of the team, from 55% in 2010/11 to 91% in 2011/12.
The timeframe within which patients receive primary
PCI does not always account for unavoidable delays. As
a Heart Arrest Centre King’s receives a large number of
intubated and ventilated patients as well as arrested
patients, the transfer and treatment of whom often takes
a long time. The Cardiology Department is examining
all patients with times exceeding the national targets in
order to identify avoidable delays, in liaison with the
London Ambulance Service and referral hospitals.
King’s performed above the national average for first
time coronary artery bypass graft (CABG) surgery
mortality rate for elective and urgent cases over 5 years,
the use of left internal mammary artery (LIMA) for
coronary artery grafts and the rate of mitral valve
surgery.
King’s performed above the nationally agreed quality
metric of 75% for door to balloon time of less than 90
minutes for direct admissions and patients transferred in
from another hospital and for call to balloon time less
than 150 minutes for direct admissions. The audit
demonstrates that there has been an absolute increase
in the percentage of patients treated within 90 minutes
from 2010 to 2011 at King’s, compared to both the
number of primary PCI in 2011 and the percentage of
door to balloon times within 90 minutes in 2010.
The audit demonstrates that King’s has a success rate
of 95.76%; that in-hospital mortality has improved from
2.2% in 2010 to 1.8% in 2011, and that the 30 day
mortality rate in 2011 is better than the national average
(published mortality figures are not risk-adjusted).
King’s performed above the national average for
patients receiving an echo and patients receiving
ACEI/ARB and beta blockers on discharge. Data issues
have been identified and rectified for three areas in
which King’s appeared to be under-performing.
King’s performed above the national average for the
majority of criteria assessed by the audit including
reason resuscitation stopped; survival to hospital
discharge; and favourable neurological outcome.

In line with the national picture, King’s had mixed results
for this audit. A comprehensive action plan has been
developed and improvements have been made in the
majority of areas, as evidenced by the 2012/13 audit.
In line with other Trusts, King’s had mixed results for the
audit. An action plan is in place to increase referrals to
the Specialist Bronchiectasis Clinic and improve patient
care, which will be implemented in 2012/13.
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National Diabetes Audit (Adult) (NDA)
Published: September 2012
Audit Period: 01/04/10 – 31/03/11
Sample Size: 52% (1932 patients)

National Diabetes Inpatient Audit (NADIA)
Published: May 2012
Audit Period: Nominated day during first two
weeks October 2011
Sample Size: 100% (123 patients)

Diabetes (Paediatric) (NPDA)
Published: September 2012
Audit Period: 01/01/10 – 31/03/11
Sample Size: 100% (148)
Heavy Menstrual Bleed
Published: July 2012
Audit Period: 01/02/11 – 31/01/12
Sample Size:
 Organisational audit: 100% (1/1)
 Clinical Audit: 17.4% (98 patients)
Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD)
Organisational Audit
Published: May 2011
Audit Period: 01/09/10
Sample Size: 100% (1/1)
Clinical Audit
Published: February 2012
Audit Period: 01/09/10 – 31/08/11
Sample Size: 100% (20 patients with ulcerative
colitis and 20 patients with Crohn’s disease)
Renal Replacement Therapy (Renal Registry)
Published: September 2012
Audit Period: 01/01/10 – 31/12/10
Sample Size: 100% (148 patients)
Older People
Hip Fracture Database (NHFD)
Published: September 2012
Audit Period: 01/04/11 – 31/03/12
Sample Size: 124.8% (126 patients)

King’s performed above the national average for
patients achieving all NICE recommended treatment
targets. All patients treated at King’s have their blood
pressure, HbA1c levels, urinary albumin levels and BMI
measured and nearly 100% have their creatinine and
lipids measured annually. Retinal screening rates are
also very high. There are some data submission issues
which are being addressed and an action plan is in
place to ensure that smoking cessation advice is
provided.
King’s volunteers helped our patients to complete the
questionnaire and as a result we achieved a much
better response rate. Overall King’s results for this audit
were mixed. Improvements were made with regard to
insulin prescription safety, patients experiencing at least
1 mild hypo and patients stating that they received
sufficient emotional support. A comprehensive action
plan has been developed to improve training and role
development, care co-ordination and to promote
effective self-management of diabetes.
King’s had mixed results for this audit. The number of
patients receiving all key care processes will be
improved through with the appointment of a
psychologist and additional nursing and medical staff.
Health outcomes at King’s were similar to national
average for heavy menstrual bleeding (HMB) severity,
HMB specific quality of life measures, general health
outcomes and the generic health outcome thermometer.
Issues with the methodology of this national audit led to
the exclusion of a large proportion of King’s patient
population and as a result the participation rate was
very low.
King’s performed above the national average for all
indicators, including patient seen by a Gastroenterology
Consultant, prescription of prophylactic heparin, steroids
on discharge and bone protection medication, patient
weighed during admission and patient seen by a
dietician during admission.

The King’s adjusted (to age 60) 1 year after 90 day
survival is within the expected range.

King’s is in line with or above the national average for
most of the standards of best practice assessed by the
audit. To improve practice further a Hip Fracture
Protocol has been introduced and local audits of the
patient pathways for admission to the orthopaedic ward
and to theatre are being undertaken to identify any
delays occurring.
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Parkinson's Disease (National Parkinson's Audit)
Published: May 2012
Audit Period: 01/07/11 – 30/11/11
Sample Size: 100% (20 patients)
Stroke Improvement National Audit Programme
(SINAP)
Published: May 2012
Audit Period: 01/01/12 – 31/03/12
Sample size: 311 patients
Other
Risk Factors (National Health Promotion in
Hospitals Audit)
Published: December 2011
Audit Period: 01/03/11 – 31/03/11
Sample Size: 100% (100 patients)
Women’s & Children’s Health
Epilepsy 12 Audit (Childhood Epilepsy)
Published: September 2012
Audit period: 01/02/11
Sample Size: 100% (1/1)
Neonatal Intensive and Special Care (NNAP)
Published: July 2012
Audit period: 01/01/11 – 31/12/11
Sample Size: 100% (653 patients)
Paediatric Intensive Care (PICANet)
Published: September 2012
Audit Period: 01/01/09 – 31/12/11
Sample size (100%) 575 patients
Pain Management (College of Emergency
Medicine)
Published: May 2012
Audit Period: 01/08/11 – 31/01/12
Sample Size: 98% (49 patients)

King’s, which is a National Parkinson Foundationaccredited International Centre of Excellence,
performed above the national average. Further
improvements identified include the provision of better
information on driving and end of life care.
King’s achieved the highest UK results for the quarterly
report, and has been the highest performer in the UK
since January 2011 across all 12 indicators of best
practice.

This audit indicated that, whilst the majority of King’s
patients are being assessed for smoking, alcohol use,
obesity and physical activity, the provision and
documentation of health promotion could be improved.
Improvements are being taken forward by the Making
Every Contact Count group.
This audit demonstrates that King’s patients have
access to all the recommended services and
investigations. The levels of staffing and clinic resource
available are in line with or above other Trusts
nationally.
rd
King’s neonatal service ranked 3 out of the 164
participating neonatal units in England.

King’s experiences the lowest mortality rate compared
to its peer group hospitals.

King’s performed above the national average for time
after arrival in the Emergency Department that
analgesia was provided, recording of pain score,
patients accepting analgesia and length of time after
arrival patient taken to x-ray. Actions to be taken will
include improving the process for documenting the reevaluation of pain scores, revising the paediatric
analgesia guideline and training, and reviewing the
patient process in Paediatric Emergency.
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The report of one national clinical audit listed in the Quality Account for 2010/11, published in 2011/12,
was reviewed by King’s in 2012/13. The actions King’s intends to take to improve the quality of
healthcare are provided below:
National Clinical Audit and Confidential
Enquiry
Renal Disease
Patient Transport (National Kidney Care Audit)
Published: June 2011
Audit Period: 01/01/10 – 30/06/10
Sample Size: Not listed in report.

Headline results and/ or actions taken

King’s performance is in line with or above peer for
all standards relating to waiting time for pick up by
hospital arranged transport after dialysis. King’s is
considered to be the renal unit of choice for the
majority of patients attending the unit. Actions
implemented to drive improvement further include
more input from patients and commissioners, review
of transport criteria, regular meetings with the
Transport team and a local audit of transport data.

In addition, the reports of 12 priority local clinical audits were reviewed by King’s in 2012/13 and King’s
intends to take the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided:
Local Clinical Audit
Hand Hygiene and Infection Control Audit
Programme

Risk Assessment Model for Venous
Thromboembolism in Hospitalised Medical
Patients
Audit of Insulin Syringes

Annual Audit of Physiological Observation
Track and Trigger System (POTTS)

Annual Audit of Modified Early Obstetric
Warning Score (MEOWS)

Headline results and/ or actions taken
Routine audit is in place to assess King’s compliance
with its infection control standards. A hand hygiene
tool recommended by the Department of Health is
fully operational and an audit management system is
in place to facilitate data entry, analysis and
dissemination at all levels of the organisation.
This audit is a CQUIN requirement and reported
elsewhere in the Quality Account.
The audit conducted by King’s Pharmacy
Department, showed that the majority of wards only
stocked 100 unit syringes which were used for
administering doses as low as 2-4 units of short
acting insulins. As a result of the audit the Trust has
agreed that 50 unit syringes will be stocked routinely
on all adult wards and 30 unit syringes on all
paediatric wards for regular use. In addition, 100 unit
syringes will be available on the adult wards and 50
unit syringes on the paediatric wards; however they
will be stored separately for exceptional use only and
clearly labelled as such on the box.
The audit demonstrated that POTTS charts are
routinely used across the Trust and that good
practice in being followed in relation to levels of
completeness, the frequency of observations and the
number of observations with POTTS score
documented. Areas marked for improvement include
the documentation and escalation of patients with a
very low POTTS score.
The audit had mixed results. Improvements have
been made in the number of MEOWS charts fully
completed and there was no evidence of
miscalculation in the charts that were completed.
The layout of the charts will be reviewed by to
ensure a logical and consistent approach.
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Local Clinical Audit
Annual Audit of Patient Discharge

Annual Audit of Paediatric Early Warning Tool
(PEWT)

Annual Audit of Patient Risk Assessments and
Wristbands

Audit of Vital Signs in Majors

Audit of Emergency Oxygen

Headline results and/ or actions taken
As a result of the audit a review of the patient
discharge checklists and how they are recorded is
being conducted. In particular to identify whether the
current discharge notification form in the electronic
patient record can be amended to replace the need
for a separate discharge checklist. These proposed
changes to the discharge notification process will
help to ensure that patients are provided with
sufficient information on discharge.
The audit provided assurance that the majority of
patients who triggered according to PEWT were
escalated for medical review. The patients that were
not escalated had mitigating factors present when
other medical conditions were taken into account
when reviewing the score. Half of the patients had a
clear care plan devised, and approximately a third
were escalated to the High Dependency Unit (HDU).
The Trust has recently been randomised to use a
new early warning system (Evaluating Processes of
Care & the Outcomes of Children in Hospital
(EPOCH)) as part of an international study. EPOCH
uses 7 simple factors and gives a defined response
for the clinician looking after the patient.
It takes approximately 45 minutes to complete all the
necessary documentation and risk assessments on
admission. This documentation will be streamlined
to prevent duplication. The completion of some of
the paperwork pre-admission for elective patients is
being looked into.
Following the national audit run by the College of
Emergency Medicine in 2011/12 a number of actions
were implemented to improve the documentation of
vital signs in majors. The local audit results have
been plotted over time and show that the number of
patient records without a POTTS score recorded has
significantly decreased and the number with
escalation and appropriate action documented has
increased to 100%.
In 2011/12 King’s did not participate in the clinical
audit section of the British Thoracic Society national
audit. As a result a local audit using the national
audit methodology and tools was completed to
enable a comparison with the national data.
The audit results showed that King’s was in line with
or above the national average for the majority of
standards audited. A number of actions were
identified and are in the process of being
implemented across the Trust. These are detailed in
the section on the 2012/13 audit. Any improvements
in process will be demonstrated in the 2013/14 round
of the audit.
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Local Clinical Audit
Audit of Feverish Children

Blood Sampling and Labelling Audit

Headline results and/ or actions taken
Following the national audit, run by the College of
Emergency Medicine, in 2011/12 a number of
actions were implemented to improve the
identification and treatment of feverish children. This
included ensuring that the NICE Traffic Light System
is understood by all staff and implemented as normal
practice, by improved training and supervision, and
the introduction of a standardised proforma to
document the appropriate processes have been
followed.
A local audit using the national audit methodology
and tools, demonstrates improved compliance with
all standards measured locally and in comparison to
the national data.
King’s audits blood sampling and labelling on a
monthly basis using electronically gathered data.

2c: Information on participation in clinical research
The number of patients receiving health services provided or sub-contracted by King’s that
were recruited to participate in NIHR portfolio badged research approved by a Research
Ethics Committee, during the period 1 October 2011 – 31 September 2012 was 5880. These
patients were recruited to 183 National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) adopted studies.
This is a 27% increase in recruitment from 2010/11. Additionally, King’s was involved in
approximately 450 own-account studies, and 200 commercial clinical research studies during
the same time period, for which further patients cohorts were recruited.
As a world renowned research institution, King’s College Hospital aims to integrate clinical
research into the daily care our patients receive, with all staff being either directly aware of
the opportunities for patients to participate or who they should talk with to obtain relevant
information. Taking part in transitional, clinical, or health services research, or being treated
by a team who are research aware, offers the best opportunities for treatment, investigation,
and support for our patients, ensuring that they enjoy an optimal experience & clinical
outcomes. We are committed to improving the quality of care we offer, and to making our
contribution to wider health improvement.
Over 400 Principle Investigators across 24 different specialities participated in research
during 2012/13. These staff were a mix of scientists, clinical staff (medical, nursing,
physiotherapy, pharmacy, dietetics and many others) and support staff, demonstrating the
successful integration of research into all clinical arena with associated benefit to patients,
and staff.
Our commitment to driving research that will lead to improvement in patient outcomes and
experience across the NHS can be demonstrated through the investment the trust has made
in research and the outcomes this has driven. Over the last year, the trust has invested in a
dedicated Clinical Research Facility (a cutting-edge facility which includes a dedicated
research MRI (T3) scanner and a cell therapy unit, epilepsy research facilities, and virtual
reality rooms. A unique aspect of the CRF is the research focus on mental health and the
opportunity to integrate research opportunities between mental and physical health. This is in
addition to the opportunities to further drive research in emergency care by linking with the
speciality areas for which Kings has an excellent clinical and research background (e.g.)
Trauma and neurotrauma.
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Other highlights include a successful inspection by the HTA of our tissue banking facilities
with no significant findings and the R&D infrastructure receiving being short listed for this
year’s HSJ awards for progressive research culture. The breadth and depth of clinical
research at Kings has been again recognised this year by the large number of a number of
new clinical professorships that have been awarded.
The executive at Kings have supported two rounds of competitive bids for research funding,
the Research Initiative grant awards, with a total investment of £2,650,000. These thirtyseven projects have been highly successful, with over fifty publications in high impact
journals, three young Investigator awards, five charitable grant awards, and an NIHR and
BHF Fellowship. In total this investment has generated over four million pounds in further
grant income and a number of the projects have influenced national policy and standards of
care; again demonstrating the high quality, patient focused research that is supported and
conducted at King’s.
We have picked some headline examples of the research being conducted within the Trust,
to give a flavour of the how it impacts and benefits our local community as well as nationally.

Child health
Professor Dhawan has been awarded 1.46 million pounds from a Department of Health and
NIHR capacity building grant for the establishment of cell therapy unit for the production of
clinical grade cells. This follows his important work in hepatocyte transplantation in children.
The department have also established a bio-resource for research into stored tissue
samples. NIHR Senior Investigator Professor Greenough continues her leading research into
the lung biology of neonates, supported by Asthma UK, NIHR, MRC and Charles Wolfson
Charitable Trust.
Women
As a direct result of the R&D Initiative grants Mr Nick Kametas set up a new Hypertension
clinic for pregnant woman. He and his team aim to create a prediction model for Preeclampsia which will allow better care across a stratified cohort. The work of Professor
Kypros Nicolaides remains at the forefront of pregnancy related healthcare research and
clinical care.
A&E
Among the projects the A&E team are collaborating on is a study which aims to develop and
evaluate interventions for adolescents with alcohol use disorders who present through
Emergency Departments. They are collaborating with critical care in studies examining
optimal management of sepsis, a major cause of mortality and morbidity.
Gerontology
Julie Whitney a physiotherapist in the Gerontology department has been awarded a
£248,000 by Research for Patient Benefit to study a multi-interventional approach to the
prevention of falls in care homes.
Respiratory
The respiratory department are conducting the first longitudinal study into changes in cough
in Bronchiectasis. This study will also be looking at the various measures used to assess this
condition, to try to discover which is the most effective.
Therapies
The Therapies Department are taking part in a trial to try to determine the best way to
manage distal arm pain. One of the Renal Physiotherapists, Sharlene Greenwood, has also
recently been successful in attaining a £216,901 NIHR Research Fellowship.
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Cardiac
Doctors Phil MacCarthy and Sundeep Kalra have, with KCH initiative funding support,
explored a number of issues that directly impact on patient care, including a study of the
outcomes of patients who are misdiagnosed with heart attacks.
Haematology
The Haematology department were awarded three clinical professorships this year. They
have also been developing an assay for use in leukaemia which should allow them to detect
mutations with much greater sensitivity (as low as 1%, the current gold-standard being above
20%). Under Professor Mufti, the unit has been recognised as a centre of excellence for
Leukaemia research and has been awarded over £1 million in grants in the last year. The
Sickle Cell department has completed an industry lead, Phase I, first in human, clinical trial of
a novel investigational medical product to treat sickle cell crises. They continue their groundbreaking research into the genetics of sickle Cell Disease.
Neurosciences
Dr Mike Samuel, Prof Ray Chaudhuri and Dr Preshanth Reddy have developed Patient
Related Outcomes for adult movement disorders. It is expected that the tool will be adopted
for all advanced therapies in Parkinson's, initially in London, then UK, Europe and hopefully
worldwide.
Stroke
Among the many national & international stroke trials KCH is participating in under the
leadership of Professor Kalra is an interesting study by Doctor Manawadu looking at attitudes
towards treatment for wake-up stroke, a condition about which there is little consensus
regarding the best treatment.
Gastro
The Gastro department doubled the number of CLRN Portfolio trials they were participating
in –these included trials into Irritable Bowel Disease, Cancer Polyps, & the effect of prunes
on gastrointestinal health.
Liver
Doctor Antoniades’ initially supported by a Kings R&D grant and then with further funds from
the European Association for the Study of the Liver allowed him to continue the department’s
work on the role of Monocytes in liver disease and has subsequently led to an MRC Clinician
Scientist Fellowship from the Medical Research Council.
Renal
Professor Macdougall is the lead for a new UK-wide randomised controlled trial in over 2000
dialysis patients, which secured £2.5 million of funding from Kidney Research UK. He has
also succeeded in getting two publications in the prestigious New England Journal of
Medicine. The dietetic department in association with the renal department have been
successful in securing funding for studies into obesity and chronic kidney disease.
Surgery
The surgeons at KCH have been looking at the effect of diet leading up to bariatric surgery;
at present there is no consensus worldwide as to whether the surgical benefits, if any,
outweigh the potential malnutrition which may result from the diet.
Pathology
King’s College Hospital is the largest of the three national centres treating patients with
Biliary Atresia. The causes of this rare but serious condition are not clear, something the
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KCH virology team are attempting to rectify. Work by Dr Mohamed Ibrahim continues on the
genetic basis of issues in the human immune system.
Radiology
The Breast Radiology Department has enjoyed a very fruitful year recruiting large numbers of
women across south London into their 3D breast scanning study. This cutting-edge 3D
technology should significantly reduce the number of false-positive results.
Anaesthetics
In collaboration with St Thomas’s & KCL the anaesthetics department at KCH has been
helping to develop an innovative new monitor, continuous blood pressure monitoring by a
non-invasive route, which was commercially launched this year. Anaesthesia has developed
from a department with very little research to one that is undertaking several CLRN based
studies and, with support from R&D funds, is examining neurocognitive deficit following
surgery and the effect of distant ischaemic pre conditioning in cardiac surgery.
Critical care
2012 has been a very good year for Critical Care with a number of important studies
conducted by the team, both CLRN and own account. Among these is a study which looks at
the best way to manage head injuries for people on anti-coagulation, the efficacy of fresher
blood when used in transfusions and optimal ventilation strategies. An NIHR funded study
with Palliative Care has gained clinically useful and applicable insight into how to optimize
the care of patients and their relatives whilst in critical care. The unit were the country’s
highest recruiters for a number of UKCRN projects.
Cancer
Around 20 to 25% of women with breast cancer have cancers which contain high levels of a
protein which causes the cancer to grow more quickly and recur earlier. The oncology team
are participating in a study which looks at the advantages of treating this much earlier than is
the norm at present.
Dental
Research undertaken in collaboration with the Institute of Psychiatry, New York University,
and the University of Washington, led to the development of the United Kingdom’s first
service delivering dedicated Cognitive Behavioural Therapy for individuals with dental fear
and anxiety.
Diabetes
One of the many trials the Diabetes team has been working on this year is a hypoglycaemia
unawareness pilot study, which is looking to restore their brain's warning symptoms of very
low blood sugar levels.
Dermatology
The dermatology team have increased their research portfolio over the past year, seeing
them involved in a number of studies, including one which looks at the beneficial effects of
microbial flora on the skin; another study is looking at the DNA of acne.
Ophthalmology
The results of a trial in which the Ophthalmology department participated have led to early
adoption of a device that offers the prospect of fewer injections, reduced treatment costs,
and reduced hospital attendance for patients with wet age-related macular degeneration.
Palliative Care
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NHIR Senior Investigator Professor Irene Higginson OBE and her research group have been
successful in a number of NIHR Programme grants, totalling over four million pounds. They
continue to be world leader in the field of palliative care influencing national and international
policy.
Rheumatology
Rheumatology have achieved 2.7 million pounds in grant income while their Clinical Trials
Team achieved the distinction of being accredited by the UKCRC as a fully registered
Clinical Trials Unit in collaboration with the IoP.
Sexual Health & HIV
King’s is working with the Health Protection Agency and the medical devices industry to
come up with novel techniques of diagnosing STIs using smart phones and similar popular
technology.

2d: Goals Agreed with Commissioners: The Commissioning for
Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) framework
A proportion (2.5%) of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust contract income in
2012/13 was conditional upon achieving quality improvement and innovation goals agreed
with the NHS South London Commissioning leads as part of the Commissioning for Quality
and Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework. This equated to a total of £10.5m in 2012/13
Please see the table below for the detailed report of performance as measured by our King’s
CQUIN indicators in 2012/13. King’s has delivered significant quality improvements under the
CQUIN scheme as shown.
Goal Number
1-

National CQUIN Indicator Name
1a

90%

Q4 Actual
97.5%

Annual stretch target

92%

1b

Appropriate Prophylaxis

90%

1c

VTE Patient Information

75%

1d

VTE Training

70%

2a

National Survey Results (5 CQUIN questions on
responsiveness to needs)

6.7

6.85

3%

4%

VTE Prevention

2 - Inpatient
Experience Personal Needs

VTE Assessment monthly

Q4 target

2b

3a
3 -NHS Safety
Thermometer

Inpatient Experience: Identify best and worst
performing wards on the average scores of the 5
questions based on Q2 results and achieve
improvement target
NHS Safety Thermometer - Completion of Safety
Thermometer Survey

Increase the use of Safety Express programme
4a
4 - Dementia
4b

Dementia Screening (Emergency admissions to
General Medicine, Urology, Orthopaedics and
General Surgery)
Dementia Risk Assessment (Emergency
admissions to General Medicine, Urology,
Orthopaedics and General Surgery)
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8 Wards

12 Wards

90%

90%

96%
95.5%
82%
80.8%

8 Wards

12 Wards

95%

95%

Goal Number

National CQUIN Indicator Name
4c

5a

Dementia Referral (Emergency admissions to
General Medicine, Urology, Orthopaedics and
General Surgery)
Registered and unregistered nursing staff in
General Medicine, Urology, Orthopaedics, Clinical
Gerontology and General Surgery wards to receive
4 hours of face to face dementia training. This will
include dementia specific and safeguarding adults
training
AHPs rotating to emergency medicine, acute
medicine orthopaedics, urology and clinical
gerontology to receive 1 hour of face to face
training

5 - Implementing
strenghtened
dementia training
in acute trusts

90%

91%

6a

Improved co-ordination of care (specialist palliative
care patients) discharge letters

9- Outpatient
experience

90%

100%

93%

11 patients

98%

92%

96%

40%

43%

4 Wards

4 Wards

Improve co-ordination of care and advance care
planning via implementation of Amber care bundle

5 Wards

5 Wards

Improve the number of patients being supported by
the AMBER Care bundle who receive an AMBER
discharge summary.

50%

73%

75%

80%

Jan:100
Feb: 100
Mar: 120

Jan: 670
Feb: 739
Mar: 693

62.8

77.2

Implement education and training on EOLC within
Haematology, Liver and Renal (nursing and
doctors)
Complete LCP ward based road shows

7a

Recording of Cancer Stages

8a

Implementing COPD Discharge Bundle on
respiratory wards and achieve agreed targets

8 - COPD Planning

60%

90%

Annual stretch target

7 - Cancer Staging

82%

Consultants in General Medicine, Urology,
Orthopaedics, Clinical Gerontology and General
Surgery to receive 1 hour face to face dementia
training.

5b

6c

80%

51%

85%

All patients with Dementia, who are on an
antipsychotic, admitted by the Trust to have a full
clinical review prior to discharge

6b

40%

100%

70%

Clinical staff receives essential dementia
awareness training as part of corporate nursing
induction.

6- End of Life Care

90%

Q4 Actual

Foundation doctors (FY1 and FY2) rotating to
emergency medicine, acute medicine
orthopaedics, urology to receive 1 hour of face to
face dementia training

Non clinical ward based staff in General Medicine,
Urology, Orthopaedics, Clinical Gerontology and
General Surgery to participate in a brief dementia
training update.

5- Antipsychotic
prescribing

Q4 target

9a

Launch survey and achieve uptake targets

9b

Achieve improvement targets for Suite 3/7 based
on 5 questions and a composite score based on
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Goal Number

10 - Alcohol

National CQUIN Indicator Name
Q2 baseline in Q4.

Q4 target

Q4 Actual

Report on the number of acute medical admissions
in pilot areas who have had a FAST score
recorded on EPR

80%

87%

Report on the percentage patients with a FAST
score of 3 or more who have received health
advice

80%

81%

10a

King’s is currently in discussion with both the South London Clinical Commissioning Group
and NHS England Specialist Commissioning (SCG) to develop CQUIN schemes for 2013/14.
As in 2012/13, 2.5% of King’s contract income will be allocated to this CQUIN payment
framework. This is estimated to be a value of £13m across 15 Quality improvement areas.
Four areas of these areas have been identified nationally and will apply to both the CCG &
Specialist contracts. These are, preventing Venous-thromboembolism in hospital,
introduction of the Friends and Family test, data collection through the NHS Safety
Thermometer and to improve the diagnosis and care of patients with Dementia.
The list below outlines the proposed goals and descriptions to date for 2013/14. Further
details of the targets agreed with commissioners for the following 12 month period are
available on request from our website.
Goal Name

Description of Goal

1

VTE Prevention (National
CQUIN)

Reduce avoidable death, disability and chronic ill health from Venousthromboembolism (VTE)

2

NHS Safety Thermometer
(National CQUIN)
Dementia: Diagnosis (National
CQUIN)

Improve collection of data in relation to pressure ulcers, falls, or a
urinary tract infection in those with a catheter,
Improve awareness and diagnosis of dementia, using risk
assessment, in an acute hospital setting.

Patient Experience – Friend and
Family Test (National CQUIN)
Outpatients Experience (CCG
CQUIN)

Participation in the National Friend and Family framework

3
4
4a
4b

Acute Inpatient Experience
(CCG CQUIN)

6

COPD Planning (CCG CQUIN)

7

Alcohol Screening (CCG
CQUIN)
Choose and book (CCG
CQUIN)
Cancer - end of treatment
summaries (CCG CQUIN)

8
9
10
11
12

Specialist Dashboards (SCG
CQUIN)
Highly Specialist Services (SCG
CQUIN)
HIV – communication with GPs
(SCG CQUIN)

Improve Outpatient Experience: based on the 2011/12 National
Outpatient Survey results. Roll out an internal "How Are We Doing?"
Patient experience survey across Outpatient areas.
Improve experience for patients admitted to hospital as a emergency
Improving the care of people with Chronic conditions including the
use of the COPD bundle.
Screening for Hazardous and harmful alcohol use across acute
medical and surgical admissions.
Increase the number of outpatient appointments directly bookable by
GPs.
To provide individual end of treatment summaries for patients who
have completed their cancer treatment; improving the dialogue
between primary & secondary care.
TBC
TBC
TBC
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13
14
15

BMT donor information (SCG
CQUIN)
Neonatal intensive care (SCG
CQUIN)
Paediatric intensive care
readmissions (SCG CQUIN)

TBC
TBC
TBC

2e: Statements from the Care Quality Commission (CQC):
King’s is required to register with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and its current
registration status is fully compliant without any conditions as of 31 March 2012.
The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against King’s during
2012/13.
The Care Quality Commission made an unannounced inspection on 29 August 2012. The
report of the visit has been received and this confirms that the Trust is meeting all of the five
essential standards of quality and safety that were inspected. Following the inspection, the
CQC team commented that:


Patients' privacy, dignity and independence were respected.



Patients fed back that they were given appropriate information and support regarding
their condition, care, treatment and outcomes, and that doctors and nurses had a friendly
and professional approach.



There is choice of nutritious meals that were suitable for different cultural and dietary
needs. Patients were assisted during meal times and drinks were offered throughout the
day as well as their food and drink intake monitored throughout the day.



The Trust protected patients from the risk of abuse because it has taken reasonable
steps to assist staff to identify the possibility of abuse and prevent abuse from happening.
Staff demonstrated knowledge and training to raise and address safeguarding concerns
and were familiar with the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards.



There were enough qualified, skilled and experienced staff to meet patients' needs.



The patients' records CQC inspected were accurate and fit for purpose, stored securely
and easily accessible to staff.

2f: Information on the quality of data
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2012/13 to the
Secondary Uses service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in
the latest published data. The percentage of records in the published data:
- which included the patient's valid NHS Number was:
97.0% for admitted patient care (previously 96.5% for the same period last year);
98.1% for outpatient care (previously 97.7% for the same period last year); and
84.2% for accident and emergency care (previously 77.7% for the same period last year).
- which included the patient's valid General Practitioner Registration Code was:
100% for admitted patient care;
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99.9% for outpatient care; and
100% for accident and emergency care.
-the overall % valid (average for all fields) was:
99.3% for admitted patient care;
99.7% for outpatient care; and
98.8% for accident and emergency care.
Actions over and above those previously stated in the 11/12 accounts taken in 12/13 to
improve data quality include:
 Regular review of all external dashboards and monitoring report for all SUS data
items, with a reconciliation to internal and externally downloaded SUS extracts to
ensure correct reporting of figures and resulting action plans to resolve discrepancies
or poorly performing data items
 Increased sign-off process pre-submission to SUS of any data items monitored on
external dashboards
 Increased NHS number tracing schemes, including ‘real time’ tracing pilots within
A&E
 Increased audits in clinical information using external auditors, with focussed training
for key areas

2g: Information Governance Toolkit attainment levels:
The King’s Information Governance Assessment Report overall score for 2012/13 was 74%,
the same score as the previous year. Although the score was the same, compared to last
year we scored higher in some areas (IG training for example) but lower in others (corporate
records audit).
Overall, the Trust continued to be graded as pink (unsatisfactory) from the Information
Governance Toolkit (IGT) grading scheme. This has been confirmed by the SIRO and
published on the IGT. The pink rating was as a result of two elements being scored as Level
1.- that we protect service user information through pseudonymisation and that we had not
carried out an audit on at least 4 corporate departments’ records (this was an increased
requirement from last year).
One area of improvement was in the IG training, where we produced leaflets which were
distributed to all staff via payslips in May 2012, and increased access to training material
through a new comprehensive PowerPoint presentation. In addition, new reporting systems
in the Education and Development Team were used to track progress and improve
performance over the course of 2012/13.
With regards to the pseudonymisation issue we have developed new policy in line with
recently published national guidance. However, adherence to it is patchy and we could not
legitimately provide the necessary evidence. For the corporate records audit we have agreed
with KPMG a plan for carrying out the required audits in the next year.

2h: Clinical coding error rate
Clinical coding is the translation of medical terminology, as written by clinicians to describe a
patient’s complaint, diagnosis, treatment or reason for seeking medical attention, into a
nationally‐ recognised code. Coding is important because it generates information that can
aid service improvement and clinical research, and because it determines how much the
Trust is paid for an episode of care through a national set of rules called ‘Payment by
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Results’. The national average coding error rate identified in the PbR Data Assurance
Framework 2011/12 is 7%.
King’s was subject to the annual mandatory Coding Audit for Information Governance
Standards during the 2012/13 financial year. The audits were completed monthly by
accredited external coding auditors and a total of 700 episodes were audited in total across
specialties. The finding of the final report submitted to the Trust for the reporting period
2012/13 shows that coding error rates have decreased from the previous 14.6% to 4.8%. It
should be noted that of the 4% errors, 26.9% were classified by the auditors as non-coder
error and related to discrepancies in information sources.
Of the coder errors identified the main causes of errors were attributed to the speed at which
coding is completed to meet deadlines and coders interpreting clinical terms to form a
diagnosis where none has been documented in the clinical history. The responsibility for
identifying diagnosis rests with the clinical teams and should be clearly documented in the
patient history, where no diagnosis is clearly documented coders should only be coding signs
and symptoms.
The Trust has been commended for ensuring that that the mandatory coding training is up to
date for the team and where additional training needs have been highlighted through the
internal coding audit programme that training has been delivered and the coding output reaudited to measure the efficacy of training on coding standard.
Based on the recommendations made in the report an action plan is being developed to
meet the three recommendations made in the report.
SUMMARY
From the above statements, assurance can be offered to the public that King’s has in
2012/13:
 Performed to essential standards (e.g. meeting CQC registration), as well as
excelling beyond these to provide high quality care;
 Measured clinical processes and performance to inform and monitor continuous
quality improvement;
 Participated in national cross-cutting project and initiatives for quality
improvement e.g. strong and growing recruitment to clinical trials.
These statements are included in accordance with both Monitor’s NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual (5 March 2013) for the quality report, as well as the Department of
Health’s Quality Accounts Regulations (2012, 2011, 2010).
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Part 3. An Overview of performance in 2012/13 against
mandated national key standards
From 2012/13 all trusts are required to report against a core set of indicators, for at least the
last two reporting periods, using a standardised statement set out in the NHS (Quality
Accounts) Amendment Regulations 2012. Only indicators that are relevant to the services
provided at King’s are included in the table below.
Where possible, we have included the comparative national or peer average and an
indication of performance against benchmarks. National and Peer comparative scores are
presented in italics.

Indicator
Summary Hospital
Mortality Index
(SHMI)

Data
Sour
ce
NHS
IC

Period 1

Value

Period 2

Value

Actions
taken
to
improve the result in
year

KCH Apr 11 - Mar
12

93.9

Jul 11 - Jun 12

88.7

88.7

Peer Apr 11 - Mar
12

88.8

KCH Apr 11 - Mar
12

44.2
%

Jul 11 - Jun 12

46.3
%

Peer Apr 11 - Mar
12

20.8
%

The Trust discusses these
results monthly with the
divisions at a special
executive committee.
Follow up actions have led
to an improvement in
scores.
The Assistant Medical
Director has audited a
sample of patients to
ensure that palliative care
coding was appropriate
and that the patients were
in receipt of expert
palliative care intervention

KCH 2011/12

3.9%

Apr to Dec 12

3.8%

Peer 2011/12
KCH 2011/12

5.2%
4.4%

Peer Apr to Dec 12
Apr to Dec 12

5.2%
4.5%

Peer 2011/12

5.3%

Peer Apr to Dec 12

5.6%

KCH 2012/13

7.3

London Peer
2012/13

TBA

KCH 2012/13

6.01

London Peer
2012/13

TBA

KCH 2012/13

8.47

London Peer
2012/13

TBA

KCH 2012/13

4.8

London Peer
2012/13

TBA

Peer Apr 11 - Mar
12
Palliative Care
Indicator: % of
patient death with
palliative care coding.

NHS
IC

Peer Apr 11 - Mar
12

21.2
%

Readmissions 28 day

Patients aged 0-14

CHK
S

Patients aged 15+

CHK
S

Trust responsiveness to the personal needs of patients
Q32 Were you
CQC
KCH 2011/12
6.7
involved as much as
London Peer
7.0
you wanted to be in
2011/12
decisions about your
care and treatment?
Q34 Did you find
CQC
KCH 2011/12
5.4
someone on the
London Peer
hospital staff to talk
5.7
2011/12
to about your worries
and fears?
Q36 Were you given
CQC
KCH 2011/12
8.1
enough privacy when
London Peer
8.2
discussing your
2011/12
condition or
treatment?
Q56 Did a member of CQC
KCH 2011/12
4.8
staff tell you about
London Peer
4.8
medication side
2011/12
effects to watch for
when you went
home?
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Data is analyzed monthly
to look for trends. Any
issues are acted upon &
raised to executives and
commissioners where
appropriate. In 2012/13
the Trust conducted an
emergency readmissions
audit with a GP and this
will be repeated in
2013/14.
Key actions to drive
improvement in the
targeted wards included:
•
Asking patients
about their care during
Intentional Rounding
•
Posters, leaflets
and tray mats with key
contact details included
•
Increase
involvement of HCAs and
Pharmacists and sharing
of best practice across
KHP
Across the trust,
intentional rounding has
been rolled out and the
King’s volunteer
programme has focused
on placing volunteers on
the wards to improve
patient experience.

Q62 Did hospital staff
tell you who to
contact if you were
worried about your
condition or
treatment after you
left hospital?
Workforce
% of staff employed
who would
recommend the Trust
as a provider of care
to their Family or
Friends
Patient Safety
% of patients
admitted who were
risk assessed for
VTE
C-difficile infection
rate per 100,000 bed
days

CQC

NHS
IC

NHS
IC

KCH 2011/12

7.4

KCH 2012/13

7.6

London Peer
2011/12

7.6

London Peer
2012/13

TBA

KCH 2011/12

3.77

KCH 2012/13

4.05

Nat Av.
Best score

3.5
4.05

Nat Av.
Best score

3.57
4.08

KCH 2011/12

93.6
%

KCH 2012/13

96.3
%

Nat Av.
NHS
IC

KCH 2011/12
Reportable cases
Rate/100,000 bed
days

Nat Av.
91.6
%
85
29.34
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KCH 2012/13
Reportable cases
Rate /100,000 bed
days

94.1
%
54
18.56

We have focused on
improving communications
with staff in year, and this
work has been reflected in
our improved score in the
survey.
The specialist team
monitors this on a regular
basis. This ensures Kings
remains a national leader
in this field.
The following actions have
been taken to review
CDIFF in 2013/14:
•
Implementation
of the DH’s two stage
testing methodology
•
Multidisciplinary
review of all cases to
identify lessons to be
learnt
•
An increased
focus on cleaning
standards including the
secondment of the senior I
The following actions have
been taken to review
CDIFF in 2013/14:

Implementation of the
DH’s two stage
testing methodology

Multidisciplinary
review of all cases to
identify lessons to be
learnt

An increased focus
on cleaning
standards including
the secondment of
the senior IC nurse.

Introduction of
hydrogen peroxide
vapour technology as
an enhanced
cleaning technology

Much stronger focus
on antibiotic
prescribing including
monthly antibiotic
stewardship audits.
C nurse.
•Introduction of hydrogen
peroxide vapour
technology as an
enhanced cleaning
technology
•Much stronger focus on
antibiotic prescribing
including monthly
antibiotic stewardship
audits.

Patient safety
incidents reported to
the National
Reporting and
Learning Service
(NRLS)
Patient safety
incidents reported to
the National
Reporting and
Learning Service
(NRLS), where
degree of harm is
recorded as ‘severe
harm’ or ‘death’, as a
percentage of all
patient safety
incidents reported

NRLS

Oct 11 – March 12

3735*

April 12 – Sept 12

3595*

This is monitored
through the quarterly
safety report.

NRLS

Oct 11 – March 12

0.54%*

April 12 – Sept 12

0.42%*

This figure is in line with
that of other large acute
teaching hospitals

* These figures accurately reflect data currently held by the NRLS on patient safety incidents in the KCH, but discrepancies may
exist with data previously published by the NRLS

Patient safety incidents resulting in severe harm or death
This year is the first time that this indicator has been required to be included within the
Quality Report alongside comparative data provided, where possible, from the Health and
Social Care Information Centre. The National Reporting and Learning Service (NRLS) was
established in 2003. The system enables patient safety incident reports to be submitted to a
national database on a voluntary basis designed to promote learning. It is mandatory for
NHS trusts in England to report all serious patient safety incidents to the Care Quality
Commission as part of the Care Quality Commission registration process. To avoid
duplication of reporting, all incidents resulting in death or severe harm should be reported to
the NRLS who then report them to the Care Quality Commission. Although it is not
mandatory, it is common practice for NHS Trusts to reports patient safety incidents under the
NRLS’s voluntary arrangements.
As there is not a nationally established and regulated approach to reporting and categorising
patient safety incidents, different trusts may choose to apply different approaches and
guidance to reporting, categorisation and validation of patient safety incidents. The approach
taken to determine the classification of each incident, such as those ‘resulting in severe harm
or death’, will often rely on clinical judgement. This judgement may, acceptably, differ
between professionals. In addition, the classification of the impact of an incident may be
subject to a potentially lengthy investigation which may result in the classification being
changed. This change may not be reported externally and the data held by a trust may not
be the same as that held by the NRLS. Therefore, it may be difficult to explain the differences
between the data reported by the Trusts as this may not be comparable.
The data provided above represents the most up-to-date data held by the NRLS on patient
safety incidents in KCH, but for the reasons above differences may exist with data previously
published by the NRLS.
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The Table below details the information the Trust is required to submit on PROMS over the
last two available reporting periods.
KCH
Adjusted
Health Gain
10/11

KCH Adjusted
Health Gain
11/12

EQ-5D

0.4

0.5

National
Adjusted
Health Gain
11/12
0.4

EQ-VAS

7.7

13.3

10.0

Oxford Hip Score

19.6

21.5

20.1

EQ-5D

0.2

0.3

0.3

EQ-VAS

2.0

4.6

4.5

Oxford Knee Score

12.9

14.8

15.2

EQ-5D

0.1

0.1

0.1

EQ-VAS

-0.8

0.0

0.1

Aberdeen Varicose Vein
Score

-7.0

-5.6

-7.9

0.1

0.1

-2.2

0.4

Area

Hip

Knee

Varicose
Veins

Groin
Hernia

Measure

EQ-5D
EQ-VAS

no data
available
no data
available

Over 70% of patients asked have responded to both pre and post operation surveys looking
at their health and quality of life. In two of these quality of life indicators,
Oxford knee and EQ-VAS for groin hernias, there has been an improvement in patient
reported outcomes.
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Performance against key national priorities
The Trust self-rated a score of 2.0 as the final Q4 position for 2012/13 against the Monitor
Compliance Framework. This has meant the Trust has finished the year as an amber-red, an
improvement of its planned trajectory of red1.

1

The table above indicates the information submitted by the Trust to monitor on a quarterly basis. Due to year
end validation, the 62 day wait for first treatment of cancer (from urgent GP referral to treatment has been
revised to declare the following year end position:
Quarterly submission

Q1
92%

Q2
89%

Q3
89%

Q4
88%

Validated, annual position

91.5%

89%

90%

88.5%
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Appendix 1: Statements from Commissioning Primary Care Trusts,
Overview and Scrutiny Committees, and Local Involvement
Networks
In accordance with the timeframes stipulated in the Regulations, we shared our draft Quality
Accounts formally with our key external stakeholder groups on 28 March 2013 to seek their
review and comments in response.
We received four statements in response to their review of the Quality Account, and have now
included these as listed:





Statement from NHS South East London (representing NHS Lambeth, NHS
Southwark, and NHS SE London)
Statement from Local Healthwatch Organisations
Statement from Southwark Council’s Health and Adult Services Scrutiny SubCommittee
Statement from Lambeth Council’s Health and Adult Services Scrutiny SubCommittee

These statements are included unaltered and in full. We have, however, added footnotes to
answer specific questions asked, or to cross-refer to points where feedback from stakeholders
has been used to improve this document.
Statements were requested but not received from NHS England.
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Statement from NHS South East London (representing NHS
Lambeth, NHS Southwark, and NHS SE London)
I write on behalf of Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham CCGs in support of the Kings Quality
Account. The CCGs welcome the Quality Accounts document as a statement of the work
the Trust has achieved over the last year to improve clinical quality and the patient
experience of care, and will be prioritising over the coming year. Southwark CCG, as lead
commissioner, continues to work closely with the Trust on quality, and welcomes the
increasingly open and inclusive relationship between the Foundation Trust and
commissioners in relation to clinical quality.
The CCGs recognise the challenge of making Quality Accounts comprehensive, detailed and
readable, and thanks the Trust for compiling a through document. The CCGs have had the
opportunity to input into and comment on the Quality Accounts during the drafting stages. It
is especially useful to be able to track the evolution of Kings’ Quality priorities over the last
three years, and to see the progress made in areas which were priorities in previous years.
The CCGs commend the progress the Trust has made in practically eliminating MRSA
bacteraemias, and in delivering best practice to prevent VTEs.
Overall, the CCGs support the quality priorities that the Trust has chosen for 2013/2014.
However, there are some additional areas which commissioners consider to be important
areas for quality improvement that would merit a focus in the Quality accounts, such as
cancer patient experience and London Quality and Safety standards2. We would also
encourage a stronger focus on integrated care as a means of improving patient experience,
both in relation to discharge processes and COPD, and we have previously commented on
this during the drafting stage. We look forward to discussing the priorities for 2014/2015 with
you.3
We strongly support the WHO Surgical Checklist as a priority, and think that really
embedding this across all surgical sites as standard is important to ensure that the Trust
prevents any further never events.
We are pleased that you have added an Appendix on complaints to the document. As health
organisations collectively respond to the Francis report, I hope we will have further
discussions about how the Quality accounts for 14/15 can reflect fully the work that Kings are
doing to listen and respond to the views of patients.
In summary, the document is comprehensive, and notwithstanding the comments submitted
to the Trust in the drafting stage, gives a very positive picture of the breadth of work that
Kings is taking forward to safeguard patients and provide the best possible experience of
care. The CCGs look forward to continuing to work with KCH to improve the quality of care
provided to patients.

2

We agree that cancer patient experience and the London Quality and Safety Standards are important issues.
These topics did not feature as part of our internally generated long list for consideration as 2013/4 quality
priorities, and were not suggested by external stakeholders at the time of the quality priority selection process.
However, we will still be undertaking improvement programmes in these areas, and we will be happy to share
any information with Commissioners on progress over the course of the year.
3
The Trust and Commissioners are jointly involved in a major integrated care pilot and with other stakeholders
have a vested interest in seeing this succeed. There will therefore be links into the work on discharge planning
and COPD, but for the purposes of the quality priorities, we have chosen to focus on items that we have
identified as being important to patients from the evidence we have seen from our patient survey.
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Statement from Local Healthwatch Organisations
Healthwatch Lambeth and Healthwatch Southwark response to King’s College
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s Quality Accounts for 2012/2013
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (KCH) is one of three Acute Providers to
provide health services to the residents of Lambeth and Southwark. The two neighbouring
boroughs share similar issues and therefore Healthwatch Lambeth and Healthwatch
Southwark welcome the opportunity to jointly respond to your Quality Accounts.
This joint working between the two local Healthwatch organisations will ensure (where
appropriate or possible), our limited resources are best placed towards monitoring the quality
of local services and having an effective and influential patient and public voice.
Response to statement on quality of care from Chief Executive
We welcome the emphasis on quality care and treating patients with dignity and respect,
especially for the elderly, within the Chief Executive’s statement. The serious failings at the
Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust highlights the need for all NHS bodies including
front line staff, patients and Healthwatch to work together to ensure this does not happen
within South East London Hospitals. Healthwatch Lambeth in their response to the Francis
Report recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board bring together relevant
organisations in Lambeth to make a joint response. This was agreed and Healthwatch
Lambeth would welcome KCH involvement in this.
It would be beneficial for Healthwatch to receive regular feedback on the Quality Priorities
throughout the year, and not just on annual basis when we are asked to respond to the
Quality Accounts. We would like to see this as part of a greater plan to develop training and
co-working between KCH Governors and ourselves4.
Both Healthwatch Lambeth and Southwark expressed concerns over the 30% expansion of
King’s College Hospital within its response to the Trust Special Administrator’s consultation
on the financial future of health services in South London. We made the point then and
continue to make it now that with any expansion that patient safety and quality of care
remains a priority for local patients alongside international and specialised research.
Quality Priorities and Objectives for 2012/13
In general, the table format setting last year’s quality priorities is helpful and clear. It is
positive to see “further need identified” as most targets were most or fully met. This
Account has also been much easier to read with many initiatives and schemes explained. It
would be helpful to receive responses to our comments/or issues from last year. 5

4

We are aiming to have 4 meetings with Healthwatch this year. The progress with quality priorities, and the
build-up to deciding the 2014/5 priorities will be addressed at these meetings. These will be lead by the patient
experience team.
5
There is no national target for issuing palliative care letters after discharge. KCH have set a maximum target of
2 days. 95% of letters are sent within this time, but many are sent sooner than this. The limiting factor to setting
a more ambitious target is the palliative care Doctor’s time to do this. To achieve a shorter time would mean
Doctors spending less time with patients in the hospital. A maximum of 2 days is therefore felt to be a
reasonable compromise.
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Improving End of Life Care: We welcome the focus on staff training in this area. Last year
Healthwatch Southwark noted its concern that the 2-day palliative letter sent after discharge
was too long, whilst King’s has achieved their 2-day target, no response has been provided.
Improve Diabetes Care is a very important area and we note that this is the only section
where the target was only ‘’partly met’’. Good progress is being made with the opportunity for
patients to self-monitor, as well as the cultural drive across all areas towards ‘helping
yourself/community-assets’. We believe this could be helped by linking in with the Diabetes
Modernisation Initiative (DMI) which looks at preventing and managing diabetic care. Staff
awareness of DMI to signpost/support after acute care might be assisted through the GP
discharge letter. We also note that the performance in relation to the National Diabetes
Inpatient Audit (NADIA) and the Diabetes (Paediatric) (NPDA) is described as achieving
“mixed results”.6
We therefore suggest that the improvement and auditing of diabetes care is listed as a
priority for further work in 2013/2014.
Improving our responsiveness to inpatient personal needs is an important area and
KCH has taken a good approach to identify improvement efforts on worst performing wards.
It would be helpful to provide which specialty the Ward Names relate to, to make it
accessible and promote dialogue. KCH should also ensure carers and family members have
the necessary information and following patient discharge (2013/14 Priority)
Improving identification and escalation of acutely ill patients, as noted last year,
electronic records are important but these should not be at the expense of personal care. We
welcome that all wards submit National Safety Thermometer data and support that patients
and carers will be given information on venous thrombosis. We encourage KCH to explore
this for other issues i.e. pressure sores, falls, UTIs for high risk groups.7
Quality Priorities for 2013/14
We support all the Quality Priorities for 2013/14 and commend the clear way this section is
laid out.
We note the focus on Dementia detection of undiagnosed patients admitted to acute care,
supporting carers and dementia training. We also note that there is no mention of a solution
to how it is acquired. There are many people with brilliant minds who deteriorate and others
who live a great age, apparently with little mental defect. We would like to know whether
KCH is participating in basic research on dementia, or is this left to the South London and
Maudsley Hospital. We would also encourage that this priority be tied in with end-of-life care

6

Diabetes has been a quality priority for the last two years, we feel that some improvements have been made and
the work will continue whether or not Diabetes continues to be a “specified” quality priority. This decision was
supported at our stakeholder events. The “partly met” objective was related to availability of an IT system and
we hope that will be delivered this year. 20% of in-patients have diabetes, and so this will continue to be an
important issue for us. However we feel that the choice of our 6 quality priorities needs to evolve and change
over time in order for us to focus on additional areas of care and treatment.
7
Electronic records are just a tool to help staff recognise acutely ill patients, and they support the giving of
personal care giving by reducing paperwork. Pressure ulcers, falls and UIT’s are already included in the Safety
Thermometer.
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with future exploration of a generally ‘dementia-friendly environment’ beyond the one
specialist ward. 8
Again it is positive that KCH is focusing on preventative self-management, after a COPD
admission. This could be an opportunity to involve family members in smoking cessation.
While limited information is provided relating to the underlying causes of acutely unwell
patients, we are pleased to see that staffing is being monitored.
Other comments


In KCH’s review of services, are the quality outcomes of other services outside of
hospital in-and-out patients recorded in the report? They may not be required but it
raises at least interface issues.



Relating to KCH’s data submission towards the Hospital Episode Statistics, there is
no clear reference to undocumented migrants. Can we understand this to be the
percentage where there is no patient NHS number or GP code? 9



How do Patient and Public Involvement fit into KCH’s Governance Framework?10



KCH’s Audits and Inquiries are helpful with clear systematic reporting. Would King’s
participate in the relevant inquiry if there were a suicide, or is it only for patients
registered as mental health patients under other’s care?11



Key Standards table requires more explanation on the ‘Values’ column so that the
public can understand the ranking/scaling.12

Lewisham Healthwatch
We welcome the King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust Quality Account 2012/13
and look forward to working more closely with the Trust in the coming year along with our
neighbouring Healthwatch organisations. We are pleased that 5 of last year’s priorities have
been fully met and trust that diabetes care will continue to improve. We agree with this
year’s priorities and wish all the Trust staff every success in achieving them. We welcome
the development of a Trust discharge policy particularly in regard to Lewisham residents in
need of health and social care support following discharge. We would like to see
improvements in communication in relation to hand over care of our residents.13
8

Our quality priority related to the identification and care of patients with dementia. Research into dementia
takes place in acute as well as mental health settings. We would very much like to create more dementia friendly
environments in many areas across the Trust and are actively seeking funding opportunities to do that.
9
There are a number of reasons why patients which do not have an NHS number, including not having any fixed
abode or being undocumented migrants. It is not possible for the Trust to separate this group.
10
Patient and public involvement fits into the KCH governance framework in two ways, first via the Structures
involving our governors (the Council of Governors, community events, and the Patient Experience and Safety
Committee) and secondly through our Trust Patient Experience Committee, which reports to the Quality and
Governance Committee, which is a subcommittee of the Board.
11
King’s would be obliged to take part in any inquiry involving the suicide of anyone who was in patient at
Kings, or a patient with a recent history of being at King’s.
12
We have added definitions of these metrics in the glossary to aid understanding.
13
We are keen to work with Lewisham health and social care services as part of our general desire to improve
pathways and services to Lewisham residents. However the quality account priority is specifically related to the
issues that we have found are a problem to all of our patients (reference response to 1b above).
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Statement from Southwark Council’s Health and Adult
Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee
Southwark Council’s Health, Adult Social Care, Communities & Citizenship Scrutiny SubCommittee met on 25 March 2013 to consider an earlier draft. This session also considered
additional information on Serious Incidents and a summary of King’s complaints. Following
this session the committee asked for follow up information on Pressure Sores. A previous
meeting, on 6 March 2013, received Southwark’s annual Vulnerable Adults Safeguarding
report.
Following the 25 March meeting the committee asked for more assurance that community
acquired Pressure Sores are followed up by King’s, particularly when patients have acquired
these at home or in a social care setting, and that referral mechanisms are adequate and an
agency will take appropriate action. The committee also asked for more analysis of why
Pressure Sores are increasing generally.
When the committee considered the Southwark Vulnerable Adults Safeguarding report it was
noted that there were no safeguarding alerts for King’s. The committee requested more
assurance on the Safeguarding process, and that there are adequate systems in place for
reporting alleged abuse, investigation, Safeguarding training and effective whistle-blowing
procedures.14

14

We have had some recent communication with the council on the issue of Safeguarding Vulnerable adults. We
do have sound systems in place in relation to vulnerable adults, these are discussed in the public domain at our
Board meeting, but we would welcome the opportunity to discuss these further.
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Statement from Lambeth Council’s Health and Adult
Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee
Lambeth Council’s Health and Adult Services Scrutiny Sub Committee would like to thank
King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for the invitation to submit a statement on the
Trust’s draft Quality Account 2012/13. The committee would also wish to acknowledge the
earlier invitation to the Quality Account Stakeholder event to develop the QA and draft
priorities which was attended by a member of the committee.
It has not been possible to formally consider the draft QA within the timeline requested and
the Committee is not therefore submitting a response. However the Committee would wish to
acknowledge the good working relationship that exists between the Scrutiny Committee and
the Foundation Trust.
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Appendix 2: Report on Patient Complaints
The Trust received 643 formal complaints during 2012/13 which is an increase of
approximately 10% on the number of complaints received in 2011/12 (590). However, the
ratio of complaints to patient attendance has remained consistent for the past two years.
The profile of complaints has also remained consistent with previous years, in that half of all
complaints relate to some aspect of clinical treatment. Alongside this are concerns about how
the Trust has communicated with patients about their care and treatment, staff attitude and
behaviour, and procedures for discharge. Just over 50% of complaints responded to were
considered to be well founded.
The NHS Constitution pledges that the NHS will work in partnership with patients, families and
carers and will encourage and welcome feedback on health and care experiences, using it to
improve services. During the year, 3,500 enquiries were made with PALS. Of course not all
of these represent a concern, but every contact is assessed and a pro-active approach is
agreed, to ensure that the Trust responds appropriately and quickly to put things right.
Through its formal complaints and feedback, the Trust continues to value the opportunity to
respond to patient experience. Many Trust-wide initiatives, for example, a review of patient
discharge procedures and the on-going outpatient redesign project, have incorporated
complaints to encapsulate experience. Working together with patients, service improvements
are made and staff are provided with training and support to enable them to maintain the
highest standards of care and service for patients.
Over the coming months, a number of key actions and initiatives will be developed to ensure
that the Trust responds effectively to the recommendations of the recently published Francis
Report. The review of the NHS complaints system is welcomed and the Trust awaits the
Department of Health’s conclusions.15

15

A more detailed description of how we listen to and action patient feedback is available in the Patient and
Patient: Listening and Responding section of the Trust Annual Report and Accounts 2012-2013.
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Appendix 3: 2012/13 Statement of the Directors; responsibilities in
respect of the Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year.
Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of
annual Quality Reports (which incorporate the above legal requirements) and on the
arrangements that foundation trust boards should put in place to support the data quality for
the preparation of the Quality Report.
In preparing the Quality Report, directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves
that:
 the content of the Quality Report meets the requirements set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;


the content of the Quality Report is not inconsistent with internal and external sources
of information including:

Board minutes and papers for the period April 2012 to 28 May 2013
Papers relating to Quality reported to the Board over the period April 2012 to May 2013;
Feedback from the commissioners received between 30 April – 15 May 2013;
Feedback from governors dated 8 April and 01 May 2013;
Feedback from local Healthwatch organisations received between 30 April – 14 May;
The trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority Social
Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated XX/XX/20XX;
The latest national patient survey April 2013;
The latest national staff survey XX/XX/20XX;
The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the trust’s control environment dated 01
April 2012 to 31 March 2013;
Care Quality Commission quality and risk profiles dated 01 April 2012 to 31 March 2013;


the Quality Report presents a balanced picture of the NHS foundation trust’s
performance over the period covered;



the performance information reported in the Quality Report is reliable and accurate;



there are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of
performance included in the Quality Report, and these controls are subject to review
to confirm that they are working effectively in practice;
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the data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Report is
robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed
definitions, is subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and the Quality Report has
been prepared in accordance with Monitor’s annual reporting guidance (which
incorporates the Quality Accounts regulations) (published at www.monitornhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual) as well as the standards to support data quality
for the preparation of the Quality Report (available at www.monitornhsft.gov.uk/sites/all/modules/fckeditor/plugins/ktbrowser/_openTKFile.php?id=3275)

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the
above requirements in preparing the Quality Report.
By order of the Board
NB: sign and date in any colour ink except black
..............................Date.............................................................Chairman
..............................Date............................................................Chief Executive
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Appendix 4: Glossary

Amber Care Bundle

AHSC
AHP
BHF
CQC
CLRN
CHD
CHR – UK
COPD
CQUIN
DAHNO
DoH/DH
EoL
EoLC
FAST
FY1 &FY2
HF
HRM
HTA
HRWD
HSJ
IBD
IGT
Kwik
LCP
MINAP
MEOWS
MMC
MRSA
NAD
NADIA
NAOGC
NASH
NAPT
NBOCAP
NCDAH
NCEPOD
studies
NCIS

A tool developed by Guy’s & St. Thomas’ Trust to help
staff identify the needs of patients at risk of dying within one to
two months.
Academic Health Science Centre
Allied Health Professionals i.e. physiotherapists, Occupational
Therapists, Speech & Language Therapists etc.
British Heart Foundation
Care Quality Commission
Comprehensive Local Research Network
Congenital Heart Disease
Child Health Reviews in the United Kingdom
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation
National Head & Neck Cancer Audit
Department of Health
End of Life
End of Life Care
The Stroke Association’s acronym for diagnosing a the early
onset of a stroke – Face, ARMS, Speech, & Time
Foundation Doctors in Years 1 &2
Heart Failure
Human Resource Management
Human Tissue Authority
Human Resources Workforce Development
Health Service Journal
Inflammatory Bowel Disease
Information Governance Toolkit
A website that allows its authorised users to edit & add
information pages
Liverpool Care Pathway
The Myocardial Ischaemia National Audit Project
Modified Early Obstetric Warning Score
Mortality Monitoring Committee
Methicillin-resistant staphylococcus aureus
National Audit of Dementia
National Diabetes Inpatient Audit
National Audit of Oesophageal & gastric cancers
National Audit of Seizure Management
National Audit of Psychological Therapies
National bowel cancer audit programme
National Care of the Dying Audit
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome & Death

National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide & Homicide for
People with Mental Illness
NDA
National Diabetes Audit
NHFD
National Hip Fracture Database
NHIR
National Institute for Health Research
NHS Safety Thermometer A NHS local system for measuring, monitoring, & analysing
patient
harms and ‘harm-free’ care
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NHSBT
NICE
NJR
NNAP
NPDA
NPSA
NRAD
PbR
PALS
PICANet
PEWT
POMH
POTTS
PROMS
Safety Express
QIPP
SBAR
SHMI

SLAM
SSC
SSNAP
SINAP
TARN
UKCRN
VSGBI
VTE
WHO

NHS Blood Transfusion
National Institute for Health & Excellence
National Joint Registry
National Neonatal Audit Programme
National Paediatric Diabetes Audit
National Patient Safety Agency
National Review of Asthma Deaths
Payment by Results
Patient Advocacy & Liaison Service
Paediatric Intensive Care Audit Network
Paediatric Early Warning Tool
Prescribing Observatory for Mental Health
Physiological Observation Track & Trigger System
Patient Reported Outcome Measures
Dept. Health Safe Care Work Stream that links to the
(Quantity, Innovation, Productivity & Prevention programme)
Situation, Background, Assessment & Recognition factors for
prompt & effective communication amongst staff
Standardised Hospital Morality Index. This measures all deaths
of patients admitted to hospital and those that occur up to 30
days after discharge from hospital.
South London & Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust
Surgical Safety Checklist
Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme
Stroke Improvement National Audit Programme
Trauma Audit & Research Network
United Kingdom Clinical Research Network
Vascular Society of Great Britain & Ireland
Venous Thrombosis Embolism
World Health Organisation
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FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
These accounts, for the year ending March 31 2013, have been prepared by King's
College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of
Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act 2006.
Signed:
Date: XX May 2013
Timothy Smart
Chief Executive Officer

Statement of Chief Executive's responsibilities as the accounting officer of King's
College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust | Annual Report 2012/13
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The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive is the accounting officer of the NHS
foundation trust. The relevant responsibilities of the accounting officer, including their
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are
answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation
Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by Monitor.
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed King's College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the
basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis
and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of King's College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, total recognised gains and losses
and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the
requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:


Observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting
and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent
basis;



Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;



State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation
Trust Annual Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any
material departures in the financial statements; and



Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS
Foundation Trust and to enable him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with
requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. The Accounting officer is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set
out in Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.
Signed:
Date: XX May 2013
Timothy Smart
Chief Executive Officer
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Annual Governance Statement
Scope of responsibility
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of the NHS foundation trust’s policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also
responsible for ensuring that the NHS foundation trust is administered prudently and
economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge
my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer
Memorandum.
The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of King’s College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has been in place in King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust for the year ended 31 March 2013 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and accounts.
Capacity to handle risk
The Trust Board has overall accountability for the Trust’s Risk Management Strategy
through the Trust’s Executive Directors. The Trust’s Medical Director provides the lead,
and is supported by a centralised Patient Safety and Risk Management team. The Chief
Financial Officer has accountability for the development, implementation and testing of the
Trust’s business continuity plan. The Trust operates a unified approach covering both
clinical and non-clinical risks which are recorded on a computerised risk register. The Trust
is committed to providing a learning environment for all levels of staff, to ensure that good
practice is developed and disseminated to all areas of the organisation. This is achieved
by:


A commitment to individual appraisal and personal development planning for all staff;



Policies to encourage the open reporting and investigation of adverse incidents
including near misses. In addition the web based incident reporting system allows
anonymous reporting;



A commitment to root cause analysis of problems and incidents and the avoidance of
blaming and ‘scape-goating’;



A range of problem resolution policies and procedures, including capability, raising
concerns or ‘whistle-blowing’, workplace stress, mediation, harassment and
discipline, which are designed to identify and remedy problems at an early stage;



A range of individual support mechanisms to encourage individuals to raise concerns
about their own performance in ways which will not threaten their security or
livelihood, e.g. appraisal, substance abuse policies, professional counselling and
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occupational health services; and



A range of clinical and non-clinical audit mechanisms.

All staff are trained in these policies as part of the corporate and local induction policies
and updated via regular staff briefings and the Trust intranet.
The Trust recognises that it is important to be outward looking and to learn and improve
from the experience of other organisations and experts and where possible to benchmark
the quality and performance of the services we provide to our patients. We do this through
a variety of ways. We are members of external national groups and networks including but
not limited to the Shelford Group which comprises leading NHS multi-specialty academic
healthcare organisations, who are dedicated to excellence in clinical research, education
and patient care. Foundation Trust Network; the Association of University Hospitals; CHKS
and other external sources of healthcare intelligence such as Dr Foster and CQC reports
and inspections. In addition, we seek both external and internal expertise such as the
Department of Health, KHP partners and our Governors to provide an independent critical
eye.
The risk and control framework
The Trust operates a cyclical mechanism for the identification, evaluation and control of
risk, facilitated by means of a central risk register. This is a dynamic document which
reflects corporate and local risks and their movement within the register. Local Risk
Groups identify risks and potential hazards and formulate actions plans to deal with them.
Each risk is scored on a common basis across the Trust for likelihood and potential
impact. If risks cannot be satisfactorily resolved at a local level, they are considered by the
relevant corporate risk management group.
Unresolved risks are passed to the Quality & Governance Committee to review the
adequacy of, and progress against action plans and to consider acceptance or further
resolution. If additional resources are required to reduce the risk to an acceptable level,
this is considered by the Business Resource and Strategy Group and, if necessary by the
Trust Finance and Performance Committee. Risks that have an above average
consequence and likelihood are given priority in the resource allocation process. It is the
Trust’s policy as defined within the Risk Management Strategy that its risk appetite is
defined as all red risks are required to be reviewed by the Board of Directors. The Board
has decided that all risks assessed as having a greater than average likelihood of
occurrence with a potential impact of more than moderate harm, are not acceptable and
require mitigation. The Board reviews the nature and assessment of these risks and the
potential impact on delivery of the Trust’s Strategic priorities and careful consideration is
given to whether the level of risk should be accepted or further treatment plans put in
place. The Board will seek additional assurance or take direct action where it considers
that risks are not being adequately controlled or accepted.
The Board Assurance Framework provides a high level management assessment process
and record which enables the Trust to focus on the principal risks to delivering its strategic
priorities and the robustness of internal controls to reduce or manage the risks to
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acceptable levels. The Assurance Framework is updated by the Executive Directors and
reviewed by the Board on a quarterly basis. The sources of key controls and assurances,
both internal and external, are reviewed for their adequacy and relevance and action plans
are agreed.
Information Governance is reviewed by the Governance Committee, who are advised by
the Caldecott Guardian and the Senior Information Risk Owner. The Trust completes the
annual Information Governance toolkit. In the submission made in March 2013, the Trust
achieved at least a Level 2 rating on all but two requirements and scored a total of 74%
across all indicators. The Trust has made significant efforts to ensure the security of the
information it holds and transmits to and from its systems. These include the enforcement
of encryption for any portable devices used on Trust systems, encryption for all Trust
laptop computers and the implementation of ‘remote wipe’ functionality for smart phones in
the event of their loss or theft. Key areas of risk remaining, and for which the Trust did not
score Level 2, are to ensure the pseudononymisation of all data being transferred and
implementing a comprehensive records management system for all Trust records.
All Trust policies, procedures and business cases include an Equality Impact Assessment
so that their implications can be considered by the Board of Directors. Major policy or
strategic decisions are taken only after consultation with the Council of Governors, Staff
Side representatives and public and patient stakeholders. The Trust holds community
events, most recently on 18 and 25 April 2013, to receive the views of Trust Members and
the Annual Public meeting in September 2012 was very well attended by people.
The Board of Directors review the Board Assurance Framework on a quarterly basis. Each
risk is scored on a likelihood and impact matrix and cross-referenced to the Trust’s
strategic aims. Following the most recent review the two highest scoring risks were
identified as:
a)

Failure to maintain ongoing compliance with regulatory requirements.
This risk was scored highly due to the failure to meet the more stringent Hospital
Acquired Infection target in 2010/11 and the further reduction in the target for
2011/12. A comprehensive action plan has been developed to increase awareness of
infection control amongst all staff and increased investment has been made in line
management for patients which has been identified as the predominant source of
remaining risk. This is monitored through the Infection Prevention and Control
governance reporting framework to the Board.
The Trust commissioned KPMG to review the process of obtaining assurance on the
ability of the Trust to meet these targets. Their conclusion was:
“King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (‘the Trust’) self-certified its potential for
meeting the 2010-11 MRSA target. In hindsight, this certification has proved to be
optimistic. The Board of Directors considered information available to demonstrate the
stretch required and the degree of risk attached to the target, which is particularly
sensitive to non-compliance in light of its small volume measures and the significant
reduction needed. We have not found evidence of systematic failures in the operation
of the Board or governance processes, but we have noted a number of possible
enhancements to governance arrangements in order to further refine the selfcertification process.”
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The enhancements recommended were accepted by the Board of Directors and were
implemented for the 2011 self-certification process.
b)

Failure to maintain financial sustainability due to reductions in tariffs and commissioning
levels. The reduced level of growth in NHS funding and commissioning decisions to
reduce the level of activity means that the Trust needs to improve efficiency to remain
financially sustainable. The Trust has adopted a Medium Term Financial Strategy,
which focuses on increased cost control and improvements in productivity to address
this risk. The first three phases of the Strategy was successfully completed in the
period 2010/11 to 2012/13 but further delivery will remain challenging in the
foreseeable future and is regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors.

The outcomes of both these action plans on the assessed risk are considered by the Board
on a monthly basis as part of the finance & performance reports.
The potential acquisition of the Princess Royal University Hospital will increase the potential
risk exposure to the Trust due both to increased scale and the uncertainties inherent in
acquiring a new organisation. In order to mitigate this risk, the Trust has undertaken a due
diligence exercise in conjunction with Ernst & Young LLP. The results of this exercise have
informed both the Trust’s plans on acquisition and discussions on financial arrangements
with the Department of Health.
The foundation trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality
Commission.
On-going compliance with the registration requirements is monitored through the Trust’s
Quality Governance Framework. The underpinning management committees: Patient
Outcome, Patient Safety, Patient Experience and Organisational Safety Committees have
specific responsibility within their terms of reference for reviewing and monitoring
compliance against the Care Quality Commission’s Essential Standards, the NHS Outcomes
Framework and the NHS Litigation Authoritie’s Acute Risk Management Standards. To
support this and to maintain a strong focus, the Trust has appointed Assurance and
Regulatory Performance teams and in addition, a quality governance Information technology
support system, HealthAssure, has been purchased and is being rolled out. The Assurance
team work closely with Divisions in supporting the registration of services or new locations
with the CQC and assessing compliance with the Essential Standards/Outcomes.
The Care Quality Commission visited the Trust as part of their programme of scheduled but
unannounced reviews on 29 August 2012. The Trust was found to be compliant with each of
the five outcomes against which it was assessed and no service improvements were
required.
The inspectors visited Annie Zunz, Byron, Marjorie Warren, and Donne wards and the
Friends’ Stroke Unit. They spoke with more than 40 patients as well a number of people who
were visiting on the day. A written report was published at the end of October 2012 and is
available on the CQC’s website.
On the 14 January 2013 the Trust successfully registered renal dialysis satellite units in
Dulwich, Bromley, Woolwich, Dartford and Sydenham and the Frank Cooksey neurorehabilitation unit located in Lewisham Hospital. During the registration process the CQC
assessed the declarations and evidence supplied to them by the Trust and found that all
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required standards had been met. These units will be inspected in due course as part of the
CQC’s ongoing review programme.
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s
contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and
that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the
timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality,
diversity and human rights legislation are complied with.
The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery
Plans are in place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency
requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this organisation’s
obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are
complied with.
Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
The Board of Directors ensures that resources are used economically, efficiently and
effectively by means of monthly finance and performance reports. These are considered in
detail by the Finance and Performance Committee which is a committee of the Board,
chaired by Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee receives regular reports from the
Trust’s Internal Auditors, KPMG LLP and its External Auditors, Deloitte LLP.
Annual Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare quality accounts for each
financial year. Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and
content of annual quality reports which incorporate the above legal requirements in the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
The Board’s clinical plans and core quality priorities have been developed in consultation
with a wide range of internal and external stakeholders including senior clinical teams,
Commissioners, Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees, LINks, Governors and
members. The Board receives regular reports on all aspects of quality through monthly
performance reports and scorecards, and quarterly reports on patient safety, patient
outcomes and patient experience and organisational safety. The Board also receives a
separate quarterly Quality and Governance Report which includes detailed analyses of all
serious complaints and adverse incidents together with actions taken and related service
developments/improvements. The Board considers the Assurance Framework and the Trust
Risk Register on a quarterly basis and agrees actions as necessary to mitigate risks.
The data included within the Quality Report is subject to audit by both internal and external
audit to assure the Board that the underlying data is robust, This is supplemented by regular
clinical audits of data within specialities and national audits.
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Following an external review in December 2010, the Trust strengthened the Board
Assurance Framework and linked this explicitly to the Board Self Certification of the Annual
Plan. It also introduced a new Quality Governance Framework with the implementation of a
new Board governance structure. At the heart of this is the Quality & Governance Committee
which, on behalf of the Board, monitors the three dimensions of quality, Patient Safety,
Patient Outcomes which addresses clinical audit and effectiveness, Patient Experience and
Organisational Safety through a series of management committees chaired by executive
directors. This enables a strong Board focus on all aspects of quality and is the vehicle
through which the Trust’s quality priorities and Monitor’s Quality Governance Framework are
monitored. The Trust’s centralised patient safety, clinical effectiveness, patient experience
and assurance teams work closely together, to ensure that the processes for the
identification, analysis, monitoring and reporting of quality issues are robust, systematic and
responsive to the changes in the regulatory environment.
Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by
the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical leads
within the NHS foundation trust, who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on the content of the quality
report attached to this annual report and other performance information available to me. My
review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management
letter and other reports. I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of
the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Trust Board, the Audit Committee
and the Quality and Governance Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.
As noted above, the Board amended the Trust’s Committee structure in the previous year to
improve non-executive oversight and to allow greater focus on the risks identified in the
Board Assurance Framework. The Trust’s Board governance structure comprising Audit,
Quality & Governance, Finance & Performance, Strategy and Equality & Diversity together
with the quality governance reporting structure, provide the framework for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of control. These supporting processes have been subject to
Internal Audit during 2012/13 with no significant concerns identified and they will remain part
of the comprehensive audit programme going forward. Audit reports and findings are
formally reviewed at the Audit Committee and recommendations requiring management
action are monitored and reported on by this committee.
In response to the report published by Robert Francis QC following the public inquiry into the
Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust the Trust has set up a working group to oversee
implementation of the report’s recommendations and to drive any necessary cultural and
organisational changes. Membership of the group includes executive and non-executive
members of the Board of Directors, a patient governor and senior nursing and medical staff.
A series of key project themes have been identified although the main priority in the short
term will be to improve and support the listening culture at the Trust. Progress will be
reported to the Quality and Governance Committee, Board of Directors and Council of
Governors.
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The findings of CQC inspections during 2012/13 together with the registration of six satellite
units without condition were reported to the Board direct and in detail through the quality
governance framework. The action plans are set out in the Board Assurance Framework,
together with timescales for implementation and the responsible Directors. The BAF is linked
to the Risk Register, the Trust’s Strategic Objectives and maps the controls to the source of
assurance. It is directly linked to the Trust’s Internal Audit Plan.
The Board reviews the proceedings of all its committees at every meeting and considers and
approves the arrangements for risk management in the Trust including the risk framework
incorporated in the Trust’s Risk Management Strategy which is reviewed annually. committee
chairs draw the Board’s attention to any matters arising from the proceedings of their
committees which have risk implications at each Board meeting. All Board committees
produce an annual report and Committee Self Assessment which covers establishment,
composition, reporting structure, the work plan, resources and meeting arrangements which
are reviewed by the Board.
Conclusion
No significant internal control issues have been identified by either the Trust’s internal
processes or by assurance reviews undertaken by external bodies.
Signed:
Date: XX May 2013
Timothy Smart
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent auditor's report to the Board of Governors and Board of Directors of
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
We have audited the financial statements of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust for the year ended 31 March 2013 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes 1 to 27. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the
accounting policies directed by Monitor – Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation
Trusts.
This report is made solely to the Board of Governors and Board of Directors (“the Boards”)
of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, as a body, in accordance with
paragraph 4 of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Boards those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the trust
and the Boards as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.
Respective responsibilities of the accounting officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities Statement, the
Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law, the
Audit Code of NHS Foundation Trusts and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Trust’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Accounting Officer; and
the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:


Give a true and fair view of the state of the trust’s affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of
its income and expenditure for the year then ended;



Have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting policies directed by
Monitor – Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts; and
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Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health
Service Act 2006.



Opinion on other matter prescribed by the National Health Service Act 2006

In our opinion:

The information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Audit Code for
NHS Foundation Trusts requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:


The Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual, is misleading or
inconsistent with information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not
required to consider, nor have we considered, whether the Annual Governance
Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by
internal controls;



Proper practices have not been observed in the compilation of the financial
statements; or



The NHS foundation trust has not made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the
requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Audit
Code for NHS Foundation Trusts.
Signed:
Date: xx May 2013
Craig Wisdom, ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
St Albans, UK

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Trust’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial information differs from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2013
note
OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Operating Income from continuing operations
Operating Expenses of continuing operations
OPERATING SURPLUS
FINANCE COSTS
Finance income
Finance expense - financial liabilities
Finance expense - unwinding of discount on provisions
PDC Dividends payable
NET FINANCE COSTS
Share of profit/(loss) of associate accounted for using the equity method
Corporation tax expense
(Deficit)/surplus from continuing operations
Surplus/(deficit) of discontinued operations and the gain/(loss) on disposal of
discontinued operations

2012/2013 2011/2012
£'000
£'000

2
3

5
6.1
18

152
(10,234)
(175)
(7,764)
(18,021)

145
(10,040)
(188)
(8,038)
(18,121)

7

738
0
(5,917)

(816)
0
2,084

0

0

(5,917)

2,084

(4,766)
6,730
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(3,953)

(5,549)
2,956
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(509)

0

0

(3,953)

(509)

0
(5,917)
(5,917)

0
2,084
2,084

0
(3,953)
(3,953)

0
(509)
(509)

(DEFICIT)/SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Impairments
Revaluations
Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets
Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures
Movements arising from classifying non current assets as Assets Held for Sale
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Recycling gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes
Other reserve movements
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE) / INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

679,260 628,615
(667,894) (607,594)
11,366
21,021

19
19

Prior period adjustments
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE) / INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Allocation of Profits/(Losses) for the period:
(a) (Deficit)/surplus for the period attributable to:
(i) minority interest, and
(ii) owners of the parent.
TOTAL
(b) total comprehensive (expense) / income for the period attributable to:
(i) minority interest, and
(ii) owners of the parent.
TOTAL
T
he notes on pages 14 to 50 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 March 2013
note
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment Property
Investments in associates (and joined controlled operations)
Other Investments
Trade and other receivables
Other Financial assets
Other assets
Total non-current assets

31 March
2012
£'000

1,399
346,807
0
816
0
3,834
0
0
352,856

1,276
346,894
0
78
0
3,528
0
0
351,776

11,333
45,110
0
0
40,502
96,945

10,963
41,645
0
0
27,607
80,215

(82,821)
(1,939)
0
(3,316)
(5,552)
0
(93,628)

(65,956)
(1,867)
0
(984)
(6,181)
0
(74,988)

356,173

357,003

0
(90,934)
0
(6,893)
0
(97,827)

0
(88,472)
0
(6,232)
0
(94,704)

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED

258,346

262,299

Financed by (taxpayers' equity)
Minority Interest
Public Dividend Capital
Revaluation reserve
Available for sale investments reserve
Other reserves
Merger reserve
Income and expenditure reserve

0
135,678
87,536
0
0
0
35,132

0
135,678
85,979
0
0
0
40,642

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Liabilities in disposal groups
Total current liabilities

8
9

31 March
2013
£'000

10
12

11
12

20

13
15
18
14

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

13
15
18
14

19

TOTAL TAXPAYERS' EQUITY
258,346
262,299
The financial statements on pages 10 to 13 were approved by the Board on XX May 2013 and signed on its behalf by:
Signed:

Date: May 2013
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

Taxpayers' Equity at 1 April 2012
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2012-13
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Impairments
Revaluations - Property, plant and equipment
Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets
Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Recycling gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Other recognised gains and losses
Public Dividend Capital received
Public Dividend Capital repaid
Public Dividend Capital written off
Other reserve movements
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2013

Balance at 31 March 2011
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2011-12
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Impairments
Revaluations - Property, plant and equipment
Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets
Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Recycling gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial investments
Other recognised gains and losses
Public Dividend Capital received
Public Dividend Capital repaid
Public Dividend Capital written off
Other reserve movements
Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2012

84

Public Dividend
Capital
£'000
135,678

Revaluation
Reserve
£'000
85,979

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve
£'000
40,642
(5,917)

Total
£'000
262,299

0
0
0
0

0

0

(5,917)
(4,766)
6,730
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

135,678

87,536

35,132

258,346

Public Dividend
Capital
£'000
135,578

Revaluation
Reserve
£'000
88,748

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve
£'000
38,382

Total
£'000
262,708

(4,766)
6,730
(407)
0
0
0
0

407
0

0

100
0
0
0

0

0

2,084
(5,549)
2,956
0
0
0
0
0
100
0
0
0

135,678

85,979

40,642

262,299

(5,549)
2,956
(176)
0
0
0
0
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2013
2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus from continuing operations
Operating surplus of discontinued operations
Operating surplus/(deficit)

11,366
0
11,366

21,021
0
21,021

Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments
Reversals of impairments
Loss on disposal
Non-cash donations/grants credited to income
Interest accrued and not paid
Dividends accrued and not paid or received
Amortisation of PFI credit
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
Increase in Trade and Other Payables
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions
Tax (paid) / received
Movements in operating cash flow of discontinued operations
Other movements in operating cash flows

14,688
9,129
0
474
0
159
253
0
(3,771)
0
(370)
16,865
(629)
2,993
0
0
(603)

14,043
1,574
0
49
0
171
257
0
155
0
218
7,417
2,590
(1,804)
0
0
0

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS

50,554

45,691

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of financial assets
Sales of financial assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Sales of intangible assets
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Cash flows attributable to investing activities of discontinued operations
Cash from acquisitions of business units and subsidiaries
Cash from (disposals) of business units and subsidiaries
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

154
0
0
(594)
0
(22,172)
403
0
0
0
(22,209)

144
0
0
(609)
0
(20,148)
30
0
0
0
(20,583)

Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital repaid
Loans received from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Loans received from the Department of Health
Other loans received
Loans repaid to the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Loans repaid to the Department of Health
Other loans repaid
Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Other capital receipts
Capital element of Private Finance Initiative Obligations
Interest paid
Interest element of finance lease
Interest element of Private Finance Initiative obligations
PDC Dividend paid
Cash flows attributable to financing activities of discontinued operations
Cash flows from (used in) other financing activities
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities

0
0
4,400
0
0
(1,012)
0
(123)
0
0
(733)
(566)
0
(9,656)
(7,760)
0
0
(15,450)

100
0
0
0
135
(1,012)
0
(106)
(124)
0
(678)
(669)
(43)
(9,328)
(8,359)
0
(113)
(20,197)

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

12,895

4,911

Cash and Cash equivalents at 1 April

27,607

22,696

Cash and Cash equivalents at 31 March

40,502

27,607
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Accounting Policies
Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS foundation trusts shall meet the
accounting requirements of the Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual which shall be
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2012/13
issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual to
the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation trusts.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered
material in relation to the accounts.
1.1 Going concern
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the NHS
Foundation Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in the
preparation of the accounts.
1.2 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to
account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories
and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.
1.3 Acquisitions and discontinued operations
Activities are considered to be 'discontinued' where they meet all of the following
conditions:
a) The sale (this may be at nil consideration for activities transferred to another public
sector body) or termination is completed either in the period or before the earlier of
three months after the commencement of the subsequent period and the date on
which the financial statements are approved;
b) If a termination, the former activities have ceased permanently;
c) The sale or termination has a material effect on the nature and focus of the
reporting NHS Foundation Trust's operations and represents a material reduction in
its operating facilities resulting either from its withdrawal from a particular activity or
from a material reduction in income in the NHS Foundation Trust's continuing
operations; and
d) The assets, liabilities, results of operations and activities are clearly distinguishable,
physically, operationally and for financial reporting purposes.
Operations not satisfying all these conditions are classified as continuing.
Activities are considered to be 'acquired' whether or not they are acquired from outside the
public sector.
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1.4 Consolidated Accounts
Subsidiaries
Subsidiary entities are those over which the Trust has the power to exercise control or a
dominant influence so as to gain economic or other benefits. The income, expenses,
assets, liabilities, equity and reserves of subsidiaries are consolidated in full into the
appropriate financial statement lines. The capital and reserves attributable to minority
interests are included as a separate item in the Statement of Financial Position.
The amounts consolidated are drawn from the draft financial statements of the subsidiaries
for the year.
Where subsidiaries' accounting policies are not aligned with those of the Trust then
amounts are adjusted during consolidation where the differences are material.
The Trust has a wholly owned subsidiary company, KCH Commercial Services Ltd, who
wholly own Agnentis Ltd and KCH Management Ltd . The accounts for this company have
been consolidated into the Foundation Trust annual accounts. They are not shown
separately in the segmental analysis note to the accounts (note 1.22) as the figures were
immaterial.
Associates
Associate entities are those over which the Trust has the power to exercise a significant
influence.
Associate entities are recognised in the Trust’s financial statement using the equity method.
The investment is initially recognised at cost. It is increased or decreased subsequently to
reflect the trust’s share of the entity’s profit or loss or other gains and losses (e.g.
revaluation gains on the entity’s property, plant and equipment) following acquisition. It is
also reduced when any distribution e.g. share dividends are received by the trust from the
associate.
Joint ventures
Joint ventures are separate entities over which the trust has joint control with one or more
other parties. The meaning of control is the same as that for subsidiaries.
Joint ventures are accounted for by using the equity method.
Joint operations
Joint operations are activities which are carried on with one or more other parties but which
are not performed through a separate entity. The trust includes within its financial
statements its share of the activities, assets and liabilities.
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1.5 Income
Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance
occurs and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of
income for the Trust is from contracts with commissioners in respect of healthcare services
provided under the Department of Health's Payment by Results rules-based system and local
agreements for non-mandatory tariff activity.
Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in the following financial
year, that income is deferred.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of
sale have been met, and is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.
The Foundation Trust has raised income invoices for incomplete spells of patient activity as at
31st March. The work in progress is derived from patients admitted before the year end but not
discharged as at 31st March. The calculation is based on the number of bed days and the
average bed day price. The value as at 31st March 2013 was £3.212m, an increase of £356k
from 31st March 2012.
The provision for irrecoverable debts is based on outstanding debts greater than 6 months
which have not been agreed with the respective debtor, with the exception of outstanding PCT
debts, where the provision is based on outstanding debts greater than 30 days due to the
establishment of NHS England and the change in contracting arrangements.
Due to the complexities of Private Patient debt recovery the bad debt provision for Private
Patients is based on outstanding debts greater than 1 year which have not been agreed with
the respective debtor.
The irrecoverable debt provision figure is disclosed in note 12 - Trade receivables and other
receivables.
The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim
the cost of treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently
been paid e.g. by an insurer. The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification
from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual
has lodged a compensation claim. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the
treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for unsuccessful compensation
claims and doubtful debts.
1.6 Expenditure on Employee Benefits
i Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the
service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken
by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent
that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.
ii Pension costs
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Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The
Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General
Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England
and Wales. It is not possible for the NHS Foundation Trust to identify its share of the underlying
scheme liabilities. Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution
scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the
contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period. The total employer contribution
payable in the year ended 31 March 2013 was £31,653,849 (31 March 2012: £29,986,539).
Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they
become due.
Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except
where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is
charged to the operating expenses at the time the trust commits itself to the retirement,
regardless of the method of payment.
The NHS Pension Scheme is subject to a full valuation every four years by the Government
Actuary. The latest published valuation relates to the period 1 April 1999 to 31 March 2004
which was published in December 2007 and is available on the NHS Pensions Agency website
http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/
Pensions/Documents/Pensions/NHSPS_funding_valuation_report_at_31_3_04_-_final_.pdf
The national deficit of the scheme was £3.3billion as per the last scheme valuation by the
Government Actuary for the period 1 April 1999 to 31 march 2004. The conclusion of the
valuation was that the scheme continues to operate on a sound financial basis.
Employer contribution rates are reviewed every four years following the scheme valuation, on
advice from the actuary. At the last valuation it was recommended that employer contribution
rates should continue at 14% or pensionable pay. From 1 April 2013, employees' pay
contributions will be on a tiered scale from 5% to 13.3% of their pensionable pay.
1.7 Expenditure on other goods and services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been
received, and is measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is
recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a non-current asset
such as property, plant and equipment.
1.8 Property, Plant and Equipment
i Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised where:



it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;



it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be
provided to, the Trust;



it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and



individually have a cost of at least £5,000; or



collectively have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more
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than £250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly
simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal
dates and are under single managerial control; or


form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit
irrespective of their individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with
significantly different asset lives e.g. plant and equipment, then these components are treated
as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.
ii Measurement
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs
directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.
All land and buildings are restated to fair value using professional valuations in accordance with
IAS16 every five years. A three year interim revaluation is also carried out.
Valuations are carried out by professionally qualified valuers in accordance with the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The last asset
valuations were undertaken in 2013 as at the prospective valuation date of 31 March 2013.
The valuations are carried out primarily on the basis of Depreciated Replacement Cost for
specialised operational property (e.g. NHS patient treatment facilities) and Existing Use Value
for non-specialised operational property. The value of land for existing use purposes is
assessed at Existing Use Value. For non-operational properties including surplus land, the
valuations are carried out at Market Value.
The Department of Health has adopted the Modern Equivalent Asset approach (MEA) for its
DRC valuations rather than continuing with identical replacement.
The MEA approach used to value the property will normally be based on the cost of a modern
equivalent asset that has the same service potential as the existing asset and then adjusted to
take account of obsolescence. In the past, functional obsolescence has not been reflected in
asset valuations for the NHS.
Functional obsolescence examines a building’s design or specification and whether it may no
longer fulfil the function for which it was originally designed or whether it may be much more
basic than the MEA. The asset will still be capable of use but at a lower level of efficiency than
the modern equivalent asset, or may be capable of modification to bring it up to a current
specification. Other common causes of functional obsolescence include advances in
technology or legislative change. The obsolescence adjustment will reflect either the cost of
upgrading, or if this is not possible, the financial consequences of the reduced efficiency
compared with the modern equivalent.
The MEA approach incorporates the Building Cost Information Service Index to determine an
increase or decrease in building costs which impact on the asset valuation.
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The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment in periods if
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. The
costs arising from financing the construction of the property, plant and equipment are not
capitalised but are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year to which
they relate.
Additional alternative Open Market Value figures have only been supplied for operational
assets scheduled for imminent closure and subsequent disposal
The revaluation resulted in an increase of £1.6m in the value of land owned by the Trust and an
overall decrease to buildings and dwellings net book value of £9.1m.
A decrease in value of certain buildings resulted in an impairment of £9.129m being charged to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income (see Note 6.2). These buildings included the Clinical
Research Facility (£4.236m), the Energy Centre (£137k), 45/47 Caldecot Road (£68k),
Hambledon Wing (£885k), Unit 4, KCH Business Park (£1.199m), Unit 6, KCH Business Park
(£2.593m) and other building impairments totalling £11k.
All impairments resulting from price changes are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. If the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the impairment the difference is
taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Assets in the course of construction are valued at cost and are valued by professional valuers
when brought into use.
The valuation included the Trusts PFI scheme (note 16).
Operational equipment other than IT equipment, which is considered to have nil inflation, is
valued at net current replacement cost through annual uplift by the change in the value of the
GDP deflator. Equipment surplus to requirements is valued at net recoverable amount.
Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as
an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future
economic benefits or service potential deriving from the cost incurred to replace a component
of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined reliably.
Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it
meets the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is
derecognised. Other expenditure that does not generate additional future economic benefits or
service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.
Depreciation
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful economic
lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.
Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not depreciated. Depreciation is
calculated from the start of the month following the month in which the asset first became
available for use.
Property, Plant and Equipment which has been reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ ceases to be
depreciated upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and residual
interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI contract assets are not depreciated until the
asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively
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Buildings, installations and fittings are depreciated on their current value over the estimated
remaining life of the asset as advised by the District Valuer. Leaseholds are depreciated over
the primary lease term.
Equipment is depreciated on current cost evenly over the useful economic life of the asset.
Standard useful economic lives are estimated for each major category of equipment and
individual lives will only be applied where it is clear that the standard lives are materially
inappropriate. The major categories and their useful economic lives are:












Short life engineering plant and equipment - 5 years;
Medium life engineering plant and equipment - 10 years;
Long life engineering plant and equipment - 15 years;
Vehicles - 7 years;
Furniture - 10 years;
Office and IT equipment - 5 years;
Soft furnishings - 7 years;
Short life medical and other equipment - 5 years;
Medium life medical equipment - 10 years;
Long life medical equipment - 15 years;
Mainframe-type IT installations - 8 years;

Revaluation gains and losses
Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent
that, they reverse a revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating
expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income.
Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an
available balance for the asset concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses.
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’.
Impairments
In accordance with the FT ARM, impairments that are due to a loss of economic benefits or
service potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is
made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal
to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance in the
revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.
An impairment arising from a loss of economic benefit or service potential is reversed when,
and to the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are
recognised in operating income to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it
would have had if the impairment had never been recognised. Any remaining reversal is
recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original impairment, a transfer
was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is
transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.
Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are
treated as revaluation gains.
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iii De-recognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘Held for Sale’ once all of the following criteria
are met:








the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
which are usual and customary for such sales;
the sale must be highly probable i.e.:
management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;
an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale;
the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price;
the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as
‘Held for Sale’; and
the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped
or significant changes made to it.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying
amount and their ‘fair value less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are
de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have been met.
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for
recognition as ‘Held for Sale’ and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s
economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when scrapping or demolition occurs.
iv Donated, government grant and other grant funded assets
Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair
value on receipt. The donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor
has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be
consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation/grant is deferred
within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition
has not yet been met.
The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as
other items of property, plant and equipment.

v Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
PFI transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as interpreted in
HM Treasury’s FReM, are accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial Position’ by the Trust.
The underlying assets are recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment at their fair value. An
equivalent financial liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 17.
The annual contract payments are apportioned between the repayment of the liability, a finance
cost and the charges for the services. The finance cost is calculated using the implicit interest
rate for the scheme.
The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and the finance cost is charged to
Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Phase 1 of the PFI scheme, the construction and management of a new clinical wing, was the
'Golden Jubilee Wing', and this building was made available to the Trust in September 2002.
Phase II of the PFI scheme was the refurbishment of the Ruskin Wing, and this wing became
operational on 1st May 2004.
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The total PFI scheme is subject to a finance lease and is deemed to be 'on-Statement of
Financial Position'. The capital element of the lease has been recorded as a tangible fixed
asset for which depreciation will be charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over
the life of the asset. A payable was raised for the capitalised amount representing the fair value
of the asset at inception of the lease. The finance charge element of the lease payments is
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the lease.
Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’)
are capitalised where they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised
at the time they are provided by the operator and are measured initially at their fair value.
The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined
for each year of the contract from the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement.
Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term finance
lease liability or prepayment is recognised respectively.
Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the
contract, the difference is recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the
fair value is greater than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a
‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to
the operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic
life of the replacement component.
Assets contributed by the Trust to the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant
and equipment in the Trust’s Statement of Financial Position.
Other assets contributed by the Trust to the operator
Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the trust to the operator before
the asset is brought into use, which are intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are
recognised initially as prepayments during the construction phase of the contract.
Subsequently, when the asset is made available to the Trust, the prepayment is treated as an
initial payment towards the finance lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the
liability.
1.9 Intangible assets
i Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of
being sold separately from the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or
other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust and where the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably, and where the cost is at least £5,000.
Internally generated intangible assets
Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar
items are not capitalised as intangible assets
Expenditure on research is not capitalised.
Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated:
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the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an
intangible asset for sale or use;
the Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it;
the Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset;
how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery
benefits e.g. the presence of a market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for
internal use, the usefulness of the asset;
adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Trust to complete
the development and sell or use the asset; and
the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during
development.

Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an operating system, is
capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is
not integral to the operation of hardware e.g. application software, is capitalised as an
intangible asset.
ii Measurement
Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs
needed to create, produce and prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in
the manner intended by management.
Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value. Revaluations gains and losses
and impairments are treated in the same manner as for Property, Plant and Equipment.
Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair
value less costs to sell’.
iii Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner
consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.
1.10 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
measured using the First In First Out (FIFO) method. This is considered to be a reasonable
approximation to current cost due to the high turnover of stocks.
1.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months
or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
with insignificant risk of change in value. These balances exclude monies held in the NHS
Foundation Trust's bank account belonging to patients (see third party assets below).
Account balances are only set off where a formal agreement has been made with the bank to
do so. In all other cases overdrafts are disclosed within payables. Interest earned on bank
accounts and interest charged on overdrafts is recorded as, respectively, interest receivable
and interest payable in the periods to which they relate. Bank charges are recorded as
operating expenditure in the periods to which they relate.
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1.12 Financial Instruments and Financial Liabilities
i Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of
non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with
the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements, are recognised when, and to the
extent which, performance occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is
made.
Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through
finance leases are recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for
leases described below.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
ii De-recognition
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cashflows from the assets
have expired or the Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
iii Classification and Measurement

Financial assets are categorised as Loans and receivables or ‘Available-for-sale financial
assets’.

Financial liabilities are classified as 'Fair Value through Income and Expenditure' or as 'Other
Financial liabilities'.
iv Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments with are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets.

The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash at bank and in hand, NHS debtors, accrued
income and ‘other debtors’.
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and
credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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v Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets which are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included
in long-term assets unless the Trust intends to dispose of them within 12 months of the
Statement of Financial Position date.
Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, including transaction
costs, and measured subsequently at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in reserves
and reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of 'other comprehensive
income'. When items classified as ‘available-for-sale’ are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised are transferred from reserves and recognised in 'Finance
Costs' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
vi Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred,
and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of the financial liability.

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after
the Statement of Financial Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.
Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective
interest method and charged to Finance Costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to
finance property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets.
vii Determination of fair value

For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are
determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
viii Impairment of financial assets
At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets,
other than those held at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’ is impaired. Financial
assets are impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cashflows of the
asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised
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future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of a bad debt provision.
The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced when the outstanding debt is greater
than 6 months and payment has not been agreed with the respective debtor, except for
outstanding PCT debts, where the carrying amount has been reduced where the outstanding
debt was greater than 30 days due to the establishment of NHS England and the change in
contracting arrangements. Due to the complexities of Private Patient debt recovery the
reduction in these debts is based on outstanding debts greater than 1 year where payment
has not been agreed with the respective debtor.

1.13 Leases
i Finance Leases
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the
NHS foundation trust, the asset is recorded as property, plant and equipment and a
corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the
fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease.
The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the
asset is accounted for an item of property plant and equipment.
The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to
achieve a constant rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is
charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The lease liability, is
de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
ii Operating Leases
Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating
expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives
received are added to the lease rentals and charged to operating expenses over the life of
the lease.
iii Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building
component and the classification for each is assessed separately.
1.14 Provisions
The NHS foundation trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive
obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for which it is probable that there will be a future
outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The
amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the
resources required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is
significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using the discount rates
published and mandated by HM Treasury.
i Clinical negligence costs
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The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the NHS
Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical
negligence claims. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical
negligence cases the legal liability remains with the NHS Foundation Trust. The total value of
clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the NHS Foundation Trust is
disclosed at note 18 but is not recognised in the NHS foundation trust's accounts.
ii Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS Foundation Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities
to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the NHS Foundation
Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives
assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any
'excesses' payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and
when the liability arises.
1.15 Contingencies
Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be
confirmed by one or more future events not wholly within the entity's control) are not
recognised as assets, but are disclosed in Note 23 where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in Note 23, unless the probability
of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are defined as:
• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity's control; or
• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of
economic benefits will arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.
1.16 Public Dividend Capital (PDC)
Public Dividend Capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity based on the excess of assets
over liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS Trust. HM Treasury has
determined that PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.
A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the NHS foundation trust, is payable as
public dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury
(currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the NHS foundation trust during the
financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of
all liabilities, except for (i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets), (ii) net cash
balances held with the Government Banking Services (GBS), excluding cash balances held in
GBS accounts that relate to a short-term working capital facility, and (iii) any PDC dividend
balance receivable or payable. In accordance with the requirements laid down by the
Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the
actual average relevant net assets as set out in the ‘pre-audit’ version of the annual accounts.
The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a
result the audit of the annual accounts.
1.17 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the NHS Foundation Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in
general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is
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recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.18 Corporation Tax
The Finance Act 2004 amended S519A Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 provided
power to the Treasury to make certain non-core activities of Foundation Trusts potentially
subject to corporation tax. This legislation is effective from September 12 2005. Any
outstanding payments of corporation tax as at the end of the financial year are provided for in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The Foundation Trust did not incur Corporation Tax in 2012/13 as the Trust did not generate
any taxable income.
1.19 Foreign Exchange
The functional and presentational currencies of the trust are sterling.
A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional
currency at the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction.
Where the Trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement
of Financial Position date:
• monetary items (other than financial instruments measured at 'fair value through income
and expenditure') are translated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March;
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated using the spot
exchange rate at the date the fair value was determined.
Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the transaction or on
re-translation at the Statement of Financial Position date) are recognised in income or
expense in the period in which they arise.
Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the same
manner as other gains and losses on these items.
1.20 Third Party Assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not
recognised in the accounts since the NHS foundation trust has no beneficial interest in them.
However, third party assets are disclosed in Note 26 to the accounts in accordance with the
requirements of the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual.
1.21 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and Special Payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when
it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that
ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared
with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the
way each individual case is handled. Losses and Special Payments are charged to the
relevant functional headings in the expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which
would have been made good through insurance cover had NHS Foundation Trusts not been
bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue
expenditure).
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However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and
compensations register which reports on an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for
future losses.
1.22 Segmental Analysis
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has a number of business divisions which are
aggregated under one reportable segment being the provision of healthcare. The Trust
provides Private Patient, Research and Development and Training and Education services
within this healthcare sector, but as they do not have a material impact they are aggregated
under this one reportable segment. Note 2 entitled "Other Operating Income" includes the
relevant income figures for these services.
The Trust also generated income from its King's subsidiary commercial company of £660k,
against expenditure of £759k, a net deficit of £101k.
1.23 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below)
that management has made in the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Trust has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. In addition to widely used estimation techniques, judgement is required when
determining the probable outflow of economic benefits relating to early voluntary retirement
pension and injury benefit liabilities.
Provision for impairment of receivables
Management will use their judgement to decide when to write-off revenue or to provide against
the probability of not being able to collect debt.
Impairments and estimated asset lives
The Trust is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment. In between formal
valuations by qualified surveyors, management make judgements about the condition of assets
and review their estimated lives.
Valuations of land and buildings
The Trust adopts a policy of revaluing its estate on an annual basis. Valuations are based on a range of
assumptions. See Note 1.8 for further details.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
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Management has made the following critical judgements in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies
and this has had a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the accounts:
1) The use of estimated asset lives in calculating depreciation (See Note 1.8 and Note 1.9).
2) Provisions for early voluntary retirement pension contributions and injury benefit obligations are estimated
using expected life tables and discounted at the pensions rate of 2.2% (See Note 1.14).
1.23 Future Changes in Accounting Policy
The following changes to standards issued by the IASB have not been implemented in these accounts. The Trust does not
expect these changes to have a significant impact in the period of initial application.

Published by
IASB

Change published
IFRS
9
Financial
Financial
Financial Liabilities:
IFRS 10
Statements

Instruments
Assets:

Consolidated

Financial

November
2009
October 2010
May 2011

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

May 2011

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

May 2011

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

May 2011

IAS 12 Income Taxes amendment

December
2010

IAS 1 Presentation of financial
statements, on other comprehensive
income (OCI)

June 2011

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

May 2011

IAS 28 Associates and joint ventures.

May 2011

IAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee
Benefits
IAS
32
Financial
Instruments:
Presentation
amendment
Offsetting financial assets and
liabilities
IFRS
7
Financial
Instruments:
Disclosures
–
amendment
Offsetting financial assets and
liabilities

102

Financial year for which the change
first applies
Uncertain. Not likely to be adopted by
the EU until the IASB has finished the
rest of its financial instruments project.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet
adopted by the EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet
adopted by the EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet
adopted by the EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet
adopted by the EU.
Effective date of 2012/13 but not yet
adopted by the EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet
adopted by the EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet
adopted by the EU.
Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet
adopted by the EU.

June 2011

Effective date of 2013/14

December
2011

Effective date of 2014/15 but not yet
adopted by the EU.

December
2011

Effective date of 2013/14 but not yet
adopted by the EU.
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2. OPERATING INCOME
2.1 Income from activities by classification

Elective income
Non elective income
Outpatient income
A & E income
Other NHS clinical income *
Private patient income
Other non-protected clinical income
Total income from activities
Other operating income
Research and development
Education and training
Received from other bodies: Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions
Received from other bodies: Other charitable and other contributions to
expenditure
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Other **
Rental revenue from operating leases
Total other operating income

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

108,453
127,077
88,385
16,041
233,172
13,151
2,569
588,848

101,895
119,625
83,771
14,819
209,589
13,906
1,488
545,093

9,652
47,347
960

9,728
47,121
230

918
19,255
11,994
286
90,412

1,418
13,966
10,678
381
83,522

679,260

628,615

* Other NHS clinical income includes HIV/AIDS funding, NSCG funding for Liver services, Bone Marrow Transplant
funding, Critical Care funding from PCTs including consortia PCT leads, Off-tariff drugs and devices, Renal Dialysis,
Direct Access, Community Midwifery, Community Dental services, National Screening programmes, RTA funding
and IVF services.
** Other income includes NHS Provider-to-provider Services, Clinical Excellence Awards, Staff Nursery, Car
Parking, Accommodation and Commercial Rents.

2.2 Private patient income
The statutory limitation on private patient income in section 44 of the 2006 Act was repealed with effect from 1
October 2012 by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. The financial statements disclosures that were provided
previously are no longer required.

2.3 Income from activities arising from mandatory and non-mandatory
services

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

Mandatory services
Non-mandatory services

618,526
60,734

575,332
53,283

Total income from activities

679,260

628,615
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2.4 Operating lease income

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

286

381

286

381

4
38
1,367

4
688
1,620

1,409

2,312

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

Income from activities
NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Trusts
Strategic Health Authorities *
Primary Care Trusts **
NHS Other
Non NHS: Private patients
Non-NHS: Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)
NHS injury scheme ***
Non NHS: Other ****

876
859
35,094
529,248
2,623
13,151
2,569
2,635
1,793

956
842
32,419
486,793
1,993
15,394
1,488
3,263
1,945

Total income from activities

588,848

545,093

Operating Lease Income
Rental revenue from operating leases

Future minimum lease payments due on leases of building expiring
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

2.5 Income from activities by type

* Income from National Specialised Commissioning contracts of £24.706m (2011/12 : £23.698m) is included
in this line.
** Income from London Specialised Commissioning contracts of £61.660m (2011/12 : £49.634m) is included
in this line.
*** NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 10.5% to reflect expected rates
of collection. The total outstanding claims against this scheme at 31 March 2013 were £6.827m (31 March
2012 : £5.871m), and a provision of £717k (2012 : £616k) was raised against this amount.
**** Non-NHS other income includes patient care provided to devolved administrations, personal
contributions for IVF treatment and services to prisons.
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3. OPERATING EXPENSES
3.1 Operating Expenses comprise:

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts
Services from NHS Trusts
Services from PCTs
Services from other NHS Bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies
Employee Expenses - Executive directors
Employee Expenses - Non-executive directors
Employee Expenses - Staff
Supplies and services - clinical
Supplies and services - general
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Increase / (decrease) in bad debt provision
Drugs Inventories consumed
Rentals under operating leases - minimum lease receipts
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible assets
Impairments of property, plant and equipment
Audit fees - Statutory audit
Audit fees - Regulatory reporting
Audit fees - Other auditors remuneration
Clinical negligence
Loss on disposal of other property, plant and equiment
Redundancy costs
PFI service costs
Other
TOTAL

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

3,191
896
6
0
4,783
1,473
166
372,405
83,265
2,717
3,694
5,778
23,862
2,262
74,766
7,180
13,925
763
9,129
81
2
5
10,010
474
66
24,961
22,034

3,201
1,095
12
66
1,575
1,370
134
350,132
76,918
2,435
3,946
5,353
20,085
(161)
66,908
7,802
13,260
783
1,574
100
2
0
8,936
49
0
24,168
17,851

667,894

607,594

* Other operating expenses includes expenditure on consultancy costs, leasing equipment, training and
legal fees.
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3.2 Operating leases
3.2.1 Opreating expenses include:

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

Hire of plant and machinery
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings

4,684
2,496

5,193
2,609

TOTAL

7,180

7,802

3.2.2 Arrangements containing an operating lease:

Future minimum lease payments due:
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

Land and buildings
2012/2013
2011/2012
£'000
£'000
2,403
1,830
7,496
6,635
803
1,699

TOTAL

10,702

Plant and machinery
2012/2013
2011/2012
£'000
£'000
4,293
3,684
9,945
8,149
1,807
2,002

10,164

16,045

13,835

3.3 Better Payment Practice Code - measure of compliance
2012/2013
Number
£'000
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total Non NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target

2011/2012
Number
£'000

122,690
46,331
38%

289,177
186,883
65%

116,655
55,072
47%

273,708
200,380
73%

3,076
1,269
41%

74,573
53,812
72%

3,088
1,148
37%

72,684
55,475
76%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Foundation Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the due date or within 30
days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.
3.4 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

5

8

5

8

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

5

0

5

0

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

0

0

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation

3.5 Other audit remuneration
Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor is analysed as follows:
All other non-audit services not falling within items above

3.6 Limitation on auditor's liability

Limitation on auditor's liability
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4. Employee expenses
4.1 Staff costs
Permanently
Employed
£'000

Other

2012/2013
Total

2011/2012
Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employers contributions to NHS Pensions
Pension Cost - other contributions
Agency and contract staff

300,721
25,343
31,973
707
0

5,609
0
0
0
12,775

306,330
25,343
31,973
707
12,775

288,317
23,891
30,413
786
12,081

Total gross staff costs

358,744

18,384

377,128

355,488

(2,587)
(278)
(319)

0
0
0

(2,587)
(278)
(319)

(3,280)
(307)
(399)

355,560

18,384

373,944

351,502

Permanently
Employed
Number

Other

2012/2013
Total

2011/2012
Total

Number

Number

Number

Medical and dental
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants and other support staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social care staff
Other

1,191
1,341
533
2,439
20
1,089
7
6

44
40
33
90
0
37
0
0

1,235
1,381
566
2,529
20
1,126
7
6

1,179
1,343
547
2,353
10
1,065
7
7

TOTAL

6,626

244

6,870

6,511

less income where netted off expenditure:
in respect of Salaries and wages
in respect of Social security costs
in respect of Employers contributions to NHS Pensions
Total staff costs

4.2 Average number of persons employed

4.3 Management costs

2012/2013
£'000

Management costs
Income
Management costs as a percentage

2011/2012
£'000

34,853
679,260
5.13%

30,388
627,402
4.84%

Management costs are defined as those on the management costs website at www.dh.gov.uk/PolicyAndGuidance/OrganisationPolicy/
FinanceAndPlanning/NHSManagementCosts/fs/en.. The general rule is that if a post falls within the Board or Corporate functions, the
salary cost of all staff must be included. Only the most senior manager must be included within clinical and operational or support
functions. These costs are also applied to contracted out services and management consultancy services.
4.4 Early retirements due to ill health
During the year to 31 March 2013 there were 3 (2011/12 : 5) early retirements from the NHS Trust on the grounds of ill-health. The
estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £150,127 (2011/12 : £305,497). The cost of these ill-health
retirements will be borne by NHS Pensions.
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4.5 Termination benefits
During the year to 31 March 2013 there were 2 (2011/12 : 17) cases where termination benefits were paid totalling £66k (2011/12 :
£437k).
Total
Number of
number of
Number of
other
exit
compulsory
departures
packages by
Exit package cost band
redundancies
agreed
cost band
<£10,000
0 (5)
0 (0)
0 (5)
£10,001 - £25,000
1 (6)
0 (0)
1 (6)
£25,001 - 50,000
0 (3)
0 (0)
0 (3)
£50,001 - £100,000
1 (3)
0 (0)
1 (3)
£100,001 - £150,000
0 (0)
0 (0)
0 (0)
£150,001 - £200,000
0 (0)
0 (0)
0 (0)
>£200,001
0 (0)
0 (0)
0 (0)
Total number of exit packages by type
2 (17)
0 (0)
2 (17)
Total resource cost (£'000)

66 (437)

4.5 Staff sickness absence

Days Lost (Long Term)
Days Lost (Short Term)
Total Days Lost
Total Staff Years
Average working Days Lost
Total Staff Employed In Period (Headcount)
Total Staff Employed In Period with No Absence
(Headcount)
Percentage Staff With No Sick Leave
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0 (0)

66 (437)

2012/2013
Number

2011/2012
Number

26,696
31,008
57,704

26,124
30,045
56,169

221
261

215
261

8,962

8,738
3,756

3,846
43%

43%
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4.6 Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers
A)

Remuneration

Name

Title

Chariman and Non-Executive Directors
G. Alberti
Chairman
G. Alberti
Non-Executive Director
E. Meek
Acting Chairman
E. Meek
Non-Executive Director
M. Parker
Chairman
C. Stooke
Non-Executive Director
F. Boardman
Non-Executive Director
M. James
Non-Executive Director
S. Slipman
Non-Executive Director
G. Mufti
Non-Executive Director
M. Meryon *
Non-Executive Director
A. McGregor
Non-Executive Director
R. Foster
Non-Executive Director
M. West
Non-Executive Director
Executive Directors
T. Smart
S. Taylor
A. Huxham
R. Sinker
G. Walters
M. Marrinan

Chief Executive
Chief Financial Officer
Executive Director of Workforce Development
Executive Director of Operations
Executive Director of Nursing & Midwifery
Executive Medical Director

Co-opted members of the Trust's Board
J. Walters
Director of Corporate Affairs
J. West
Director of Strategy
A. Toumadj
Director of Facilities
E. Meek
S. Slipman
G. Mufti
A. McGregor

Acting Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Salary
(bands of £5000)
£'000

2012/2013
Other
Remuneration
(bands of £5000)
£'000

Salary
(bands of £5000)
£'000

2011/2012
Other
Remuneration
(bands of £5000)
£'000

Benefits in Kind
Rounded to the
nearest £100

Benefits in Kind
Rounded to the
nearest £100

55 - 60
0
35 - 40
0-5
0
10 - 15
10 - 15
0-5
5 - 10
5 - 10
0
10 - 15
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
115 - 120
0
110 - 115
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

20 - 25
5 - 10
0
0-5
35 - 40
5 - 10
0-5
10 - 15
0
0
0
10 - 15
10 - 15
0-5

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
110 - 115
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

230 - 235
170 - 175
125 - 130
170 - 175
140 -145
75 - 80

0
5 - 10
0
0
0
135 - 140

0
0
0
0
0
0

225 - 230
165 - 170
115 - 120
145 - 150
130 - 135
55 - 60

0
5 - 10
0
0
0
155 - 160

0
0
0
0
0
0

110 - 115
140 - 145
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

95 - 100
125 - 130
5 - 10

0
0
0

0
0
0

1 May 2012 - 31 December 2012
1 July 2012 - 31 March 2013
1 December 2012 - 31 March 2013
1 March 2012 - 30 November 2012

* M. Meryon has waived his fee.
Expenses of directors and governors
Executive directors' expenses totalling £4,848 for travel and subsistence were reimbursed to 5 executive directors in 2012/2013 (2011/12 : £7,870).
Non-executive directors' expenses totalling £706 for travel and subsistence were reimbursed to 2 non-executive directors in 2012/2013 (2011/12 : £362).
Governors' expenses totalling £348 for travel and subsistence were reimbursed to 3 governors in 2012/13 (2011/12 : £544).
Band of highest paid director's total remuneration (bands of £5,000) (£'000)
230 -235
225 - 230
Median total remuneration (£)
37,395
37,298
Ratio
6.2
6.1
The above note discloses the median remuneration of the Trust's staff and the ratio between this and the mid-point of the banded remuneration of the highest paid director. The calculation is based on full-time
equivalent staff of the reporting entity at the reporting period end date on an annualised basis.
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4.6 Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers
B) Pension Benefits
This pensions information is provided by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division on an annual basis.
Real Increase in
Total accrued
Real Increase in
pension lump
pension at age
pension at age
sum at age 60
60 at 31 March
60 (bands of
(bands of
2013 (bands of
Name
Title
£2,500)
£2,500)
£5,000)
£'000
£'000
£'000
Executive Directors
T. Smart
S. Taylor
A. Huxham
R. Sinker
G. Walters
M. Marrinan

Chief Executive
Chief Financial Officer
Executive Director of Workforce Development
Executive Director of Operations
Executive Director of Nursing & Midwifery
Executive Medical Director

Co-opted members of the Trusts Board
J. Walters
Director of Corporate Affairs
J. West
Director of Strategy

Lump sum at
age 60 at 31
March 2013
(bands of
£5,000)
£'000

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value
at 31 March
2013
£'000

Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value
at 31 March
2012
£'000

Real increase
in Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value
£'000

0
2.5 - 5
5 - 7.5
2.5 - 5
(7.5) - (10)
2.5 - 5

0
5 - 7.5
10 - 12.5
0
(22.5) - (25)
7.5 - 10

0
55 - 60
45 - 50
10 - 15
50 - 55
30 - 35

0
170 - 175
140 - 145
0
160 - 165
95 - 100

0
1,065
0
105
1,159
709

97
994
1,029
66
1,237
648

(97)
71
(1,029)
39
(78)
61

5 - 7.5
2.5 - 5

20 - 22.5
0

40 - 45
5 - 10

130 - 135
0

0
63

866
38

(866)
25

R. Sinker and J. West are new pension scheme members and have no accrued lump sum.

During the year to 31 March 2013 the total value of employer contributions to the pension scheme in respect of directors was £136k (2011/12 : £147k)
As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued
benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement
when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their
total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension benefits in another
scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of
pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
The real increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the
value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
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5. Finance income

Interest on bank accounts
Interest on loans and receivables

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

79
73

69
76

152

145

6. Finance expense
6.1 Interest expense

Loans from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Overdrafts
Finance leases
Finance Costs in PFI obligations
Main Finance Costs
Contingent Finance Costs

6.2 Impairment of assets

Changes in market price - Operating Expenses
Changes in market price - Revaluation Reserve

7. Share of operating profit/(loss) in associate

GSTS Pathology LLP

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

578
0
0

623
46
43

7,513
2,143

7,578
1,750

10,234

10,040

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

9,129
4,766

1,574
5,549

13,895

7,123

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

738

(816)

738

(816)
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8. Intangible assets

8.1 Intangible assets 2012/2013

Software
licences
£'000

Development
expenditure
£'000

Total
£'000

Gross cost at 1 April 2012
Additions - purchased
Reclassifications
Gross cost at 31 March 2013

3,921
594
305
4,820

687
0
0
687

4,608
594
305
5,507

Amortisation at 1 April 2012
Provided during the year
Reclassifications
Amortisation at 31 March 2013

2,647
763
13
3,423

685
0
0
685

3,332
763
13
4,108

Net book value
Purchased at 31 March 2013
Donated at 31 March 2013
Total at 31 March 2013

1,397
0
1,397

2
0
2

1,399
0
1,399

The implementation cost of the Activity Based Costing (ABC) project completed in 2006/07 was capitalised under SSAP 13 as
Research and Development costs. ABC was been introduced as a result of the implementation of Payments by Results using
the National Tariff.

8.2 Intangible assets 2011/2012

Software
licences
£'000

Development
expenditure
£'000

Total
£'000

Gross cost at 1 April 2011
Additions - purchased
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Gross cost at 31 March 2012

3,351
609
(47)
8
3,921

687
0
0
0
687

4,038
609
(47)
8
4,608

Amortisation at 1 April 2011
Provided during the year
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Amortisation at 31 March 2012

1,882
783
(26)
8
2,647

685
0
0
0
685

2,567
783
(26)
8
3,332

Net book value
Purchased at 31 March 2012
Donated at 31 March 2012
Total at 31 March 2012

1,274
0
1,274

2
0
2

1,276
0
1,276

8.3 Net book value of intangible assets in the revaluation
reserve

Carrying Value at 1 April
Movement in year
Carrying Value at 31 March
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2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000
48
0
48
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9. Property, plant and equipment
9.1 Property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2013 comprise the
following elements:
Buildings
excluding
Land
dwellings
£'000
£'000
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2012
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments charged to revaluation
reserve
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2013
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2012
Provided during the year
Impairments recognised in operating
expenses
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March
2013
Net book value
Owned at 31 March 2013
PFI at 31 March 2013
Donated at 31 March 2013
Total at 31 March 2013

Dwellings
£'000

Assets under
Construction
£'000

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

Furniture
& Fittings
£'000

Total
£'000

52,214
0
0

245,395
1,376
0

2,504
0
0

27,532
16,799
463

46,275
1,647
582

21,280
1,218
15

1,124
72
0

396,324
21,112
1,060

0
0
1,588
0
53,802

(4,766)
28,347
(4,525)
(58)
265,769

0
0
(374)
0
2,130

0
(28,576)
0
0
16,218

0
(6)
827
(2,850)
46,475

0
(70)
0
(5,412)
17,031

0
0
20
(127)
1,089

(4,766)
(305)
(2,464)
(8,447)
402,514

70

4,233
9,439

13
93

0

27,052
3,365

17,544
922

518
106

49,430
13,925

0
0
0
0

9,129
57
(9,585)
(1)

0
0
(99)
0

0
(58)
0

0
(1)
481
(2,434)

0
(11)
0
(5,008)

0
0
9
(127)

9,129
(13)
(9,194)
(7,570)

70

13,272

7

(58)

28,463

13,447

506

55,707

51,540
0
2,192
53,732

164,478
76,497
11,522
252,497

2,038
0
85
2,123

15,813
0
463
16,276

15,722
0
2,290
18,012

3,568
0
16
3,584

548
0
35
583

253,707
76,497
16,603
346,807

Of the totals at 31 March 2013, £nil (31 March 2012: £nil) related to dwellings valued at open market
value.
9.2 Property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2012 comprise the
following elements:
Buildings
excluding
Land
dwellings
£'000
£'000
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2011
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments charged to revaluation
reserve
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2012
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2011
Provided during the year
Impairments recognised in operating
expenses
Reclassifications
Revaluations
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March
2012
Net book value
Owned at 31 March 2012
PFI at 31 March 2012
Donated at 31 March 2012
Total at 31 March 2012

Dwellings
£'000

Assets under
Construction
£'000

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

Furniture
& Fittings
£'000

Total
£'000

50,963
0
0

250,015
160
0

2,668
0
0

19,484
15,650
204

44,078
1,987
488

19,621
1,659
0

1,111
0
0

387,940
19,456
692

0
0
1,251
0
52,214

(5,542)
7,806
(7,044)
0
245,395

(7)
0
(157)
0
2,504

0
(7,806)
0
0
27,532

0
47
530
(855)
46,275

0
0
0
0
21,280

0
0
13
0
1,124

(5,549)
47
(5,407)
(855)
396,324

70

2,283
8,949

0
98

0

24,219
3,293

16,725
819

412
101

43,709
13,260

0
0
0
0

1,474
0
(8,473)
0

100
0
(185)
0

0
0
0

0
26
290
(776)

0
0
0
0

0
0
5
0

1,574
26
(8,363)
(776)

70

4,233

13

0

27,052

17,544

518

49,430

50,044
0
2,100
52,144

154,021
75,679
11,462
241,162

2,406
0
85
2,491

25,529
0
2,003
27,532

17,262
0
1,961
19,223

3,731
0
5
3,736

563
0
43
606

253,556
75,679
17,659
346,894
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9.3 Analysis of property, plant and
equipment

9.3.1 Analysis 31 March 2013
Net book value
Protected assets at 31 March 2013
Unprotected assets at 31 March 2013
Total at 31 March 2013

9.3.2 Analysis 31 March 2012
Net book value
Protected assets at 31 March 2012
Unprotected assets at 31 March 2012
Total at 31 March 2012

Land
£'000
53,732
0
53,732

Land
£'000
52,144
0
52,144

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000
247,602
4,895
252,497
Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000
236,255
4,907
241,162

9.4 Net book value of property, plant and equipment in the
Revaluation Reserve
Buildings
excluding
9.4.1 Net book value as at 31 March 2013
Land
dwellings
£'000
£'000
As at 1 April 2012
Movement in year
As at 31 March 2013

33,767
1,593
35,360

9.4.2 Net book value as at 31 March 2012

Land
£'000

As at 1 April 2011
Movement in year
As at 31 March 2012

31,840
1,927
33,767

Dwellings
£'000
2,123
0
2,123

Dwellings
£'000
2,491
0
2,491

Dwellings
£'000

41,308
(52)
41,256
Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£'000

648
89
737

Dwellings
£'000

43,840
(2,532)
41,308

495
153
648

Assets
under
Construction
£'000

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

Furniture
& Fittings
£'000

16,276
16,276

18,012
18,012

3,584
3,584

583
583

Assets
under
Construction
£'000

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

Furniture
& Fittings
£'000

27,532
27,532

19,223
19,223

3,736
3,736

606
606

Assets
under
Construction
£'000

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

Furniture
& Fittings
£'000

1,424
0
1,424

8,555
(65)
8,490

0
0
0

229
(8)
221

Assets
under
Construction
£'000

Plant &
Machinery
£'000

Information
Technology
£'000

Furniture
& Fittings
£'000

1,389
35
1,424

8,469
86
8,555

0
0
0

263
(34)
229

Total
£'000
303,457
43,350
346,807

Total
£'000
290,890
56,004
346,894

Total
£'000
85,931
1,557
87,488

Total
£'000
86,296
(365)
85,931

10. Investments in associates and joint
ventures
The NHS Foundation Trust's principal subsidiary undertakings, associates and joint ventures as included in the consolidation at 31 March 2013 are set out
below. The accounting date of the financial statements for the subsidiaries is 31 March 2013 and for the associate, 31 December 2012. For the associate
undertaking that has a different accounting year end date, interim accounts to 31 March 2013 have been consolidated.

Subsidiary undertakings
KCH Commercial Services Ltd
KCH Management Ltd *

Country of
Incorporation

Beneficial
Interest

Principal
Activity

UK
UK
UK

100%
100%
100%

Holding Company
Healthcare Services
Other software
consultancy and
supply

UK

33.3%

Healthcare Services

UK
UK

35.0%
54.0%

Agnentis Ltd *
Associates
GSTS Pathology LLP *
Joint operations
The NIHR/Wellcome Trust Clinical Research Facility

Equity proportion
Construction proportion

* Not directly owned by the NHS
Foundation Trust
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10.1 Investment in associate - GSTS
Pathology LLP

31 March
2013
£'000

Carrying Value at 1 April
Share of profit/(loss)
Carrying Value at 31 March

10.2 Amounts relating to associate - GSTS Pathology
LLP
Non current assets
Current assets
Non current liabilities
Current Liabilities
Group share net assets/(liabilities)
Revenue
Expenditure
Group share net loss

78
738
816

31 March
2013
£'000

894
(816)
78

31
March
2012
£'000

4,457
6,977
(4,829)
(7,950)
(1,345)

4,489
5,745
(4,957)
(7,360)
(2,083)

29,638
(28,900)
738

8,966
(9,782)
(816)

As per accounting policy note 1.4, the group accounts for the associate above on an
equity basis.
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10.3 Joint Operations - The NIHR/Wellcome Trust Clinical Research Facility

The Trust has entered into a joint operation with King's College London and South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust
for the construction and use of premises known as the NIHR/Wellcome Trust Clinical Research Facility.
The Trust has capitalised 54% of the cost of the building and equipment assets based on the construction proportion and
recognises 35% of net gains/losses generated by the facility based on the equity proportion, as stipulated in the Collaboration
Agreement.
31 March
2013
£'000

31 March
2012
£'000

Amounts recognised in the Trust's Statement of Financial Position in relation to
the Trust's interest in the joint operation
Non current assets

5,386

0

Amounts recognised in the Trust's Statement of Comprehensive Income in
relation to the Trust's interest in the joint operation
Revenue
Expenditure
Group share net loss

695
(815)
(120)

0
0
0

(42)

0

Trust share of net loss - 35%

11. Inventories

31 March
2013
£'000

31 March
2012
£'000

Drugs
Clinical Consumables

3,566
7,767

3,108
7,855

TOTAL INVENTORIES

11,333

10,963

11.1 Inventories recognised in expenses

Drugs
Clinical Consumables
Inventories recognised in expenses
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2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

74,766
51,671

86,979
27,561

126,437

114,540
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12. Trade receivables and other receivables
31 March 2013
£'000

31 March
2012
£'000

Current trade and other receivables
NHS Receivables - Revenue
Other receivables with related parties - Revenue
Other receivables with related parties - Capital
Provision for impaired receivables
Prepayments
Accrued income
PDC dividend receivable
VAT receivable
Other receivables - Revenue
Other receivables - Capital

12,553
2,487
263
(4,666)
3,258
5,613
253
1,968
23,381
0

11,586
926
112
(2,756)
3,844
8,411
257
2,044
17,199
22

TOTAL CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

45,110

41,645

Non-Current trade and other receivables
Other receivables with related parties - Revenue
Other receivables - Revenue

2,598
1,236

2,596
932

TOTAL NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

3,834

3,528

Non-current other receivables include an amount of £2.598m which relates to a loan to the associate - GSTS Pathology LLP.

12.1 Provision for impairment of receivables

2012/2013
£'000

2011/2012
£'000

2,756
3,416
(352)
(1,154)
4,666

3,302
1,790
(385)
(1,951)
2,756

At 1 April
Increase in provision
Amounts utilised
Unused amounts reversed
At 31 March

12.2 Analysis of impaired receivables

31 March 2013
Trade
Receivables
Other Receivables
£'000
£'000

31 March 2012
Trade
Other
Receivables Receivables
£'000
£'000

Ageing of impaired receivables
Up to three months
In three to six months
Over six months
Total

371
1,008
310
1,689

0
0
2,977
2,977

0
0
555
555

0
0
2,201
2,201

Ageing of non-impaired receivables past their due date
Up to three months
In three to six months
Over six months
Total

3,970
1,598
1,349
6,917

3,968
3,712
11,626
19,306

2,005
1,782
414
4,201

4,948
1,929
8,921
15,798
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13. Trade and other payables
31 March 2013
£'000

31 March 2012
£'000

Current trade and other payables
Receipts in advance
NHS payables - Revenue
Amounts due to other related parties
Other trade payables - Capital
Other trade payables - Revenue
Social Security costs
Other taxes payable
Other payables
Accruals

2,111
4,234
693
2,080
25,901
3,997
4,095
10,961
28,749

1,904
5,287
0
2,372
15,190
3,797
4,142
9,742
23,522

TOTAL CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

82,821

65,956

Non-current trade and other payables

0

0

TOTAL NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

0

0

14. Other liabilities
31 March 2013
£'000

31 March 2012
£'000

Current other liabilities
Deferred Income

5,552

6,181

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

5,552

6,181

Non-current other liabilities

0

0

TOTAL OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

0

0

15. Borrowings
31 March 2013
£'000

31 March 2012
£'000

Current borrowings
Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Other Loans
Obligations under Private Finance Initiative contracts

1,012
123
804

1,011
123
733

TOTAL CURRENT BORROWINGS

1,939

1,867

15,254
95
75,585
90,934

11,866
218
76,388
88,472

Non-current borrowings
Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Other Loans
Obligations under Private Finance Initiative contracts
TOTAL NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS
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16. PFI obligations on Statement of Financial
Position
31 March 2013
£'000
Gross PFI liabilities
of which liabilities are due
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.
Finance charges allocated to future periods
Net PFI liabilities
of which liabilities are due
- not later than one year;
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.

31 March 2012
£'000

206,139

214,384

8,246
32,982
164,911
(129,750)

8,246
32,982
173,156
(137,263)

76,389

77,121

804
4,080
71,505

733
3,718
72,670

76,389

77,121

16.1 Commitments in respect of the service element of the PFI
31 March 2013
£'000
Within one year
2nd to 5th years (inclusive)
Later than five years
Total

31 March 2012
£'000

22,246
96,519
722,504
841,269

21,538
94,955
828,516
945,009

As part of the total scheme, HpC assumed responsibility for the provision of site-wide catering, domestic and portering services from April
2000. These costs were included within the revenue operating expenses of the Trust. The commitments above include an inflationary
increase of 3.28% based on the rate used for 2012/13.
The project enables the centralisation of acute services in new and refurbished buildings on the Denmark Hill site following the transfer of
services from Dulwich Hospital and Mapother House. The construction and provision of site-wide catering, domestic and portering services
will be undertaken by Hpc (King's College Hospital) Plc. The project is being financed by means of a wrapped, index linked bond guaranteed
by MBIA-AMBAC and debt and equity capital provided by Costain, Skanska, Sodexho and Edison Capital. The contract period is 38 years
including the construction phase. Annual payments by the Trust will be dependent on availability and service quality standards being met
by the contract.
Phase 1 of the PFI scheme was the construction and management of a new clinical wing, the 'Golden Jubilee Wing', and this building was
made available to the Trust in September 2002.
Phase II of the PFI scheme was the refurbishment of the existing Ruskin Wing.
31 March
2013
£'000
Net book value of the PFI scheme

31 March 2012
£'000

76,497
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17. Prudential borrowing limit
The NHS Foundation Trust is required to comply and remain within a prudential borrowing limit.
This is made up of two elements:
i the maximum cumulative amount of long-term borrowing that enables the NHS foundation trust to remain within the limit set by
Monitor.
A Tier 1 Limit is set by Monitor for NHS foundation trust based on their annual plans and in accordance with the ratios below. This limit
applies for the whole year, subject only to material changes in the financial position of the NHSFT during the year.
A Tier 2 Limit is available, in appropriate circumstances, to accommodate affordable 'major investments' including PFI schemes. When an
NHS foundation trust is planning a transaction that would exceed its Tier 1 Limit, it is required to submit a request to Monitor for a Tier 2
Limit, which, if approved, will replace the Tier 1 Limit. The Tier 2 limit will be subject to a maximum cap, determined through the ratio
tests used in setting the Tier 1 limit, but with the thresholds shown below.

Actual Ratio 2011/12

Tier 1 PBC
Ratio
Thresholds

Tier 2 Cap
Ratio
Thresholds

3.31

3.02

>1x

>1x

Minimum interest cover

3.33

3.34

>3x

>2x

Minimum debt service cover

2.82

2.83

>2x

>1.5x

1.87%

1.93%

<2.5%

<10%

Actual Ratio
2012/13

Minimum dividend cover

Financial Ratio

Maximum debt service to revenue

ii the amount of any working capital facility approved by Monitor.
The limit on the Working Capital Facility is set annually by Monitor, although variations can be requested within the year by an NHS
foundation trust or proposed by Monitor. The size of the facility will vary according to individual circumstances of each NHS foundation
trust. The Working Capital Facility is available, up to its own limit, for for short-term cash flow management.

31 March
2013
£'000

31 March
2012
£'000

Total long term borrowing limit set by Monitor
Working capital facility agreed by Monitor

141,000
35,000

124,100
35,000

TOTAL PRUDENTIAL BORROWING LIMIT

176,000

159,100

Long term borrowing at 1 April
Net actual borrowing/(repayment) in year long term

90,339

92,114

2,534

(1,775)

Long term borrowing at 31 March

92,873

90,339

Working capital borrowing at 1 April
Net actual borrowing/(repayment) in year working capital

0

0

0

0

Working capital borrowing at 31 March

0

0

Further information on the NHS Foundation Trust Prudential Borrowing Code and Compliance Framework can be found on the website of
Monitor, the Independent Regulator of Foundation Trusts.
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18. Provisions for liabilities and charges

18.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges
2012/2013

Pensions
relating to
other staff
£'000

Legal claims
£'000

Redundancy
£'000

Other
£'000

Total
£'000

At 1 April 2012
Change in the discount rate
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year - accruals
Utilised during the year - cash
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount

6,916
1,167
49
(176)
(531)
0
175

156
0
96
0
(18)
(69)
0

0
0
2,309
0
0
0
0

144
0
79
0
(88)
0
0

7,216
1,167
2,533
(176)
(637)
(69)
175

At 31 March 2013

7,600

165

2,309

135

10,209

707

165

2,309

135

3,316

2,827
4,066

0
0

0
0

0
0

2,827
4,066

7,600
Pensions
relating to
other staff
£'000

165

2,309

135

10,209

Expected timing of cashflows:
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five
years
later than five years
Total

18.2 Provisions for liabilities and charges
2011/2012

Legal claims
£'000

Redundancy
£'000

Total
£'000

Other
£'000

At 1 April 2011
Arising during the year
Utilised during the year - accruals
Utilised during the year - cash
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount

7,511
41
(170)
(512)
(142)
188

154
101
0
(61)
(38)
0

1,164
0
0
(1,164)
0
0

191
144
0
(191)
0
0

9,020
286
(170)
(1,928)
(180)
188

At 31 March 2012

6,916

156

0

144

7,216

Expected timing of cashflows:
not later than one year
later than one year and not later than five
years
later than five years

684

156

0

144

984

2,736
3,496

0
0

0
0

0
0

2,736
3,496

Total

6,916

156

0

144

7,216

Clinical Negligence
£80,880,950 (31 March 2012 : £84,060,545) is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority at 31 March 2013 in respect of clinical negligence
liabilities of the trust. The NHS Litigation Authority is carrying provisions with a value of £73,794 (31 March 2012 : £117,501) in relation to ELS and £80,807,156
(31 March 2012 : £83,943,044) in relation to CNST for King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. The ELS (Existing Liabilities Scheme) was superceded by
the CNST (Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts).
Pensions
The measure of the Trust's pension liability for early retired staff was recalculated in 2012/13. Expected future cash flows have been discounted using the real
discount rate of 2.2%, published by HM Treasury for the financial year, to determine the full liability.
Legal Claims
The provision is based upon information provided by the NHS Litigation Authority and refers to non-clinical claims against the Trust (e.g. Public and Employers
Liability cases)
Other
The Foundation Trust has provided £135k (31 March 2012 : £66k) for outstanding Employment Tribunal cases and associated legal fees.
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19. Revaluation reserve

Revaluation
Reserve intangibles

Revaluation
Reserve property,
plant and
equipment
£'000

£'000
Revaluation reserve at 1 April
Impairments
Revaluations
Asset disposals
Revaluation reserve at 31 March

31 March
2013
Total
Revaluation
Reserve

31 March
2012
Total
Revaluation
Reserve

£'000

£'000

48

85,931

85,979

88,748

0
0
0

(4,766)
6,730
(407)

(4,766)
6,730
(407)

(5,549)
2,956
(176)

48

87,488

87,536

85,979

20. Cash and cash equivalents
31 March
2013
£'000

31 March
2012
£'000

At 1 April
Net change in year

27,607
12,895

22,696
4,911

At 31 March

40,502

27,607

20,278
20,224

6,008
21,599

40,502

27,607

Broken down into:
Cash at commercial banks and in hand
Cash with the Government Banking Service
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
21. Contractual capital commitments

Commitments under capital expenditure contracts at 31 March 2013 were £2.245m (31 March 2012: £8.565m).
These contracts include the Critical Care Unit Enabling Works (£1.170m), the Endoscopy department (£294k), Corridor Refurbishments
(£214k), AAU Move (£206k), Liver Labs (£162k), Unit 6 Coldharbour Lane (£63k), the Emergency Department (£45k), Unit 4 Coldharbour
Lane (£34k) and other projects totalling £55k.
It is anticipated that all these projects will be completed in the next financial year.
22. Events after the reporting period
There are no post Statement of Financial Position events having a material effect on the accounts. (31 March 2012: there were no post
Statement of Financial Position events having a material effect on the accounts.)
23. Contingent (liabilities) / assets
31 March
2013
£'000

31 March
2012
£'000

Contingent liabilities
Amounts recoverable against contingent liabilities

(99)
0

(70)
0

Net value of contingent liabilities

(99)

(70)

The above contingencies refer to non-clinical legal claims, dealt with by the NHS Litigation Authority on behalf of the Trust.
In common with many other Trusts, it is possible that other claims could arise in the future due to incidents which have already occurred. The future
expenditure which may arise from such incidents cannot be determined until such time as a claim is formally made.
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24. Related party
transactions
King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a body corporate established by order of the Secretary of State for Health.

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year King's College Hospital NHS Trust has had a significant number of
material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.

The main local commissioners are Lambeth PCT, Southwark PCT and Lewisham PCT. Additionally the Trust has transacted with a large number of
other PCTs and NHS Trusts as well as the NHS Litigation Authority and NHS Business Services Authority (including NHS Supply Chain). The Trust has
also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds, principally the King's College Hospital Charitable Trust.

Value of transactions/balances (other than salary) with related parties
in 2012/13
Department of Health
Guys And St Thomas NHS Foundation Trust
Medway NHS Foundation Trust
South London And Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust
East Kent Hospitals University NHS Foundation Trust
South London Healthcare NHS Trust
The Lewisham Healthcare NHS Trust
London Strategic Health Authority
Bexley NHS Care Trust PCT
Bromley PCT
Croydon PCT
Eastern And Coastal Kent PCT
Greenwich Teaching PCT
Lambeth PCT
Lewisham PCT
Medway PCT
Southwark PCT
Wandsworth PCT
West Kent PCT
West Sussex PCT
NHS Litigation Authority
NHS Blood and Transplant (excluding Bio Products Laboratory)
NHS Business Services Authority
Other NHS Bodies
HM Revenue & Customs
Charitable Funds
GSTS Pathology LLP Associate

Income
£'000
1,786
4,054
818
1,756
250
803
1,135
82,058
15,079
31,743
84,920
21,062
16,784
101,114
44,302
7,534
126,484
5,856
31,447
12,310
0
1,333
1,514
51,102
0
1,164
19,492

Expenditure
£'000
13,656
5,273
132
1,076
205
89
2,099
0
0
4
25
0
0
0
6
0
218
0
0
0
10,022
5,943
0
2,257
49
0
35,254

Receivables
£'000
347
980
416
1,016
51
244
157
1,252
0
0
482
304
1,047
1,043
465
122
1,407
161
614
928
0
57
0
4,341
1,968
693
2,057

Payables
£'000
0
4,901
44
396
30
189
531
735
484
45
360
0
262
140
20
2
407
371
0
0
8
423
0
1,857
4,095
0
693

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other Government Departments and other central and local Government
bodies. There were also many transactions with King's College London in respect of education, training and research and development.

During the year none of the Board Members, the Foundation Trust's Governers, members of the key management staff or parties related to them
has undertaken any material transactions with King's College Hospital NHS Trust.
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25. Financial instruments
IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in
undertaking its activities. The Trust does not have any complex financial instruments and does not hold or issue financial instruments for
speculative trading purposes. Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the NHS Foundation Trust has with Primary Care
Trusts and the way those Primary Care Trusts are financed, the NHS Foundation Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.
Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which these standards
mainly apply. The NHS Foundation Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by
day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS Foundation Trust in undertaking its activities.
The Foundation Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within
the Foundation Trust’s Standing Financial Instructions and policies agreed by the Board of Directors. Foundation Trust treasury activity is subject to
review by the Trust’s internal auditors.
Liquidity risk
The Foundation Trust’s net operating costs are incurred under annual service agreements with Primary Care Trusts, which are financed from resources
voted annually by Parliament. The Foundation Trust also largely finances its capital expenditure from funds made available from Government under an
agreed borrowing limit. King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
Interest-rate risk
48% of the Foundation Trust's financial assets and 100% of its financial liabilities carry nil or fixed rates of interest. King's College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant interest-rate risk. The two tables below show the interest rate profiles of the Foundation Trust's financial
assets and liabilities.
Currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and Sterling based.
The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
Credit risk
Because the majority of the Trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk.
The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2013 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the Trade receivables and other receivables note (Note 12).

25.1 Financial assets
Fixed rate

Currency

Total
£'000

Floating
rate
£'000

Fixed rate
£'000

Noninterest
bearing
£'000

Weighted
average
interest
rate
%

Weighted
average
period for
which
fixed
Years

Noninterest
bearing
weighted
average
term
Years

At 31 March 2013
Sterling
Gross financial assets

77,236
77,236

40,502
40,502

0
0

36,734
36,734

0.3%

unlimited

0

At 31 March 2012
Sterling
Gross financial assets

60,764
60,764

27,607
27,607

0
0

33,157
33,157

0.3%

unlimited

0

25.2 Financial liabilities
Fixed rate

Currency

Total
£'000

Floating
rate
£'000

Fixed rate
£'000

Noninterest
bearing
£'000

Weighted
average
interest
rate
%

Weighted
average
period for
which
fixed
Years

Noninterest
bearing
weighted
average
term
Years

At 31 March 2013
Sterling
Gross financial liabilities

176,444
176,444

0
0

102,863
102,863

73,581
73,581

9.6%

unlimited

0

At 31 March 2012
Sterling
Gross financial liabilities

153,667
153,667

0
0

97,213
97,213

56,454
56,454

10.2%

unlimited

0
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25.3 Foreign currency risk
The Trust has no/negligible foreign currency income or expenditure.
25.4 Financial instruments by category
31 March
2013
£'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)

Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities

31 March
2012
£'000

77,236

60,764

77,236

60,764

176,444

153,667

176,444

153,667

31 March
2013
£'000
78,618
2,679
13,780
81,367

31 March
2012
£'000
58,963
2,718
8,001
83,985

176,444

153,667

25.5 Maturity of financial liabilities

In one year or less
In more than one year but not more than two years
In more than two years but not more than five years
In more than five years

25.6 Fair values of financial instruments at 31 March 2013
Book Value
£'000
2,598

Fair value
£'000
2,598

2,598

2,598

Financial Liabilities
Non current trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Provisions under contract
Loans
Other

0
6,893
15,349
75,584

0
6,893
15,349
75,584

Total

97,826

97,826

Financial assets
Non current trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets
Total

Basis of fair
valuation

Note a

Notes
a. Fair value is not significantly different from book value since, in the calculation of book value, the expected cash flows have been discounted by
the Treasury discount rate of 2.2% in real terms.

26. Third party assets
The Trust held £13,687 cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2013 (£43,544 at 31 March 2012) which relates to monies held by the NHS Trust on
behalf of patients. This has been excluded from cash at bank and in hand figure reported in the accounts.
2012/2013
Bank
Money on
Balances
Deposit
£'000
£'000
At 1 April
Gross inflows
Gross Outflows
At 31 March

2011/2012
Money on
Bank Balances
Deposit
£'000
£'000

44
53
(83)

0
0
0

15
75
(46)

0
0
0

14

0

44

0

27. Losses and special payments
There were 465 cases of losses and special payments (369 cases in 2011/12) totalling £1,328,065 (£542,525 in 2011/12) paid during the year
ending 31 March 2013. These amounts are reported on an accruals basis but exclude provisions for future losses.
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King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Report to the audit committee on the financial
statement audit for the year ended 31 March
2013

21 May 2013

Deloitte LLP
3 Victoria Square
Victoria Street
St Albans
Hertfordshire
AL1 3TF

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Denmark Hill
London
SE5 9RS

21 May 2013

Dear Members of the Audit Committee
We have pleasure in setting out in this document our report to the audit committee of King’s College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2013, for discussion at the meeting scheduled for 28 May 2013. This
report covers the principal matters that have arisen from our audit for the year ended 31 March 2013.
In summary:


The significant audit risks, which are summarised in the Executive Summary, have now been largely
addressed and our conclusions are set out in our report.



There are a number of judgemental areas to which we draw your attention in our report which you should
consider carefully.



At the time of issue, our work is continuing on your annual report and some aspects of underlying financial
statement audit work; review of the final draft of the accounts and FTCs and certain other procedures specified
by the National Audit Office. We will be able to complete our work once we have a finalised draft of the
accounts; and following completion of our internal review procedures.



In the absence of unforeseen difficulties, management and we expect to meet the agreed audit and financial
reporting timetable.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the management team for their assistance and co-operation during
the course of our audit work.
Yours sincerely,

Craig Wisdom
Audit Partner
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Executive summary
Status

Description

Detail

Completion of the audit
Our audit is largely
complete

The status of the audit is as expected at this stage of the timetable
agreed in our audit plan.
The following are the remaining areas we are required to complete
to finalise the audit:


completion of our review of the finalised draft of the annual
report, in particular the quality report, the performance report,
the governance report and the remuneration report;



completion of our review of the finalised draft of the financial
statements;



completion of our review of management’s going concern
assumption including the review of forecasts to 30 June 2014;



testing of your FTCs and review for consistency with the
accounts;



completion of certain procedures specified by the National Audit
Office which we will complete once we have a finalised draft of
the accounts;



completion of internal quality assurance procedures;



finalisation of our review of events since 31 March 2013; and



receipt of signed management representation letter.

We will update you orally in the audit committee meeting on 28 May
2013 on the completion of our audit work.
Overall view
We anticipate issuing an
unmodified financial
statement audit opinion

On satisfactory completion of the outstanding matters, we anticipate
issuing an unmodified audit opinion on the truth and fairness of the
financial statements.
Our work relating to the FTCs is currently progressing and we will
provide an oral update on this at the meeting on 28 May 2013. In
line with last year. we will only identify the total NHS bad debt
provision not included in the matching exercise but will not identify
with which counterparty the provisions relate to.
The matters that we have taken into account in forming our overall
view are described in the following sections.

We do not anticipate
reporting any VfM or
AGS issues

As part of our audit we have undertaken interviews and reviewed
supporting evidence enabling us to form a conclusion on the Trust’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
the use of resources (“Value for Money”, “VfM”), and the
completeness of the disclosures in the Annual Governance
Statement (“AGS”).

Section 2

We have completed our work in this area and do not anticipate
reporting any matters within our audit report in respect of the Trust’s
overall VfM arrangements or the Annual Governance Statement.
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Executive summary (continued)
Status

Description

Detail

We anticipate issuing an unmodified limited assurance report on the
two publicly reported indicators and the content and consistency of
the Quality report.

Separate
paper

Overall view (continued)
The findings from our
work on the Quality
Report are set out in the
accompanying paper

Our findings from our testing, including the newly tested “incidents
resulting in severe harm or death” indicator, are set out in an
accompanying paper, which we will issue to the Council of
Governors.

Significant audit risks
We have concluded on
our testing of significant
audit risks

Status
Our findings on Significant audit risks are as follows:

Section 1



Recognition of NHS revenue: We concluded that
the NHS revenue recognised by the Trust was not
materially misstated.

G



Provision for impairment of NHS receivables:
We do not consider management’s estimate
regarding the provision for NHS receivables to be
materially misstated.

G



Valuation of property: We consider the process
and assumptions undertaken by management to
be reasonable. We identified two adjustments in
respect of the valuation of property as detailed in
Appendix 1 which, if adjusted, would cause a
£1.0m increase in the total deficit for the year. The
Trust has concluded that it will not adjust for either
of these items as it does not consider them to be
material.



Capitalisation of expenditure on properties: No
issues were identified from our testing.



Accounting for the Clinical Research Facility
(“CRF”): We consider that the accounting
treatment of the CRF as a joint operation under
IAS 31 is not materially misstated. However, rather
than recognise the Trust’s share of income and
expenditure in respect of CRF (the Trust owns
35%), in the Trust’s accounts, the Trust is
recognising the full amount. An adjustment to
correct this would reduce the Trust’s income and
expenditure by £0.4m and £0.5m respectively. The
Trust has concluded that it will not record this
adjustment as it does not consider it to be material.



Management override of controls: No issues
were noted from our procedures performed.

A

G
A

G

The findings of our work on other issues we consider
should be reported to the audit committee are set out
in Section 3.

G

Risk appropriately addressed

A

Risk satisfactorily addressed but
with unadjusted errors identified

R

Material unresolved matter
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Executive summary (continued)
Status

Description

Detail

Our observations on the “front half” of your annual report
We have suggested
some changes to the
Annual Report which
have been amended for
by management.

We have reviewed the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
to test whether it meets the disclosure requirements of the
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (FT ARM).
We
suggested some changes to the AGS which have been amended
by management.

Section 4

We are in the process of reviewing your draft annual report,
including the remuneration report, the performance report and
governance report. We will provide an oral update at the Audit
Committee meeting on 28 May 2013 on any findings following the
conclusion of our review.
Accounting and internal control systems
We have not identified
any significant
deficiencies in the
financial reporting
systems

Our audit findings did not identify any significant deficiencies in the
financial reporting systems.

Section 5

Section 5 sets out the accounting and control observations arising
from our audit procedures.

Account balance and disclosure misstatements
Uncorrected
misstatements would
increase the deficit by
£0.3m

Audit materiality was £5.3m (2011/12 £5.0m) as set out in our audit
plan.

Appendix 1

Uncorrected misstatements identified to date would increase the
deficit by £1.2m (the unadjusted items in 2011/12 would have
increased the surplus by £1.5m) and decrease net assets by £0.2m
(2011/12 increase net assets by £1.5m).
Management has concluded that the total impact of the uncorrected
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate, is not material in
the context of the financial statements taken as a whole. The
definitive summary of uncorrected misstatements will be attached to
the representation letter obtained from the Board of Directors.
Significant disclosure misstatements are also highlighted in
Appendix 1.

Significant representations
A copy of the representation letter to be signed by the Accounting
Officer has been included in Appendix 3.

Appendix 3
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1. Significant audit risks
Understanding the subjective judgements and estimates
The table below shows, on a range of acceptable outcomes from less prudent to more prudent, where
management’s key assumptions and valuations relating to significant estimates lie.
Acceptable range

Revenue
recognition












 











Less prudent















 














More prudent

Provisions for
impaired
receivables



We concluded that the Trust’s
estimate in respect of PCT
income is not materially
misstated. The reason for the
change in the provision is due
to there being a change in
policy whereby amounts owing
from PCTs for more than 30
days are fully provided. .

The Trust changed its
policy in the current year to
reflect the heightened risk
around PCT’s changing to
CCG’s. This resulted in a
change in the provision
policy whereby amounts
owing from PCTs for more
than 30 days are fully
provided for. We concluded
that the Trust’s provision is
reasonable.

Property valuation




























We concluded that the
underlying valuation
assumptions used by the
District Valuer are reasonable.
There are unadjusted
misstatements identified in
relation to property valuation,
however, none of the
misstatements arose from
errors in the underlying
assumptions and estimates
used by management.

Current year position 
Prior year position 
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1. Significant audit risks (continued)
The results of our audit work on significant audit risks are set out below:
Key:

G

Risk appropriately
addressed

Risk satisfactorily addressed but
with unadjusted errors identified

A

R

Material unresolved matter

Recognition of NHS revenue
Status – G
We consider the NHS
revenue recognised by
the Trust and its
provision for the
impairment of
receivables to be
reasonable

We identified recognition of NHS revenue as a key risk due to:

Deloitte response

As part of our substantive procedures we considered the extent to which the Trust’s
year end income estimates reflect the actual level of activity in 2012/13. The Trust’s
estimates are based on provisional and projected data for the latter months of the
year and therefore a variance to actual activity level is expected.



the judgemental nature in determining the level of overperformance revenue to
recognise, especially quarter 4 revenue, which is based on forecast; and



the risk of revenue not being recognised at fair value due to adjustments agreed
in settling current year disputes and agreement of future year contracts.

We obtained the most recent activity report prepared by the Trust’s information team
which indicated that the Trust had overestimated income by £0.1m. Management
plan to recognise this adjustment within 2013/14 income. The Trust recognised an
amount of £0.9m of income in 2012/13 in respect of 2011/12 activity for the same
reason. The Trust has not adjusted for these items in the financial statements as it
does not consider them to be material.
We have agreed baseline contract income to underlying contracts, and a sample of
significant year end income balances to activity data. No differences were identified
between the values per contracts and the amount recognised by The Trust.
We have tested the year end calculations for CQUIN income. We note that the Trust
recognised CQUIN income of £11.2m (2011/12 £6.4m) representing 100% (2011/12
100%) of the contracted award value. We consider this to be reasonable as the
majority of CQUIN income has been invoiced and paid.
We have tested the recoverability of overperformance income through the year, and
noted a 96% recovery rate through to Q4. At year end, £1.2m remains outstanding
with any amounts having been invoiced greater than 30 days prior to year end being
fully provided for.
We concluded that NHS revenue recognised by the Trust was not materially
misstated.
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1. Significant audit risks (continued)
Provision for the impairment of NHS receivables
Status –

G

We consider the
provision for impaired
NHS receivables at year
end to be reasonable

We identified the provision for the impairment of NHS receivables as a significant risk
as NHS receivables is a material balance and the provision is a significant estimate
based on management judgements and assumptions.
The table below summarises the Trust’s gross and net receivables recognised:
Gross NHS
Provisions as at 31 Net NHS receivables
receivables
March
£’000
£’000
£’000
[1]
12,553
11,586

2012/13
2011/12

[2]
1,687
555

[1] – [2]
10,866
11,031

The graph below shows the changes in the Trust’s NHS receivables and provision
over the last 3 years.
NHS receivables
20

16%

18

14%

16

12%

£m

14
12

10%

10

8%

8

6%

6

4%

4

2%

2
-

2011
Net NHS receivables

2012

2013

Provision for NHS debtors

0%

NHS % provision

Source: Management information

The level of provisions increased in 2012/13 as management has concluded that
there is a greater risk associated with the recoverability of NHS debts due from PCTs
in the current NHS environment and the with the change from PCTs to Clinical
Commissioning Groups (“CCGs”). This resulted in a change in the provision policy
whereby amounts owing from PCTs for more than 30 days are fully provided for.
Deloitte response

We have tested the appropriateness of the provisions in the following ways:






We developed an understanding of management’s approach for calculating the
provisions and tested the design and implementation of controls in place.
We recalculated the provision to consider whether the Trust’s agreed approach is
put into practice.
We considered the completeness of the provision with reference to the Trust’s
agreement of balance exercise which sets out any significant disputes with PCTs,
assessed subsequent cash recovery of debtors post year end and reviewed post
year end credit notes issued for any indication of irrecoverable debt.
We challenged management’s assumptions supporting the general provision for
the impairment of receivables by comparing to the recovery of 2011/12 debtors in
2012/13.
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1. Significant audit risks (continued)
Provision for the impairment of NHS receivables (continued)
Deloitte response



We have benchmarked the total bad debt provision as a % of total debts and also
considered how gross NHS debtor days compare to other trusts we audit.
Acute Trusts
King’s College Hospital
Average of trusts
First quartile of trusts
Fourth quartile of trusts

Gross NHS debtor days
2012-13
2011-12
8.0
8.0
10.1
10.8
6.5
7.7
11.9
16.2

We note that the Trust falls under the third quartile but nevertheless, is
performing above average.
Acute Trusts

King’s College Hospital
Average of trusts
First quartile of trusts
Fourth quartile of trusts

Bad debt provision as % debts
2012-13
2011-12

9.7
17.2
17.1
8.2

6.6
19.1
16.2
6.6

We note the provision change is due the change in policy whereby amounts
owing from PCTs for more than 30 days are fully provided for.


Based on our audit procedures performed, we concluded that the Trust’s
estimate of its provision for the impairment of receivables is not materially
misstated. We consider the Trusts level of provision to be reasonable taking into
account the specific circumstances at year end relating to the replacement of
PCTs with CCGs.



Based on our audit procedures performed, we concluded that the Trust’s
estimate of its provision for the impairment of receivables is not materially
misstated.
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1. Significant audit risks (continued)
Valuation of property assets
Status - A
We consider the Trust’s
valuation of its estate to
be reasonable

The Trust undertook a revaluation of its estate for the year ended 31 March 2013 to
ensure that the assets were held at fair value in line with the accounting
requirements. We identified a risk in relation to this revaluation because:


with changes in the economic environment and property markets, the assets
being valued can be subject to material changes in value and there is a risk that
these changes are not appropriately recorded in the financial statements; and



valuations are by nature significant estimates which are based on specialist and
management assumptions.

The effects of the revaluation at 31 March 2013 are shown in the table below:
Land

Revaluation losses to revaluation reserve
Revaluation gains to revaluation reserve
Impairments recognised in the SoCI

Deloitte response

Buildings

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

1,588
-

4,766
4,782
9,129

4,766
6,370
9,129

We engaged our property specialists Deloitte Real Estate (DRE) to review the
assumptions and methodology used to value the estate. We have used DRE’s
findings to challenge management’s assumptions and concluded that we consider the
methodologies and key inputs to be reasonable.
Testing on inputs was undertaken through obtaining an understanding of the
information flows between the Trust and the Valuer, and then performing detailed
testing on that information. For a sample of land and buildings, testing was
undertaken to compare internal area per Trust records with those used by the Valuer.
No significant variances were identified.
We have tracked the effect of the property valuation through the accounts and
recalculated the expected impact on the revaluation reserve, statement of
comprehensive income, and the statement of financial position and related notes.
Through this testing, and as noted in prior year, we identified that the Trust had not
included an amount in respect of the valuation of leasehold improvements on
property held by the Trust under operating lease. IAS 16 requires that all assets
within an asset class are revalued and for this reason we proposed that the valuation
movement on these assets be reflected in the financial statements. The net impact of
the adjustment would be to decrease the Trust’s deficit by £246k (further details are
provided in Appendix 1).
We also identified an adjustment relating to valuations and depreciation whereby an
amount of £0.7m was included as part of the pre-revaluation net book value of the
Ruskin Wing. This amount represents depreciation which should have been deducted
in arriving at the pre-revaluation net book value. This therefore means that both
depreciation for the year and the subsequent revaluation gain are understated. The
impact of the understated depreciation would be to increase the Trust’s deficit for the
year by £0.7m. However, the net impact to the total comprehensive expense for the
year would be nil. These adjustments were not posted by management because they
consider the amounts to be immaterial.
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1. Significant audit risks (continued)
Capitalisation of expenditure on properties
Status - G
We did not identify any
issues with the
classification of revenue
and capital expenditure

The Trust continues to make improvements to its estate with £22.2m spent on asset
additions and assets in the course of construction in the year. The volume of these
transactions gives rise to the risk of misclassification of expenditure related to the
project as either capital or revenue.

Deloitte response

We sought to understand the key controls management has in place to ensure capital
and revenue expenditure is classified correctly and performed testing on the
implementation of these controls.
We performed detailed testing on fixed asset additions in 2012/13 and confirmed
expenditure was capital in nature through physical verification and agreeing to
supporting documentation such as invoices or contracts. We performed a review of
the repairs and maintenance accounts and noted that the total was not material and
did not identify any items which appeared to be capital in nature. We also performed
detailed testing on operating expenditure by agreeing amounts recorded in the ledger
to supporting documentation to verify that these transactions were relating to 2012/13
and were revenue and not capital in nature.
No issues were identified from our testing.
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1. Significant audit risks (continued)
Accounting for the Clinical Research Facility (CRF)
Status -

A

We concur with
management’s
assessment under IAS
31

The Trust entered into a Collaboration Agreement (“the agreement”) with King’s
College London (“KCL”) and South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust
(“SLAM”) to undertake a significant capital project to develop a new Clinical Research
Facility (“CRF”). The facility was completed in 2012/13 and involves funding from all
three parties. Given the complexity of the arrangement there is a risk in relation to the
appropriateness of the accounting treatment adopted by the Trust.
The Trust has concluded that the arrangement represents a joint operation under IAS
31.

Deloitte response

We concur with management’s assessment that the CRF should be accounted for as
a joint operation.
A joint operator (the Trust) should recognise its share of the joint assets, agreed
share of any liabilities, output, revenue and expenses in its financial statements in
respect of the joint operation in accordance with the contractual arrangement.
During the year, the Trust transferred its 54% share of the CRF tangible fixed assets
of £9.6m from asset held under construction to buildings as the build was complete.
This was subsequently revalued by the District Valuer at year end giving rise to the
Trust’s share of an impairment loss of £5.5m. The Trust’s share of the net book value
of the building at year end was therefore £4.1m.
The total CRF income and expenses for the year amounted to £0.7m and £0.8m
respectively giving rise to a net deficit for the year of £0.1m. The total of these
balances has been recorded in the Trusts ledgers due to it processing all transactions
for the year relating to the CRF. In accounting for a Joint Operation under IAS 31, the
Trust should only recognise its share of the CRF income and expense in line with the
terms of the contractual arrangement. We note that the Trust did not re-charge the
portion of income and expenses attributable to King’s College London (“KCL”) and
South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (“SLAM”) based on their equity
proportions of 47% and 18% respectively. This results in an overstatement of income
of £0.4m and expenses of £0.5m in the trust’s financial statements. This adjustment
was not posted by management because they do not consider the amount to be
material.
We have reviewed the Collaboration Agreement and are satisfied, other than the
matters set out above, that management has accounted for its share of the CRF
appropriately and accordance with the contractual arrangement.
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1. Significant audit risks (continued)
Management override of controls
Status - G
We tested the risk of
management override of
controls and concluded
satisfactorily

Deloitte response

International Standards on Auditing require us to presume a significant risk in relation
to management override of key controls.
Our audit work is designed to test management override of controls and key
estimates. We have discussed separately above the work we have performed in
relation to the significant risks identified for specific accounting estimates for
provisions for doubtful debts and asset valuations.
Journals


We have reviewed the Trust’s total population of journal entries for the year to 31
March 2013 and selected a sample of journals with characteristics that may be
indicative of a higher risk of fraud (for example, journals posted on a weekend,
round number journals, duplicate journals etc.).



Our work focussed on the testing of journal entries made throughout the year and
checking that entries had been properly authorised and reviewed, but also that
they made clear business sense.



Our testing did not indicate any instances of management override of controls.

Accounting estimates
Key areas of accounting estimates have been identified as significant risks and are
discussed separately above, including:


revenue recognition and provision for impairment of NHS receivables, including
consideration of recoverability of overperformance income from PCTs; and



valuation of fixed assets.

We did not identify any evidence of bias from management in preparing these
estimates.
Significant transactions
We did not identify any significant transactions outside the normal course of business
or transactions where the business rationale was not clear.
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2. Value for Money conclusion
Background
We are required to consider whether the Trust has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Monitor’s Audit Code advises that auditors should take account of:


the statement made by the Accounting Officer of the NHS foundation trust as part of the Annual Governance
Statement; and



the results of work of relevant regulatory bodies, including the Care Quality Commission and Monitor.

The Trust’s arrangements to secure Value for Money – Key Indicators
Status - G
We have not
identified any
issues which
we need to
report in our
audit report in
respect of the
Trust’s
arrangements
for securing
the economy,
efficiency and
effectiveness
of its use of
resources

The tables below illustrates how the Trust’s performance compares to plan, prior year and to
national averages for the first nine months of the year:
National data taken from the Q3 Monitor review of trust performance.

Current year
(Deficit)/ Surplus
EBITDA margin

Variance

Prior year

(£5.9m)
5.1%

(£6.0m)
5.6%

(1.9%)
-6.1%

£2.1m
5.8%

£2.5m
6.0%

3

3

-

3

Acute Mean:3.0

Monitor financial
risk rating
Monitor
governance risk
rating

Planned

National
average
(Q3 data)







Green

Amber-Red

Amber-Red

Mode: 

The Trust planned for a governance rating of ‘amber-red’ in quarter 1 and this was confirmed by
Monitor. However, this was followed by consecutive ‘green’ ratings in quarters 2 and 3, which
represented an improvement from 2011/12. Due to the extreme pressure on the Trust and
across south east London in quarter 4 and the subsequent failure of the Trust to meet the
emergency care target, the quarter 4 rating was ‘amber-red’.
The table below shows how the Trust’s CIP delivery and programme compares to our other
Foundation Trust clients.

Sector average
%/£m
CIP - plan
CIP - actual
Actual CIPs as % of plan
Planned CIPs as a percentage
of operating expenses

Trust
2012/13
£39.7m
£32.1m
81%

All trusts
2012/13
£13.0m
£11.4m
88%

Acute
Trusts
2012/13
£15.5m
£13.5m
87%

Trust
2011/12
£38.5m
£33.5m
87%

3.3%

3.9%

3.8%

6.5%
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2. Value for Money conclusion
(continued)
The Trust’s arrangements to secure Value for Money – Key Indicators (continued)

Achieved CIPs and revenue generation plans as % of plan - 2012/13

120%

Trust

Acute

Specialist

Mental Health

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
-

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33

Source: Q4 Monitor submissions

We have benchmarked the achieved CIP and revenue generation plans as a % of plan to other trusts
we audit. The Trust’s level of achieved CIP was below average as presented in the table above.
For the year 2012/13, the target CIP was £39.7m. The trust achieved 81% of the target for the year
with £32.1m savings being achieved. The primary reasons the target was not met were:

Deloitte
response



fall in anticipated referral to treatment income of £1.6m, most notably in Bariatrics;



fall in anticipated private patient income of £1.1m, due to low value work being complete; and



shortfall of £0.8m based on productivity targets, for example, reduced patient length of stay.

We have obtained an understanding of the Trust’s arrangements for securing “value for money”,
through a combination of:


review of the Trust’s draft annual governance statement;



interview of key individuals;



inspection of key documentation;



consideration of issues identified through our other audit and assurance work;



consideration of the Trust’s results, including the level of achieved surplus and CIP for 2012/13
and the forecasts and identified savings for 2013/14, as summarised above;



review of the most recent Care Quality Commission’s reports on the Trust; and



review of Monitor’s financial and governance risk rating.

We have not identified any issues which we need to report in our audit opinion in respect of the Trust’s
arrangements for securing the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources.
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3. Other issues
Significant transactions
The significant transactions
of the Trust include the
leasing of new modular
buildings, the potential
acquisition of Princess
Royal University Hospital as
well as the potential future
KHP merger

Modular building lease
In order for it to meets its short term capacity needs and referral to treatment
quality indicator, the Trust took on a lease of a number of modular build units.
These are leased under an operating lease; however the units have a material
fair value. The lease agreement was signed shortly before year end but delivery
of such units began in early April 2013.
The Trust prepared an accounting paper setting out its proposed treatment of
these leases and asked that we provide an accounting opinion in respect of its
proposed treatment. We completed our review and provided the Trust with a
letter setting out our accounting opinion on 6 November 2012.
South London Healthcare
Following South London Healthcare NHS Trust being taken into administration,
there are a number of potential impacts on the Trust going forward that we have
considered.
In particular, we understand that the Trust is in negotiation to enter into a
significant transaction with Princess Royal University Hospital (“PRUH”). We
have reviewed the progress of this transaction and the arrangements the Trust
has put in place. At the date of this report, the Trust is still in negotiations with
the Department of Health (“DoH”) to agree the level of funding that should be
provided by DoH to cover the costs and liabilities to be taken over from PRUH. If
negotiations are successful, the takeover of PRUH by the Trust is due by 1
October 2013.
We also note that the A&E unit at Lewisham Hospital is not closed at the date of
this report. However, once the A&E unit is closed, the Trust foresees that there
will be an increase in emergency activity at the Trust and we will obtain an
understanding of the potential impact on the Trust and remain alert to the impact
this might have on our audit.
King’s Health Partners (KHP)
We understand that the challenges and opportunities the Trust currently faces,
particularly with respect to South London Healthcare, may impact on the plans
and timing of a future KHP merger. However, this remains a very significant
potential future opportunity for the Trust, and as the Trust develops its plans in
this area, we will continue to review and monitor the developments of KHP and
assess any impact on our audit.
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4. Our observations on the “front half” of
your annual report
We are required to read the “front half” of your annual report to consider consistency with the financial statements
and any apparent misstatements. Here we summarise our observations on disclosures in a number of key areas
for high quality reporting:
Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
The Governance Statement should
give the reader a clear understanding
of the dynamics of the organisation
and its control structure, recording the
stewardship of the organisation,
providing a sense of how vulnerable
the organisation’s performance is or
might be; and of how successfully the
organisation has coped with the
challenges it faces

We reviewed the AGS and compared it against the requirements of
Monitor’s ARM 2012/13 to gain assurance over the completeness of the
disclosure requirements in the AGS.
The AGS gives a balanced view of the Trust and the challenges that it
faces encompassing the system of internal controls and the risk and
control framework, the key elements of the quality governance
arrangements and information governance risk.
Finally, the statement discloses that there are no significant internal
control deficiencies based on internal audit’s assessment.

Risk disclosures
“Boards who retreat behind
boilerplate give the impression that
they have not themselves understood
the risks they face.”
Bill Knight, FRRP Chairman, February
2011

The Directors’ Report presents a section on ‘Trading environment and
financial risks’. This section outlines the strategic and major operational
risks inherent in the business such as the demands on the Trust’s facilities
as a result of the increased number of patients referred to the hospital and
financial risks as a result of the continued economic downturn. The risks
described were clearly supported by sufficient information for the reader to
understand the potential impact of the risk on the Trust. Additionally, the
report also provided explanations of the mitigating activities for each
specific risk identified.

Going concern
“The purpose of the going concern
assessment and disclosures should
be to provide information to
stakeholders about these matters and
they should be designed to encourage
appropriate business behaviours.”
Lord Sharman November 2011

The Trust’s annual report covers going concern and liquidity and the
narrative report is in line with our understanding of the financial
statements.
However, we note that the report does not provide a clear outline of the
Board of Directors and Audit Committee’s approach to going concern and
liquidity risks including the use of stress testing. This is an area of best
practice disclosure that the Trust should consider for inclusion.

Key performance indicators (KPI)
The review of the performance or
position of the business is enhanced
with the inclusion of analysis using
key performance indicators.

The Trust has included KPIs which are in line with the objectives,
business model and strategy. Prior year comparatives have also been
disclosed for KPIs. We noted that the Trust has not defined KPIs and has
not disclosed an explanation of all the calculation methods. We propose
that the Trust considers including the definitions and calculations of the
KPIs into the Annual Report.

Report to the Audit Committee Final Report 17

4. Our observations on the “front half” of
your annual report (continued)
Corporate governance disclosures
NHS foundation trust directors are
ultimately and collectively responsible
as a board for all aspects of the
performance of the foundation trust.
Therefore, they need to be able to
deliver focused strategic leadership
and effective scrutiny of the trust’s
operations

The Governance Report clearly sets out the role and responsibilities of
both the Board of Directors and Council of Governors. It was noted that
the focus and priorities of the board was not disclosed in detail, and this
may be included in greater detail as best practice going forward. The Trust
discloses the skills and background of the Board, which takes account of
the suitability and appropriateness of the Directors. The Trust has
considered the balance of the Board of Directors in their current roles. No
issues relating to non-compliance were noted.

Sustainability and Equality
NHS foundation trusts are encouraged
to include sections within their annual
report and accounts entitled
Sustainability Report and/ or Equality
reporting.
Annual Reporting Manual

The Trust’s Sustainability Report encompasses good practice in line with
the HM Treasury 2012/13 guidance. The report reflects issues that are
material to the Trust, and its stakeholders including health and safety,
energy usage, waste and water. The Trust has also disclosed greenhouse
gas emissions as a new disclosure in the year. Non-financial indicators
have been included with comparative figures being disclosed together with
comments on improvements. Sustainability reporting is a key element of
the Trust’s business model, and is therefore embedded within the Trust’s
overall strategy. The Trust’s Equality Report has been presented in line
with the Home Office guidance.

Remuneration
“Rather than complying with a cap,
organisations delivering public
services should track, publish and
explain their pay multiples over time.
The most appropriate metric for pay
dispersion is the multiple of chief
executive to median earnings. This
will ensure public service
organisations are accountable for the
relationship between the pay of their
executives and the wider workforce.”
Hutton Review of Fair Pay in the public
sector

The Hutton disclosure shows the mid-point of the highest paid director and
the ratio between this and the median remuneration of the Trust’s staff.
The calculation is based on full-time equivalent staff of the reporting entity
at the reporting period end date on an annualised basis. The Trust has
reported a mid-point band salary of £232,500 for the highest paid director
against a median salary of £37,395. The ratio of the median salary to the
highest banded salary is 6.2 (2012: 6.1).
We have reviewed and tested the Trust’s procedures for calculating this
disclosure. No issues were identified from these procedures.
The remuneration policy of the Trust’s senior management is determined
by the Remuneration and Appointments Committee. During the year, the
Committee agreed that given the current financial and political challenges
faced by the Trust and the pay freeze for the workforce, it would be remiss
to introduce a bonus scheme. Furthermore, in line with our expectations, a
three year pay freeze remained in place for directors.
The expense disclosure is a new requirement in the year. Expenses of
executive directors, non-executive directors and governors have been
disclosed.
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5. Accounting and internal control
systems
Internal control observations
In addition to the recommendations provided in relation to significant audit risks, we also identified a number of
accounting and internal control observations, the most significant of which are detailed below.

G

Low

A

Medium

R

High

Priority – A

Reliance on key personnel

As reported in prior year, some elements of accounts preparation, for example
income balances, rely on input from key individuals within the Trust. In some
cases where these individuals are unavailable (for example due to unexpected
absence) there are no other personnel with sufficient knowledge of the account
balance to respond to queries from the Trust’s central finance team or to
respond to audit queries.

Description

Specifically we identified this issue in respect of certain income balances (PCT
income, SHA income).
Recommendation

Management should consider the extent to which knowledge transfer to other
staff is required to ensure that in the event that a key member of staff is not
available due to unexpected absence that this does not create operational
difficulties.

Management response

Agreed. A plan is currently in place to review a number of areas where there is
over reliance on certain individuals, specifically income. The Trust will review
Finance and Contracting staffing roles to ensure there is appropriate knowledge
transfer and cover. In addition, there is a new structure in place where an
additional staff member will work within income.

Timeframe:
Owner:

1 October 2013
Simon Dixon, Director of Finance

Priority – A

Journal entry postings
Description

Currently the Trust does not have a formal policy for the review of access rights
of individuals for posting and reviewing journals. There is a risk that if an
individual changes department, or leaves the Trust, that they may retain
inappropriate journal postings rights within the Aptos system.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Trust performs regular reviews of user access rights for
the posting of journals to ensure only appropriate individuals have posting rights.
We also recommend that the Trust implements the recommendations made by
internal audit in relation to appropriate review and authorisation of journals.

Management response

Agreed. Management feel that a process is currently in place whereby IT will be
contacted to remove access rights when an individual leaves the finance
department. However, this is not a formal process and management agree that a
formal process whereby an authorisation forms part of the leaving process.

Timeframe:
Owner:

1 October 2013
Kaushik Patel, Head of Finance Systems
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5. Accounting and internal control
systems (continued)
Priority – A

Trust only financial statements

The Trust currently only prepares consolidated financial statements and does
not include separate financial statements in respect of the Trust only activities
(i.e. excluding subsidiary balances). In the 2012/13 financial year the amounts
relating to the subsidiary were not material and therefore the Trust concluded
that it was appropriate not to include separate financial statements. If, in future
periods, the amounts relating to the subsidiary are material the Trust would be
required to disclose Trust only as well as consolidated financial statements.

Description

As the activities of non-core businesses increase, there will be a need for greater
clarity of financial information to be reported to the board with respect to these
activities and the systems as currently structured cannot facilitate the production
of this information efficiently.
We recommend that the Trust perform a review of the amounts relating to
consolidated entities in future periods to assess whether it is appropriate not to
include separate Trust only financial statements.

Recommendation

In addition we recommend that the Trust considers how financial and reporting
systems need to be restructured in order to facilitate the future need for
additional financial reporting on non-core business.
Management response

Timeframe:
Owner:

Agreed. Management agree and will continue to monitor subsidiaries for any
movement that will result in subsidiaries becoming material. Management have
agreed to implement the necessary controls and systems to monitor the
subsidiaries activities so that the necessary action can be taken in a swift
manner if the subsidiaries become material to the Trust.
Ongoing basis
Nicola Hoeksema, Associate Director of Finance

Priority – A

Private Patient Debtors Clearance
Description

The Trust holds two debtor accounts, one for amounts raised (debit balance)
and one for amounts received (credit balance). This results in two large balances
being present which should be netted off against each other to produce the
correct value for Private Patient debtors. The risk here is that an error in one
account can be lost due to the large value that is accumulated in the accounts.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Trust review the accounts and consider combining
these accounts and present the balances net on the trial balance to ensure that
all payments received are net off against the invoices raised to avoid any
misstatement in the Private Patient debtor balance.

Management response

Agreed. Management agree that the accounts should be cleared down on an
annual basis.

Timeframe:
Owner:

1 July 2013
Nicola Hoeksema, Associate Director of Finance
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5. Accounting and internal control
systems (continued)
Priority – A

Calculation of provision for impaired receivables
Description

We understand that the Trust’s current procedure for the calculation of its
provision for the impairment of receivables is manual and time consuming. The
nature of the process also meant that it was difficult for the Trust to provide a
clear audit trail to support these calculations.

Recommendation

We recommended that the Trust considers the extent to which system reports
can be used to eliminate the amount of manual matching of invoices and
associated credit notes and unallocated cash receipts. Improvements should
also be made to the provision calculation workings to make clearer what
adjustments have been made to arrive at the year-end provision for impairment
of receivables.

Management response

Agreed. The provision calculation at year-end has been simplified to enable a
quicker process that can be automated. A report will be written to enable the
automated calculation of this amount going forward.

Timeframe:
Owner:

31 May 2013
Nicola Hoeksema, Associate Director of Finance
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5. Accounting and internal control
systems (continued)
Priority – A

Property, plant and equipment additions
Description

As noted in the prior year, the Trust does not have a formalised procedure to
ensure that, where an addition to property, plant and equipment replaces an
asset, the original asset is properly disposed. There is therefore a risk that the
Trust is understating the level of its disposals in its financial statements. As at
31 March 2013, the Trust held assets with nil net book value with a gross cost of
£26.9m. There is a risk that the Trust is overstating its cost and accumulated
depreciation. We do not consider this matter to be material to the financial
statements.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Trust introduces a requirement on the addition/capital
budget approval form to indicate whether an addition replaces an existing asset
on the asset register. These should be reviewed by management and where
applicable the disposal should be reflected in the Trust’s accounts. Furthermore,
we recommend that the Trust performs a review of its nil net book value assets
to determine whether they are still held by the Trust and are in use. If they are
not, the Trust should dispose of those items from the fixed asset register and
reflect these disposals in the financial statements.

Management response

Agreed. There are a number of options available to the Trust and these will be
reviewed and the most appropriate option will be implemented. This is only
considered a risk for small medical equipment as land and buildings are not
purchased to replace a disposal and larger medical equipment requires enabling
work if it not a replacement and therefore these would be easily identifiable.

Timeframe:
Owner:

1 October 2012
Nicola Hoeksema, Associate Director of Finance
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6. Responsibility statement
This report should be read in conjunction with the "Briefing on audit matters" circulated to you in our audit plan for
the 2011/12 audit and sets out those audit matters of governance interest which came to our attention during the
audit. Our audit was not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to the board and this report is not
necessarily a comprehensive statement of all deficiencies which may exist in internal control or of all improvements
which may be made.
This report has been prepared for the Audit Committee, as a body, and we therefore accept responsibility to you
alone for its contents. We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since this report has not
been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. Except where required by law or regulation, it should
not be made available to any other parties without our prior written consent.

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants
St. Albans
21 May 2013
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Appendix 1: Audit adjustments
Uncorrected misstatements
The following uncorrected misstatements have been identified up to the date of this report:
Credit/
(charge) to
current year
Income
Statement
£’000
Factual misstatements
Understatement of depreciation and
revaluation gain
Revaluation of leasehold improvements
Overstatement of private patient
debtors
Overstatement of private patient
accrued income
Clinical Research Facility – Income
Clinical Research Facility – Expenses
Total

Increase/
(decrease)
in net assets
£’000

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity
£’000

Increase/
(decrease)
in revenue
£’000

[1]
[2]

(745)
Nil

Nil
246

745
246

Nil
Nil

[3]

(209)

(209)

Nil

(209)

[4]
[5]
[5]

(300)
(423)
492

(300)
(423)
492

Nil
Nil
Nil

(300)
(423)
Nil

(1,185)

(194)

991

(932)

We will obtain written representations from the Board of Directors setting out their reasons for not correcting
misstatements brought to their attention and confirming that after considering all uncorrected items, both
individually and in aggregate, in the context of the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, no further
adjustments are required.
[1] We identified an understatement of depreciation charge resulting in a corresponding understatement of
revaluation surplus. During our testing it was noted that there was a calculation error on the pre revaluation NBV of
one of the Ruskin Wing building. This amount represents depreciation which should have been deducted in arriving
at the pre-revaluation net book value before comparing to the revalued net book value to determine the revaluation
surplus/deficit. This therefore means that both depreciation for the year and the subsequent revaluation gain are
understated by £745k.
[2] This misstatement relates to the increase in valuation of leasehold improvement assets which were excluded
from the Trust’s revaluation exercise. According to financial standards, all assets within a class must revalued at
the same time. With leasehold improvements being classified together with land and buildings they should have
been revalued at the same time. The revaluation would have resulted in impairments totalling £2k and revaluation
gains of £248k.
[3] Overstatement of private patient debtors as a result of an unexplainable difference between the ledger and the
CompuCare private patient system. A similar difference was present in the prior year.
[4] Overstatement of Private Patient accrued income as compared to the source Private Patient CompuCare
System. The difference is as a result of a system error whereby charges for cancelled appointments were still
automatically raised and recorded into accrued income. It has been identified that these errors date from 2008 and
earlier periods and total up to £300k.
[5] This misstatement relates to the Clinical Research Facility. The Trust initially records all income and expenses
relating to the Clinical Research Facility in its books. However, during the year, the Trust did not re-charge the
portion of income and expenses attributable to its joint operation partners, KCL (47%) and SLAM (18%), thus
resulting in an overstatement of income and expenses.
As stated in our audit plan, we only report to you uncorrected misstatements that are either qualitatively material or
exceed the clearly trivial threshold of £105,500.
Report to the Audit Committee Final Report 24

Appendix 2: Independence
As part of our obligations under International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) and the Companies Act, we are
required to report to you on the matters listed below.
Confirmation
We are independent

We confirm that we comply with APB Revised Ethical Standards for Auditors and that,
in our professional judgement, we are independent and our objectivity is not
compromised.

Non-audit services
Non audit services
provided are in
respect of the Quality
Account and Lease
Accounting advice
work

In our opinion there are no inconsistencies between APB Revised Ethical Standards for
Auditors and the company’s policy for the supply of non audit services or of any
apparent breach of that policy.
We apply the following safeguards to eliminate identified threats to independence or
reduce them to an acceptable level are as follows:
Service provided

Identified threats to
independence

Safeguards applied

Assurance report on the
Quality Account

As this work is largely
carried out by members
of the engagement team
and is closely related to
the work performed in
the audit, the threats to
auditor independence
are clearly insignificant
and, as a consequence,
safeguards need not be
applied.

-

Lease accounting advice
work

This work involves the
provision of accounting
advice on a lease
transaction. As the work
involves the review of
management’s
assessment of the
proposed accounting
treatment and providing
an opinion thereof, there
is no threat to auditor
independence and
hence, safeguards need
not be applied.

We provided a formal opinion on
management’s proposed accounting
treatment of a lease transaction. We
did not prepare a proposed treatment
for them and therefore do not consider
this to reflect a self-review threat.

Variable

In all cases we are cognisant of the
Trusts policy for non audit services and
before submitting any proposeal we, as
a minimum, consult with both the
director of finance and the chair of the
audit committee.

Response to invitations
to tender

We did not make a management
decision on the accounting for the
transaction. Management prepared a
paper that considered the lease
accounting standards and the
supporting documentation, which we
considered. Management made
judgements on the transaction and we
tested these judgements to the relevant
supporting documentation.
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Appendix 2: Independence (continued)
Fees charged during the period
The professional fees earned by Deloitte in the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 are as follows:
Current year
£
Work carried out under the Monitor Audit Code*
Non-audit services
Lease accounting advice work
Total fees

Prior year
£

86,000

87,500

2,000

-

88,000

87,500

* Work under the Monitor Audit Code includes the following:
 Financial statement audit of the Trust;
 Whole of Government Accounts; and
 Quality Accounts work.
In line with our proposal, we have reduced our fee due to efficiencies built into the audit process.
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Appendix 3: Draft management
representation letter
(Client's Letterhead)

Deloitte LLP
3 Victoria Square
St Albans
Hertfordshire
AL1 3TF

Dear Sirs
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the annual financial statements and
consolidation schedules (together “the financial statements”) of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for
the year ended 31 March 2013 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust as of 31 March 2013
and of the results of its operations, other recognised gains and losses and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the directions given by Monitor - Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts in accordance
with paragraph 25 of Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006.
As Accounting Officer and on behalf of the board of directors, I confirm, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the
following representations.
Financial statements
1.

I understand and have fulfilled my responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with directions given by Monitor - Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts in
accordance with paragraph 25 of Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006 which gives a true
and fair view, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter.

2.

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable.

3.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of IAS24 “Related party disclosures”.

4.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the applicable financial
reporting framework requires adjustment of or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

5.

The effects of uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies are immaterial, both individually and
in aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. A list of the uncorrected misstatements and
disclosure deficiencies is detailed in the appendix to this letter.

6.

We confirm that the financial statements and FTCs have been prepared on the going concern basis. We
do not intend to cease trading as we consider we have realistic alternatives to doing so. We are not aware
of any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Trust’s
ability to continue as a going concern. We confirm the completeness of the information provided regarding
events and conditions relating to going concern at the date of approval of the financial statements,
including our plans for future actions.
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Appendix 3: Draft management
representation letter (continued)
7.

We have reviewed the operating segments reported internally to the Board and we are satisfied that it is
appropriate to aggregate these as, in accordance with IFRS 8: Operating Segments, they are similar in
each of the following respects:
- the nature of the products and services;
- the nature of the products and services;
- the nature of the production processes;
- the type or class of customer for their products and services;
- the methods used to distribute their products or provide their services; and
- the nature of the regulatory environment

Information provided
8.

We have made available to you all records, correspondence, information and explanations necessary for
you to perform your work. All the records have been made available to you for the purpose of your work
and all the data collected by the Foundation Trust has been properly reflected and recorded.

9.

We have provided you with all relevant information and access as agreed in the terms of the audit
engagement letter and required by Appendix B of the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts.

10.

We acknowledge our responsibilities for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud and error.

11.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

12.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and
that affects the entity or group and involves:
(i). management;
(ii). employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
(iii). others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

13.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the
entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or
others.

14.

We are not aware of any instances of non-compliance, or suspected non-compliance, with laws,
regulations and contractual agreements whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

15.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party relationships
and transactions of which we are aware.

16.

All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the
financial statements have been disclosed to you and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework. On the basis of legal advice we have set them out in the
attachment with our estimates of their potential effect. No other claims in connection with litigation have
been or are expected to be received.

17.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and
liabilities reflected in the financial statements.
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Appendix 3: Draft management
representation letter (continued)
18.

We have recorded or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities, both actual and contingent.

19.

We have reconsidered the remaining useful lives of the fixed assets and confirm that the present rates of
depreciation are appropriate to amortise the revalued amount less residual value over the remaining useful
lives.

20.

Except as disclosed in Note 21 to the accounts, as at 31 March 2013 there were no significant capital
commitments contracted for by the Trust.

21.

Based on discussions with other NHS bodies, we consider that the resolution of disputed balances and
accrued over performance will not result in a material adverse effect on the reported financial position.

22.

All grants or donations, the receipt of which is subject to specific restrictions, terms or conditions, have
been notified to you. We have evaluated whether the restrictions, terms or conditions on grants or
donations have been fulfilled with and deferred income to the extent that they have not.

23.

We have recognised revenue in respect of over performance of £37m as at 31 March 2013. We consider
this to be the best estimate of over performance recognised for the year ended 31 March 2013 and confirm
we will not be billing any material additional amounts of over performance in respect of the year ended 31
March 2013.

24.

Note 12 of the financial statements show the trade and other receivables of the Trust. The amount of
£4.7m has been included in respect of a provision against impaired receivables. The provision is based on
assumptions concerning the future and other sources of information about the age and recoverability of the
debt. We confirm that this provision is appropriate and in accordance with IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’.

25.

With respect to the revaluation of properties in accordance with the Annual Reporting Manual:
a. the measurement processes used are appropriate and have been applied consistently, including
related assumptions and models;
b. the assumptions appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action
on behalf of the entity where relevant to the accounting estimates and disclosures;
c.

the disclosures are complete and appropriate; and

d. there have been no subsequent events that require adjustment to the valuations and disclosures
included in the financial statements.
26.

We confirm that we consider that depreciated historic cost is an appropriate proxy for the fair value of nonproperty assets, and are not aware of any circumstances that would indicate that these assets require
revaluation.

27.

We confirm that no significant fixed assets have been sold or scrapped during the financial year other than
those listed in the fixed asset register.

28.

All minutes of board and management meetings during and since the financial year have been made
available to you.
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Appendix 3: Draft management
representation letter (continued)
Value for money
29.

We acknowledge our responsibility for ensuring the Trust has put in place arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

30.

We are not aware of any deficiencies in the Trust’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

Quality accounts
31.

We understand and have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the quality report in accordance
with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.

32.

We have made available to you all records, correspondence, information and explanations necessary for
you to perform your work. All the records have been made available to you for the purpose of your work
and all the data collected by the Foundation Trust has been properly reflected and recorded.

33.

Significant assumptions that have been made by us in determining the indicators are reasonable.

34.

All events subsequent to the date of the quality report and for which the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual requires adjustment of or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

35.

The effects of uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies are immaterial, both individually and
in aggregate, to the quality report as a whole. A list of the uncorrected misstatements and disclosure
deficiencies is detailed in the appendix to this letter.

36.

We acknowledge our responsibilities for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud and error when preparing the quality report.

37.

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance, or suspected non-compliance, with laws
and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the quality report.

38.

We have disclosed to you all deficiencies in internal control over the collection and reporting of the
measures of performance included in the quality report of which we are aware.

We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of adequate enquiries of management and staff
(and where appropriate, inspection of evidence) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of
the above representations to you.

Yours faithfully

Signed as Accounting Officer, and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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21 May 2013
Dear Sirs
We have pleasure in setting out in this document our report to the Council of Governors of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on our
external assurance review of the 2012/13 Quality Report. This report covers the principal matters that have arisen from our review.
We take responsibility for this report which is prepared on the basis of the limitations set out below. The matters raised in this report are only those
which came to our attention during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the deficiencies that may exist
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document, or make them available or communicate them to any other party. No other party is entitled to rely on our report for any purpose
whatsoever and thus we accept no liability to any other party who is shown or gains access to this report. We agree that a copy of our report may
be provided to Monitor for their information in connection with this purpose but, as made clear in our engagement letter dated 3 September 2012,
only on the basis that we accept no duty, liability or responsibility to Monitor in relation to our Deliverables.
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1. Executive summary

We anticipate issuing a “clean” unmodified opinion in our public report

Status
We have substantially completed our review. However we have still to complete our validation of the reported indicators and receipt of the final signed Quality Report
including the commissioner’s statement. The scope of our work is to support a “limited assurance” opinion, which is based upon procedures specified by Monitor in their
Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on Quality Reports. On completion of our work, we anticipate issuing a “clean” unmodified opinion in our public report.
Overall
conclusion
Content
We have reviewed the contents of the Quality Report compared to the requirements of Monitor’s Annual Reporting Manual (“ARM”). During
the year, we have provided the Trust with our NHS Briefing “Quality Accounts: Preparing for 2012/13”, regular updates on the latest
requirements, and benchmarking information to help support the drafting process. We note:
• There are a number of items of performance information and narrative that are due to be finalised, the most significant being the inclusion of
the final full year data for Cancer 62 day Waits and incidents resulting in severe harm or death.
• The Quality Report and the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities are due to be signed off
• The stakeholders’ statements on the Quality Report are outstanding.
• Our conclusion will be re-graded to green if testing on the outstanding items is satisfactory.

Page

5

Consistency
We have reviewed the contents of the Quality Account for consistency with various specified information sources, such as Board papers, the
Trust’s complaints report and patients surveys and Care Quality Commission reports. We have not noted any inconsistencies with Quality
Report. The stakeholders’ statements are outstanding. Our conclusion will be re-graded to green if testing on the outstanding items is
satisfactory.

5

Data testing

Cancer 62 days

We performed data testing of three performance indicators. This testing is complete with the exception of us
reconciling the final year data for Cancer 62 day waits and Incidents Resulting in Severe Harm or Death. As in
prior year, we only issue a public limited assurance report on Cancer 62 days and C.Difficile. We report
privately in this report on the third “local” indicator tested. Our work considered:
• The quality of the data supporting the indicator, compared to Monitor’s six dimensions of data quality.
• Whether the indicators have been reported in accordance with the ARM requirements.

C.Difficile

9

Incidents resulting in
severe harm or death
(not part of our limited
assurance opinion)

10

Our work on Cancer 62 days found some errors but these were not considered significant enough to impact our
opinion. Our work on Incidents resulting in severe harm or death and C.Difficile found no errors. Further details
are included in Section 4.
Satisfactory,
Key:

3

No issues

minor issues only or
outstanding items

Requires improvement
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Significant
improvement required
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2. Our approach and scope
Our approach is unchanged from 2011/12. However, we are required to test the indicator ‘Incidents
resulting in severe harm or death’, mandated for all FTs by Monitor.
Content and consistency work
Review content

Document review

Interviews

Form an opinion

Performance indicators
Interviews

Identify potential
risk areas

Detailed data
testing

Identify
improvement areas

External assurance requirements
As part of our review, we are required to provide assurance over the Quality Report, following procedures set out in Monitor’s Audit Code and detailed guidance
published each year. We are required to:
• Review the content of the Quality Report for compliance with the requirements set out in the FT Annual Reporting Manual 2012/13.
• Review the content of the Quality Report for consistency with various information sources specified in Monitor’s detailed guidance, such as Board papers, the
Trust’s complaints report, staff and patients surveys and Care Quality Commission reports.
• Perform sample testing of three indicators.
‒ For 2012/13, all Trusts are required to have testing performed on Incidents resulting in severe harm or death, rather than selecting a local indicator. The
results of testing on this indicator are not publically reported.
‒ The Trust has selected Cancer 62 days and C.Difficile as its publically reported indicators – the alternative was 28 days emergency readmissions.
‒ The scope of testing includes an evaluation of the key processes and controls for managing and reporting the indicators; and sample testing of the data used
to calculate the indicator back to supporting documentation.
• Provide a signed limited assurance report, covering whether:
‒ Anything has come to our attention that leads us to believe that the Quality Report has not been prepared in line with the requirements set out in the ARM; or
is not consistent with the specified information sources; or
‒ There is evidence to suggest that the Cancer 62 days and 28 days emergency readmissions indicators have not been reasonably stated in all material
respects in accordance with the ARM requirements.
• Provide this report to the Council of Governors, setting out our findings and recommendations for improvements for the indicators tested: Cancer 62 days and 28
days emergency readmissions and incidents resulting in severe harm or death.
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3. Content and consistency of the Quality Report
The Quality Report meets regulatory requirements
Content of Quality Report
We reviewed the content of the 2012/13 Quality Report against the content requirements set out in Monitor’s 2012/13 Annual Reporting Manual.
Our review of the content of the Quality Report has identified a few issues which have been reported back to management, including outstanding full year data for
Cancer 62 day waits and Incidents Resulting in Severe Harm or Death. It has been agreed that the final version of the report will be issued in line with the
guidance.

Statement of Directors Responsibilities
Monitor require NHS FTs to sign a Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the content of the quality report and the mandated indicators. The
guidance requires these to be published in the Quality Report.
As part of our work we have reviewed the Statement of Directors Responsibilities and confirm that this is an unamended version of the proforma provided by
Monitor. The Quality Report and the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities are due to be signed off by 28 May 2013 when we will review the final version to
ensure that the internal and external sources of information referred to in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities have been included.

Consistency of Quality Report
Monitor require Auditors to undertake a review of the content of the Quality report for consistency with the content of other sources of management information
specified by Monitor in its “Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on the Quality Reports”.
We reviewed the consistency of the quality report against this supporting information required by Monitor and:•
We did not identify any significant matters specified in the supporting information which are not specified in the Quality Report.
•
We did not identify any significant areas of the Quality Report that could not be confirmed back to supporting evidence.
We have still to receive all the information we require, including stakeholders’ comments but have not noted any inconsistencies to date with the latest available
Quality Report of 13 May 2013.

Stakeholder Engagement
Monitor require Auditors to consider the processes which NHS FTs have undergone to engage with stakeholders. The Trust can demonstrate that it has engaged
with its stakeholders including staff, Governors and partners. NHS South East London has provided a comment but the statements from the other stakeholders
are currently outstanding and will need to be included in the final signed Quality Report in order for our opinion to be issued.
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4. Our review of the Trust’s performance indicators
There are no significant concerns with the quality of data
Quality of Data
Monitor require Auditors to undertake detailed data testing on a sample basis of three mandated indicators. Based on our work nothing has come to our attention
that causes us believe that, for the year ended 31 March 2013, the indicators in the Quality Report subject to limited assurance (Cancer 62 days and 28 day
emergency readmissions) have not been reasonably stated in all material respects in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and the
six dimensions of data quality set out in the ‘Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on Quality Reports’.
A draft of our limited assurance opinion can be found in Appendix 1 and should be included within your 2012/13 Annual Report. This is the form of
report we expect to issue on satisfactory resolution of the matters described as outstanding.
We have also undertaken detailed data testing of incidents resulting in severe harm or death, which has been mandated by Monitor for all FTs but is outside our
limited assurance opinion.

Summary findings
The following pages show detailed findings for each of the Monitor mandated performance indicators against the six dimensions of data quality. The assessment
includes key strengths, perceived gaps and detailed recommendations that should be implemented.
A summary of what our detailed findings were is documented below:
• In our Cancer 62 Day testing we found one start date error and two errors in applying adjustments to DNAs (Did Not Attend). Two of these errors did not lead to
a change in status as the cancer waiting time remained under 62 days. One error resulted in an unreported shared breach (the breach is shared if the case is
transferred to another trust which occurred in this case). We conducted additional testing which did not identify further occurrences. The unreported breach is
not a material error in relation to the correct reporting of cancer performance and therefore there is no impact on our opinion. We have still to validate the correct
performance indicator calculation to the Quality Report.
• Our testing of C.Difficile found no errors.
• Our testing of patient safety incidents resulting in severe harm or death found no errors, and we confirmed that the Trust is reporting the correct performance
indicator calculation as held on the Trust’s Datix system. The full 2012/13 National Reporting and Learning Service (NRLS) data was not available and it is not
possible to compare the NRLS data accurately to the Trust data due to the absence of a clear audit trail of changes to classification during the year.
We have made a number of recommendations to address these areas for improvement and these can be found with management responses at the end of our
report.
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4. Our review of the Trust’s performance indicators
Assessed against the Monitor six dimensions of data quality
Cancer 62 Day
Waits

C.Difficile

Unmodified
Opinion: subject to
correct reporting of
performance in
Quality Report

Unmodified
Opinion

Incidents resulting in
severe harm or death

Accuracy
Is data recorded correctly and is it in line with the methodology. [*This will be regraded
on publication of final year indicators.]
Validity
Has the data been produced in compliance with relevant requirements.
Reliability
Has data been collected using a stable process in a consistent manner over a period of
time.
Timeliness
Is data captured as close to the associated event as possible and available for use
within a reasonable time period.
Relevance
Does all data used generate the indicator meet eligability requirements as defined by
guidance.
Completeness
Is all relevant information, as specified in the methodology, included in the calculation.

Overall Conclusion

Key:
7

No issues

Satisfactory,
minor issues only or
outstanding data
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Requires improvement

No opinion required

Significant improvement
required
© 2013 Deloitte LLP. Private and confidential.

Cancer 62 Day Wait
The NHS Cancer Plan set the goal that no patient should wait longer than two months (62 days) from a GP urgent
referral for suspected cancer to the beginning of treatment, except for good clinical reasons.
Reported Performance:

2012/13 Target = 85%

Trust reported performance 2012/13 = 89.76%

Approach
•

We conducted a walkthrough of the key controls in place to test that processes operated as described. A report was obtained showing all 62 day pathway
patients in the year. From this a sample of 24 patients was selected from across the year, using a risk-based approach. For each patient we agreed: the start
date to GP referral letter, shared network system or Open Exeter; the stop date to patient records showing relevant treatment; and any adjustments to relevant
evidence. Dates and adjustments were referenced to NHS guidance to ensure they were for valid reasons. We adjusted our sampling to take account of errors
found, as noted below.

•

We have received the Trust’s performance data supporting the performance indicator in 2012/13 for the purpose of recalculation. This has not yet been fully
reconciled as we have not received the final figure to be reported in the Trust’s Quality Report.

Results

Recommendations

Issues
•

The Trust has reported performance of Qtr 1: 92.0%; Qtr 2: 89.0%; Qtr 3: 89.0%; Qtr 4: 88.0% performance in •
the draft Quality Report. We understand that this will be amended to the expected reported performance of Qtr
3: 90.0%; Qtr 4: 88.5%. When it is, we will reconcile this to the Trust’s performance data.

•

Start Date: For one cases, the pathway start date was recorded on the system as a day after the GP fax
referral had been received by the Trust. This error did not lead to a change in status as the cancer waiting time
remained under 62 days. We conducted additional testing which did not identify further occurrences.

•

Stop dates: No errors found.

•

Adjustments: Two adjustment were incorrectly applied. One related to a data entry error and the second was
due to guidance being incorrectly applied on a patient who did not attend (DNA) their appointment. This
second error resulted in an unreported shared breach. We conducted additional testing which did not identify
further occurrences. We have tested 16 of the 17 DNA adjustments and found no additional errors. The
unreported breach is not a material error in relation to the correct reporting of cancer performance.

•

We note that there were errors in applying adjustments in our prior year testing as well.
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•

The nature of the errors in recording start
dates and adjustments and the latest
Cancer Waiting Time guidance should be
reiterated to relevant staff so that they
are aware of when adjustments can be
applied to the 62 day cancer pathway,
and the period of time for which the
adjustments should be applied.
Conduct a follow up audit of the
adjustment dates to assure that staff are
correctly recording per guidance.
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Clostridium Difficile
Clostridium Difficile, often referred to as C. difficile or C-diff, is a bacterium that is present naturally in the gut of around
two thirds of children and 3% of adults.
Reported Performance:

2012/13 Target = 75

Trust reported performance 2012/13 = 54

Approach
•

We conducted a walkthrough of the key controls in place to test that processes operated as described. We reviewed a report showing all positive Clostridium
difficile cases during the year; 89 cases were identified, of which 54 were identified as attributable to the Trust. We tested 10 attributable cases, 10 nonattributable cases and 4 negative cases.

•

For each case we agreed: the admission date to patient admission records and hospital information system, the blood culture test date to the laboratory
system; and the positive result date to email notifications from lab staff. We confirmed whether cases should be attributable or non-attributable based on the
admission and test dates.

Results

Recommendations

Issues
•

Our testing found no errors, and we confirmed that the Trust is reporting the •
correct performance indicator calculation.

•

24 patients were tested, with no errors noted.
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Patient safety incidents resulting in severe harm or death
Patient safety incidents are any unintended or unexpected incident which could have, or did, lead to harm for one or more patients
receiving NHS-funded healthcare. Organisations with a culture of high reporting are more likely to have developed a strong reporting
and learning culture.
Trust reported performance 2012/13 = 0.75% of patient safety incidents resulting in severe harm or death

Approach
•

We met with the Trust’s lead for the patient safety incidents to understand the process from a patient safety incident being identified to the result being
included in the Quality Report.

•

We selected a sample of 24 patients from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 from a population of all incidents reported onto Datix (the Trust incident reporting
system) to ensure the completeness of the indicator. The sample was selected judgmentally in order to obtain a breath of incidents across the period under
review and also to reflect our assessment of risk and our knowledge of the processes in place at the Trust.

•

We have agreed the data reported by the Trust in its 2012/13 Quality Report back to the Trust records. Our work does not cover the accuracy or the validity of
the data provided to the National Reporting and Learning Service (NRLS) ) as there is no regulatory requirement of the Trust to report on this basis and the
accuracy of this data cannot be verified. This indicator relies on clinical judgement to determine the correct classification of each incident. In addition, each
incident may also be subject to potentially lengthy investigation which may result in the classification subsequently being changed. We have not challenged
the clinical judgements made regarding the classification of each incident. In addition, although we have checked a sample of patient safety incidents excluded
from the severe harm indicator to confirm the exclusion is valid, we are only able to confirm that this exclusion is accurately recorded.

Results
•

Our testing found no errors.

Recommendations
•

•

We have confirmed that the Trust has calculated the correct performance
indicator as per the data held by the Trust. This has not yet been
correctly reported in the Quality Report.

The Trust should maintain an audit trail of changes to the severity of each
incident resulting in severe harm or death that occurs after upload to the NRLS
and retain these to allow reconciliation of Trust incidents resulting in severe
harm/death with information held by NRLS.

•

•
It was not possible to reconcile Trust data held on Datix with the data
reported by the NRLS. This is due to the classification of incidents being,
appropriately, changed throughout the year as a consequence of
investigation and review. The full 2012/13 NRLS data was not available.

The Trust should include a statement within its Quality Report highlighting that
reclassification of incidents may impact on the data reported by the Trust in
relation to the NRLS data and the comparability of data reported by other
trusts.
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5. Follow up of last year’s recommendations
The Trust has taken action to address previous findings in relation to Cancer
Waits
Recommendations

Management response

The Patient Content Support system should clearly
record the date that a patient is available for
treatment (following a come in date being
declined), as well as the treatment date.

All adjustments should be reviewed and checked
by the Cancer Waiting Times manager to ensure
consistency with guidance. Due to the limited
number of adjustments in the year a record of the
adjustment, the check performed and the evidence
available to support the adjustment should be
retained.

Key:
11

High

Medium

Follow up Status

The Trust accepts the recommendation that
the date patients are available for treatment
needs to be clearly documented. The
Cancer Waiting Times Manager is working
with divisions to ensure that this date is
recorded in local records and also on PCS
by the MDT coordinators. This information
will also be held locally for audit purposes.

As part of our system review, we have
confirmed dates of availability are being
recorded on the system. We were able to
confirm availability dates in our testing.

The Trust accepts the recommendation to
have the Cancer Wait Time manager check
all cases with adjustments. A process has
been formalised where by a list of these
patients are reviewed prior to the quarter
upload.

Our testing outlined on page 8 has indicated that
the process for checking all adjustments to
waiting times is not effective. Two instances
were found where the adjustments based on
DNAs were incorrect.

RAG

Low
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6. Our recommendations for improvement
We have raised a number of recommendations below.
Issue & Impact

Priority
Rating
(H/M/L)

Cancer 62 Day

1

Through testing extended sample testing of the 62
cancer waits pathways it was noted that for one
pathway, the pathway start date was noted on the
PIMS system as a day after the GP Fax referral
had been received by the Trust.
Through testing extended sample testing of the 62
cancer waits pathways it was noted that for two
patient pathways, the pathways had been adjusted
incorrectly and the guidance on re-booking had
not been applied.
Patient safety incidents

2

As the reporting regime is voluntary and is not
supported by national guidance, changes to the
classification of incidents that occur after reporting
to NRLS may not be updated to the NRLS. This is
likely to result in a difference in the figures held by
the NRLS and the Trust. If an audit trail is not
maintained this will not be reconcilable.

Recommendation

Agreed

The nature of the errors in recording start
dates and adjustments and the latest
Cancer Waiting Time guidance should be
reiterated to relevant staff so that they are
aware of when adjustments can be
applied to the 62 day cancer pathway,
and the period of time for which the
adjustments should be applied.

Management
response

Responsible
Person

Timescale

Response to
be received.

Conduct a follow up audit of the
adjustment dates to assure that staff are
correctly recording per guidance.
The Trust should maintain an audit trail of
changes to the severity of each incident
resulting in severe harm or death that
occurs after upload to the NRLS and
retain these to allow reconciliation of
Trust incidents resulting in severe
harm/death with information held by
NRLS.

Response to
be received.

The Trust should include a statement
within its Quality Report highlighting that
reclassification of incidents may impact
on the data reported by the Trust in
relation to the NRLS data and the
comparability of data reported by other
trusts.

Response to
be received.

Patient safety incidents

3

12

The classification of the impact of an incident may
be subject to a potentially lengthy investigation
which may result in the classification being
changed. This change may not be reported
externally and the data held by a trust may not be
the same as that held by the NRLS. Therefore, it
may be difficult to explain the differences between
the data reported by the Trusts as this may not be
comparable.
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Key:

High

Medium

Low
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Appendix 1: Draft Independent Assurance Report
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of Governors of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on the Quality Report
We have been engaged by the Council of Governors of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust to perform an independent assurance engagement in
respect of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s Quality Report for the year ended 31 March 2013 (the “Quality Report”) and certain performance
indicators contained therein.
This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for the Council of Governors of King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust as a body, to assist
the Council of Governors in reporting King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust’s quality agenda, performance and activities. We permit the disclosure of this
report within the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2013, to enable the Council of Governors to demonstrate they have discharged their governance
responsibilities by commissioning an independent assurance report in connection with the indicators. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of Governors as a body and King's College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust for our work or this report save
where terms are expressly agreed and with our prior consent in writing.
Scope and subject matter
The indicators for the year ended 31 March 2013 subject to limited assurance consist of the national priority indicators as mandated by Monitor:
•

Cancer 62 day waits

•

C.Difficile

We refer to these national priority indicators collectively as the “indicators”.
Respective responsibilities of the Directors and auditors
The Directors are responsible for the content and the preparation of the Quality Report in accordance with the criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual issued by Monitor.
Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on limited assurance procedures, on whether anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe that:
•
•
•

the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;
the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources specified in [source or list]; and
the indicators in the Quality Report identified as having been the subject of limited assurance in the Quality Report are not reasonably stated in all material
respects in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and the six dimensions of data quality set out in the Detailed Guidance for
External Assurance on Quality Reports.
We read the Quality Report and consider whether it addresses the content requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual, and consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any material omissions.
We read the other information contained in the Quality Report and consider whether it is materially inconsistent with the documents specified within the detailed
guidance. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with those documents
(collectively the “documents”). Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.
We are in compliance with the applicable independence and competency requirements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW)
Code of Ethics. Our team comprised assurance practitioners and relevant subject matter experts.
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Appendix 1: Draft Independent Assurance Report
Assurance work performed
We conducted this limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) – “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (“ISAE 3000”).
Our limited assurance procedures included:
• Evaluating the design and implementation of the key processes and controls for managing and reporting the indicators.
• Making enquiries of management.
• Testing key management controls.
• Limited testing, on a selective basis, of the data used to calculate the indicator back to supporting documentation.
• Comparing the content requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual to the categories reported in the Quality Report.
• Reading the documents.
A limited assurance engagement is smaller in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement. The nature, timing and extent of procedures for gathering sufficient
appropriate evidence are deliberately limited relative to a reasonable assurance engagement.
Limitations
Non-financial performance information is subject to more inherent limitations than financial information, given the characteristics of the subject matter and the
methods used for determining such information.
The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw allows for the selection of different but acceptable measurement techniques which can
result in materially different measurements and can impact comparability. The precision of different measurement techniques may also vary. Furthermore, the nature
and methods used to determine such information, as well as the measurement criteria and the precision thereof, may change over time. It is important to read the
Quality Report in the context of the criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.
The scope of our assurance work has not included governance over quality or non-mandated indicators which have been determined locally by King's College
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
Conclusion
Based on the results of our procedures, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that, for the year ended 31 March 2013:
•
•
•

the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;
the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources specified in [source]; and
the indicators in the Quality Report subject to limited assurance have not been reasonably stated in all material respects in accordance with the NHS Foundation
Trust Annual Reporting Manual.

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants
[Office]
[Date]
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